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Financial H|gh||ghts and Calendar
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Financial Highlights
MEHME

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEFE

Revenue

Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company

Total assets

Net assets

Basic earnings per share

Interim and final dividends per share
Special dividend per share

Net assets per share

[T
2019 2018 Change

—E-NF —\F -0

HK$'000 HK$000 %

FET FET Bt

WA 8,493,883 8,427,399 0.8
ViN/NET g ES VSN 590,285 458,055 28.9

FEAE &=

BELE 4,494,090 4,616,329 (2.6)
BEFE 3,421,750 3,573,500 4.2)
FIEAGF HK$1.02& T HK$0.79 7% 7T 29.1
R E R AR AR HK84 cents Bl  HK81 cents /&1l 3.7
SRS RIS B - HK35 cents #1ll N/ATEA
BREEFE HK$5.84 78 T HK$6.10 /& 7T (4.3)

Financial Calendar

B #% B

Announcement of Interim Results 26 November 2018

RERBE N —T-\F+—H=t<H

Announcement of Annual Results 14 June 2019

REFEERM —E-hFRATHEA

Dividends Interim dividend: HK19 cents per share paid on 27 December 2018

AR S RHAIRR S, BRI ERZE—N\FTA=1+tHIKN
Proposed final dividend: HK65 cents per share payable on 18 September 2019
iz REILE Be5BI - RZE—AFNAATNBIEN

Annual General Meeting ("AGM") 3 September 2019

REEFRE —NFNLA=H

Closure of Register of Members

HXK = {'ﬁﬂ}g

29 August 2019 to 3 September 2019 (both days inclusive)

(for determining eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM)
—NENAZTNBZEZ-NFNA=R (ERMRBEEA)

(Mﬁmﬁf&%k%ﬂﬁﬁA&mméﬁ)

9 September 2019

(for determining entitlement to the final dividend)
—ZE-hFNAANA

(VAT E W ER R BRI B Y B AR
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Chairman’s Message
T ERET

Last year marked Café de Coral’s 50" Anniversary. Reaching this milestone
has been cause for celebration with our staff and business partners, yet it
also represents a new beginning for our business as we look to the next 50
years.

The results achieved during the year under review indicate clear
improvement in performance and customer experience, as well as a positive

trend in all areas of operations.

Our philosophy towards development is driven by a long-term view, and
is inspired by a belief that development cannot be rushed, yet it cannot be
slow. While a succession team and sustainable growth take time to nurture,
it is important the business maintains forward momentum while adapting
to the environment.

A SUCCESSFUL 50t YEAR

In Hong Kong fast food, our ongoing programme focused on internal
enhancement and tighter cost control continued to deliver measurable
results. At the same time, the casual dining business benefitted from
lessons learned to achieve stronger performance.

AREEFERENEFEMNBIE
A+iBF  EFEREELAMRSEHEBH
BNEF - BRMAAERERENKE - BERX
RAEERLRIFEE o

R e AR AR -

BRARLEEFNRE  XERENS  BE
BREOME - MASHEHNEETFhiEE
R o

RERREMR - KRR ZE - EETTAET
FERTT - AREMREBERER - LRNAILA
Ao EEBEARBENAT  UREEFBNE
% BABRIEERY  BRATEERETH
¥ wEREGE - SEKZEA - ARG
I e

BEE® AEE

BEREXZHIE - RMA—E/EEMRAR
o BIBEHINA - BHWLERE - BRI
BEEML - KREE - B - KEIERES
PR T BENLER  RAELE—EE -
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The China market — and in particular the Greater Bay Area — was a key
driver of growth for the Group during the past year. Over the past 50 years,
our business has organically grown outward from Hong Kong to include key
neighbouring cities and regions, which cover largely the same footprint as
the official Greater Bay Area region.

In expanding from our home market, Café de Coral’s network in Mainland
China has naturally focused on the Greater Bay Area — building on our
knowledge of customers, markets, property and supply chain logistics. This
has allowed us to grow at a comfortable pace, confident in our ability to
maintain our high standards of quality, cleanliness and service throughout
our network.

As always, our people are our most important business advantage. To this
end, we have been investing in our human capital — nurturing internal talent
and making key external hires when necessary to build the quality of our team.
With measurable gains achieved, the Group is looking to round off further
investment in external talent for the time being, and will refocus on improving
management bench strength through internal training and development.

CLEAR VISION FOR THE FUTURE

As Chairman, my role in the business is to provide guidance for the senior
management team when necessary, while giving them the space to learn,
innovate and execute to the best of their own talents and abilities. At
the same time, strong communication and positive interaction between
the Board and the management team are important to maximise the
effectiveness of the business.

LI E
9 i &

- ¥
L IR ] '

Vi |0
1 \""-{'i

6 Café de Coral Holdings Limited « Annual Report 2018/19

BN BE—FNER ARRKAFEAM
MENEZEER EFLUKREREARTE
BE-BEBERTHF  KRENEBTEHE

7 BREBZE  ERCRELE - BAR
MOERHHMBE - BERFNEBRERE
B SEMHPIEEERRTE -

RRLENBBRE - AIMAE - BRXAARLIA
RNERJER  BREERMYEST  T5 -
i%%ﬁf?&ﬁ&%mﬁ’]x ERE BERGKE
o Bt - ZFIBUAREKE - BTRMA—E
ﬂa%%f% CIREBER - RIS RBARRE o

ZHRBEMELE LNES  FENATIRKER
REZ - Bt BATEHREZERATELN
TMEBEANHNEFAE  LEEFFER £
SEZIEBATEERZR  SEXENER
B o BEESNEAS T EE B BEERR - ],
PIaT B ETRE RN A BRI - LA DN 9R i+
BATHES -

RESR HARR

BEREF TEENEREEETERN - I&
BERMERABELREERAR  BREG THM
BRMBFHNZER  BREDMMERMAE -
toh  EERMEEBER cHEERTER
MR - AL A BEFTE D IR TSR -



Focusing on the future business environment, technology will continue to
be a key differentiator — both in our home market of Hong Kong, as well as
throughout the Greater Bay Area. Whether automating mobile ordering,
payment or take-out and delivery, e-channels now represent a significant
portion of our business, which will only grow as time passes.

Looking to the year ahead, we remain confident in continued positive
growth. Building on the Customer Journey as our guide to long term
improvement, we remain assured in our prospects for steady, sustainable
growth — maintaining our market leadership in Hong Kong while supporting
the growth of the industry throughout the region.

As a Group, one of Café de Coral’s key business strengths has been our
intimate understanding of our market and our customers, our human
capital and our distinctive corporate culture. We have grown together with
Hong Kong for 50 years, and look forward to serving as “Hongkonger’s
Canteen” for generations to come.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

At this point, | must thank our former Executive Director Ms Lo Pik Ling,
Anita for her selfless dedication and countless contributions to the Group.
Under her guidance, the quick service restaurant business has maintained a
healthy leadership position in the Hong Kong market, while establishing a
solid foundation for continued, sustainable growth.

I would also like to thank our Board of Directors, business partners, staff,
investors and customers for growing together with our business over the
past decades. With all the key ingredients in place for the next 50 years of
growth, | remain strongly confident in the Group’s prospects for the future.

Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 June 2019
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Business Highlights
FHEE

Net Profit (HK$m)

wF (B8#ER)

The Group’s revenue for the year amounted to HK$8,494 million,
a 0.8% increase compared to the previous financial year. Profit
attributable to shareholders rose 28.9% to HK$590 million.

Our quick service restaurant and institutional catering businesses
focused on improving operational efficiency and targets to
expand its branch network after consolidation during the year.

Riding on successful development of key brands, the casual dining
business recorded a substantial increase in profit contribution to
the Group.

Mainland China operations delivered healthy and stable results,
and will continue to accelerate its network expansion pace in
Southern China.

A final dividend of HK65 cents per share is recommended
(FY2017/18: HK63 cents), with a total dividend payout ratio of
83.3% for the year.

Financial Growth

IR E

Net Profit & Earnings per Share Growth
aA R ERRAIE R

EHFEEWAESLUMBEEBITT B
B EE E 18 01 0.8% © AR ERFE(L & R E T+
28.9% £ 590 A& BT °

SEERBERNEERREFRNES
LEME  FRAKEERS  HEIEAD
[ERBIEARIE -

NEEREBRDEREIERE - Y&
ErABEERUARE N -

B TS ISR - SRR
T MR ER S, -

EEIKBERAREFRSSENW(ZZE
—+ /= N\EE :6381l) - FRNLAK
BEXE833% °

101 1.02 1.02
600 — —1.20
550 — —1.10
500 — — 1.00
450 — 090 @
400 — —080 Z
. —
_ - =R
350 070 § K
300 — —060 B =
@ "
250 — — 050 o3
0 &
200 — - 040 2
150 — 280 286 —030 £
_ 252 243 258 B B
100 219 0.20
50 — - 0.10
0 0

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
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CAFE DE CORAL

®

Café de Coral Group Key Strategic Businesses
AREEEFERIEMFER

Hong Kong

Casual Dining
BRAEER

10.7%

Hong Kong QSR

& Institutional Catering
EREREBEHMRMERE

73.8%

Mainland China
R Bl At

13.6%

Revenue Distribution
PNl

(for the year ended 31 March 2019)
k¥i CAFZA=t—BLERE) 4}

Others
Hith

1.9%

Total #225: 298
300
g;/g;m‘?; II No of new shops (Since 1 April 2018): 35

250 DEHE (EZZ—N\FHA—AR)
Total Operating Units: 465 200
EEENAY 150
(As of 31 March 2019) Total #8%4: 107
(BE=Z—NF=A=1+—H) 100

Total #8%24: 60 New shops
New shops A5 16

50 o5 3
0
Hong Kong QSR & Hong Kong Casual Dining Mainland
Institutional Catering BBKEER China
EERRENR FREIA it
RgBaRe
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SR E N i DT

INTRODUCTION AND HIGHLIGHTS

Operating against the backdrop of an increasingly competitive market, the
Group delivered solid, positive results during FY2018/19. Improvements in
operating efficiency and margins led to strong growth in profit during the
year under review, building on a steady foundation of stable revenue. The
recent years’ investment in internal operations is also delivering tangible
results.

With manpower costs firmly under control in our core quick service
restaurant (QSR) business, the Group was able to improve both margins
and profitability. Focusing on our Customer Journey, we rolled out the
Service Champion Campaign to enhance our customer service, as well as
technology upgrades to streamline the customer experience while improving
productivity.

The casual dining business successfully groomed its key brands to deliver a
meaningful profit contribution to the Group during the year under review.
Improvements to business fundamentals have received positive response
from customers, in turn driving same store sales growth.

The Group's operations in Mainland China continued to perform. The
business is healthy and stable, and is steadily growing in scale — with new
store openings more than doubling those of the previous year.

With investments in people now largely complete, combined with ongoing
internal improvement efforts, the Group is beginning to reap the benefits of
these strategic moves as profit growth accelerates. We remain confident in
the Group's business prospects for the foreseeable future.
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RESULTS OVERVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group increased revenue by 0.8%
to HK$8,493.9 million (FY2017/18: HK$8,427.4 million). Revenue by
business division is set out below:

EEBME

N

HE-_Z-AF=A=+—RHIFE AWK
AER08%ESABIEEBT(—_T—+/
—N\FE :84274E8BE L) - KEKRARE
EEDWT -

FY2018/19 FY2017/18
—2-N-hAh =N Change
FE FE #E
HK$'m HK$'m %
BEETT AE5T B

Hong Kong o

QSR and Institutional Catering RREFNMEIEBHR 6,264.4 6,301.9 (0.6)

Casual Dining REER 905.8 882.0 2.7

Others* Hifb* 171.8 167.3 2.7

Subtotal INEF 7,342.0 7,351.2 (0.1)
Mainland China B A 3 1,151.9 1,076.2 7.0
Group £ 8,493.9 8,427 .4 0.8

* Represents mainly income from food processing and distribution and rental income

Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit margin increased to 13.4% (FY2017/18: 12.4%), primarily
due to a decrease in the cost of raw materials and packing from 28.5%
of revenue in the last reporting year to 27.5% in the current year and firm
control of manpower expenses.

Other Gains/(Losses), Net

Other gains/(losses), net increased by HK$31.4 million, mainly due to a
decrease of impairment loss in property, plant and equipment by HK$29.5
million to HK$3.5 million (FY2017/18: HK$33.0 million).

*TEARBMTMDEAREEBA

ERIZE
EMREAZE134%(ZF—+ /) N\FEE:
12.4%) + EZRREM BT EK AR BRALG
A E— BB R E M 28.5% TR ERFEH
27.5% * [ERF A FRZIEHEE -

HugaR,/ (E5i8)
HihF:amF,(BE) EHA3M4E8EE T £
EHRYE  BEMEEREBEBRL 2958
EBAETEISEBREL(ZE—+/ —N\FE :
33.088%7T) °

AREEEFR AR 2018/19 Fik 11



Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses decreased 2.4% to HK$447.8 million (FY2017/18:
HK$458.8 million), mainly due to decrease of share based compensation
expenses by HK$27.4 million as no performance shares awarded had been
vested due to the non-attainment of the vesting targets.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased 6.4% to HK$129.8 million (FY2017/18:
HK$121.9 million). If excluding withholding tax on dividend of HK$17.9
million recorded in the last reporting year, the income tax expense would
increase 24.7%, which is commensurate with the growth of profit before
income tax.

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders

The Group's profit attributable to equity holders increased 28.9% to
HK$590.3 million (FY2017/18: HK$458.1 million), primarily due to
improvements in operating efficiency and profit margins.

Segment Results

Hong Kong segment results increased 11.7% to HK$884.7 million
(FY2017/18: HK$792.2 million), mainly due to improvement of gross profit
margin. Mainland China results increased 19.1% to HK$162.0 million
(FY2017/18: HK$136.0 million), mainly due to branch network expansion
and positive same store sales growth.

Basic Earnings Per Share
The Group’s basic earnings per share increased 29.1% to HK$1.02
(FY2017/18: HK$0.79).

Dividend

The Board is pleased to recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK65 cents per share (FY2017/18: HK63 cents), representing a total
dividend payout ratio of 83.3% for the year.
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BUSINESS ANALYSIS
QSR and Institutional Catering

During the year under review, revenue from the Group’s QSR and
institutional catering businesses decreased slightly by 0.6% to HK$6,264.4
million (FY2017/18: HK$6,301.9 million). The businesses maintained their
leadership positions in Hong Kong's market, and contributed 73.8% of the
Group’s total revenue for FY2018/19. The Group’s QSR and institutional
catering businesses had a total of 298 outlets as at 31 March 2019 (31
March 2018: 298).

Although the Hong Kong market remains very competitive, sentiment is
positive and the fast food segment continues to grow. In order to maximise
growth opportunities, the Group is maintaining its focus on improving all
parts of the Customer Journey. With the manpower investment programme
in previous years now largely complete, costs are stable and under control —

and margins are improving as a result.

EBDN

RRESRNEERE

CEFEAN  SERRRERNEBRREBLD
WWABEEL0.6% £6,2644B 8B T(ZE—+
S —N\EE :63019BEBT) ZEKEE
EMHBRIFEEA - hEEB=Z— )/ —N
FEBWART3.8% - EEREZE RFMELEER
REBHPEEEN _E—-hE=A=1+—H
B298M(ZE— \F=ZA=1+—H :298) °
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Consumers remained price sensitive and continued to be attracted by price
cuts and value promotions. Café de Coral fast food recorded flat same
store sales growth during the year under review. A store rationalisation
strategy saw the opening of 1 shop during the year, and 162 shops at year
end (31 March 2018: 167). With network consolidation now complete, the
Group expects to expand its network. 7 new outlets have been scheduled
to open in the months ahead.

Substantial effort has been invested to improve the Customer Journey and
dining experience, including introduction of a revamped customer service
model with emphases on quality, service, cleanliness and ambience. Café de
Coral fast food has also applied new technologies to increase operational
efficiency and stay abreast of changing consumer habits. Smart Ordering Kiosks
have been introduced at selected outlets, and a new Kitchen Video System has
been installed to improve efficiency and reduce waiting time for customers.
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BEORERTEER  BEMEHESBMNE—
EWBIN « RRYREREIBEFE NNEEH
BRERF - AFIUEBEERBE T - FAMRKRI
R FAERPIEHBER12E(ZZE—N
F=ZA=1t—H:167) - BEDEHEBE T
B EETEA BB - W EIEREE
AR 7 EHEE ©

BFENNE BTRE| MBERR 81
HITEPRBEBMCERN BIRMER - kS
K PIERBRMETE - KRERE TR ERH
B g ERE  ZHBETHESENE
o BMEETEMFIESIABBHERAMIE
WixRS WHEEBETSEER  RERBER

):?7(0



>

As part of our constant efforts to introduce new products to satisfy — FAIEHAHE L FHR - DPABEFT K - KR%
customers’ taste buds, Café de Coral fast food has revamped its key hero  REEF AL 2 E & - 00 8k B B BR
products with upgraded recipes and menu mixes, such as Teppan dishes 5 « BB & A SRR - @ AFAREE - B8R
with pastry-covered soup, as well as curry and hotpot series. Supported ~ ATMELE - BBEHEHE @ ELEAE R
by cross-media advertising campaigns, these promotions have been well ~ ARM » BB R —_ZT—\FHA Tﬁﬁ%ﬁgﬁ%
received by customers. A new customer loyalty programme was launched ~— BFETE]  AZE - 2 EEE KRN - K
in May 2018 and proved to be highly popular with end users, with a &R EILZEHHA Club 100 EATRRL - #E—2F
significant increase in membership. Club 100 Apps were subsequently — EiEAZ G ShFIEE

launched in the fourth quarter to further attract mobile users with more

frequent engagement.

AREEEFR AR +2018/19 Fii 15



The Group has strengthened Super Super Congee & Noodles brand
positioning as Hong Kong’s No. 1 leading neighbourhood chain, providing
nostalgic traditional and authentic Chinese cuisine (congee, noodles and wok-
fried dishes), building on enthusiastic response to the chain’s 20" Anniversary
promotion launched in August 2018. At the same time, a re-engineered menu
focusing on hero products — wonton noodles and congee — as well as popular
seasonal items including clay pot rice and hotpot, has helped to drive sales.

The Super Super Congee & Noodles brand recorded same store sales
growth of 2% during the year. Deliberately pacing growth to focus on
operational improvement, the Group ended the financial year with 49 stores
(31 March 2018: 50). Meal Delivery Service was implemented at dinner in
28 branches with warm response, and will be rolled out to all branches to
further improve customer satisfaction.

Asia Pacific Catering and Luncheon Star, the Group’s institutional
catering brands, retained their market leadership during the year. Faced
with keen market competition, Asia Pacific Catering reshuffled a number
of key contracts — ending the year with 87 operating units (31 March 2018:
81). Luncheon Star maintained healthy growth in revenue as Hong Kong'’s
largest student lunch service provider for 14 consecutive years. The business
pioneered new technology including the industry’s first mobile ordering
service, while building production capacity for future expansion.
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Casual Dining

The casual dining business presented a substantial increase in profit
contribution to the Group, riding on improved market penetration, same
store sales growth and customer loyalty. The business achieved revenue
of HK$905.8 million during the year under review, an increase of 2.7%
compared to the previous year (FY2017/18: HK$882.0 million). Following
rationalisation of the brand portfolio and branch network, the division
operated 60 shops at the end of the year (31 March 2018: 68).

The Group’s Chinese cuisine brands, Shanghai Lao Lao and Mixian Sense,
maintained sizeable networks and shop presence with 12 and 17 shops
at year end, respectively (31 March 2018: 14 and 15 shops, respectively).
Shanghai Lao Lao, our leading home grown brand, was successful in its
“must try” promotions and Star Chef collaborations during the year. Mixian
Sense, now a sizeable chain on its own with 3 more shops opened during
year, introduced QR code ordering to improve the customer experience
and operational efficiency, and also launched a new VIP programme to
encourage customer response.
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Non-Chinese cuisine brands continued to rationalise their branch networks
to improve performance. The Spaghetti House ended the year with 7
shops (31 March 2018: 9), and Oliver’s Super Sandwiches operated 13
shops at year end (31 March 2018: 15). The Spaghetti House continued
to build its brand as a preferred family restaurant through Star Chef
collaborations and other seasonal promotions. Meanwhile, the branding
programme at Oliver's Super Sandwiches yielded positive sales growth
in signature products across all key categories. Both brands benefitted from
menu re-engineering with enhanced ingredients, as well as renewed VIP
programmes to drive loyalty and repeat purchases.

The Group continued to fine-tune the business models of its franchised

brands, while exploring potential for future scalability.
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Mainland China Operations

The Mainland China market represents a major opportunity for the Group’s
business. Continuing last year's momentum, the Mainland China business
delivered strong performance during the year, achieving 7.0% growth in
revenue to HK$1,151.9 million (FY2017/18: HK$1,076.2 million), and same
store sales growth of 2%.

Building on management’s confidence in the market, the Group doubled
the number of store openings compared to the previous twelve months.
16 shops were opened during the year under review, ending the financial
year with 107 stores (31 March 2018: 97). Further accelerating the pace of
growth, there are plans to open an additional 20 shops in FY2019/20. With
natural synergies and ties to our home market of Hong Kong, the Group’s
business has organically evolved around the major markets of the Greater
Bay Area. We will continue to focus our efforts to capture the benefits
of growing urbanization in the region, especially in the nearby cities of
Guangzhou and Shenzhen.
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In addition to the stable growth of the dine-in business, the Group has
experienced healthy upside coming from rising online-to-offline (020)
delivery sales. While 020 sales are providing an exciting new channel for
future expansion, our business model remains focused on the dine-in sector.

Uplifting the value of our brand through investment in both hardware and
software, we rolled out our new sixth-generation (6G) store design to warm
customer response, and also launched a Customer Service Ambassador
programme to further enhance customer satisfaction. As an early adopter
of new technology, the Group has developed a new “virtual store” sales
channel featuring online ordering through WeChat, supported by JingDong
logistics delivery service.

KEYS TO SUCCESS
Brand Building

We continue to strategically differentiate our brand by enhancing our
Customer Journey. Through efforts such as our intensive Service Champion
Campaign, as well as introducing new and engaging store designs, we
continue to focus on the customer experience as a key component of our
brand.

Moving forward, the Group’s multi-brand strategy will be key to capturing
additional market share by offering consumers a greater variety of choice.
An example is our establishment at JP Plaza in Causeway Bay, where the
Group operates a number of outlets offering different types of cuisine —
appealing to both landlords and consumers. The Group continues to seize
opportunities to roll out along this concept in other locations in Hong Kong.

We have also worked to enhance our brand’s reputation and standing in the
community. As a responsible corporate citizen, our community efforts have
been shaped around three principles — fostering social integration through
activities such as our Community Spring Feast, nurturing young people
through support of events like Music Station, and promoting sustainable
living via efforts including our single-use plastic reduction campaign.

Now that the Group’s 50" Anniversary celebrations have concluded, we
are ready to focus on the challenges of the next 50 years. Connecting and
engaging with the community, we are leveraging our branch network to
build relationships directly with customers through our stores.

20 Café de Coral Holdings Limited « Annual Report 2018/19

REREREBRERZ RN - G LEEHE NI
% (020) XBIR22FIRE - #A020HER
AREGRRAETHE - BRANEHEAD
RFINZERENRELR ©

BAEEERENRETENRE @ B 5HE
iR EE - WHEHE2HNERR (6G) HER/E -
ESEELR - RAINED [P RBARE] 5
3 SEFHRMANREENEOHE - £
TS S| AFRI - B [EEFE ] HER
B BEUEBMERLIE  BARERWAX
RINE IR o

ok

B E R

] an
o R ER
EEREANRINEBEREEEURARBERES -
R AR BEERE] > U EEEE R

BERRARZE TR [RERETE]
ARSI AgG#HPIE R  REEESERRDY

e -

RERK  KENZ @KL SETRM
LEEE REMMTENAKMEE KR
BATSERENERILE » PlNHFIERE
BOERARBESGEESZRRE  BRESHEL
MEKER  RAXFINMBATEL - SEHE
EEge  BERMSNHEERAERERE
HidE o

BAMB IR MERE - E22EN TR
RA% - KREERBEENEELAR  RR=
ERRIE gE [ e SR flnE
BRI RS BB BFF - PIANSR [ KKE
18 A8 HEASELE - flaRdERE

RPBFIAA -

EEEBEXNIATRFHNENZBEMER
B EEE  BRIET—EL+F0R
ks - KREERtR - BHERTKE - &
NERDTERHE  BEREBRTELRERRE -



People Development
As of 31 March 2019, the Group had a workforce of 19,110 employees (31
March 2018: 18,940).

In support of operations’ revamped customer service model during the year,
intensive training and competition programmes were conducted across all
shops to reinforce the Group’s philosophy of customer service excellence.
To develop management bench strength for the future, the Group has
also launched booster camps for management — giving managers practical
training in leadership and people management skills to better implement the
“Quiality, Service and Cleanliness” guidelines. These concerted efforts from
top management to frontline staff have resulted in notable improvement in
customer experience and operational efficiency.

Our in-house training programmes continue to draw professional
recognition by the Qualification Framework (QF) Scheme of the Hong Kong
Council for Accreditation of Academic & Vocational Qualifications, with
our Professional Certificate in Train the Trainer course receiving QF Level
4 accreditation in September 2018 — the Group’s second programme to
achieve QF Level 4 accreditation. In Mainland China, the Group is investing
in frontline staff development, and building core management capability for
future growth.

The Group reviews internal equity and market benchmarking on pay level
regularly. Remuneration at all staff levels is based on individual experience,
qualifications, duties and responsibilities. Qualified employees are entitled to
participate in profit sharing bonus and performance incentive programmes
as well as share award and share option schemes.
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Network Expansion
As of 31 March 2019, the Group had a network of 358 stores in Hong
Kong and 107 stores in Mainland China.

In Hong Kong, an improved operation model and stronger profit margins —
combined with an enhanced brand mix — is enabling access to better shop
locations.

The Group is building its presence in all major regions and cities in Southern
China, taking advantage of rapidly increasing urbanization and organic
development opportunities as the business grows outward from Hong
Kong. In line with these goals, we have committed to an aggressive store
opening plan focused on Guangzhou and Shenzhen.

Supply Chain Management
Caring deeply about the food our customers eat, the Group emphasises
supply chain management across all markets and brands.

In Hong Kong, we have invested in systems and technology upgrades
throughout operational processes — from procurement, manufacturing,
storage and logistics — to enhance supply chain efficiency. In recognition of
our efforts, the Group was named the Diamond Enterprise Winner in GS1
Hong Kong’s Quality Food Traceability Scheme 2018 (2017: Gold Winner).
With a renewed focus on efficiency and traceability, the Group’s theme for
FY2019/20 is “Building on Quality”.

Our operations in Mainland China successfully implemented a new Branch
Management System developed from the system at the Group’s Hong Kong
Headquarters to enhance traceability and quality management, laying a
solid foundation in supply chain and store management.

Sustainability

Recognising our long-term efforts in sustainability, the Group was included
in the Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index for the fourth
consecutive year. We report our sustainability performance in greater detail
in the Company’s Sustainability Report 2018/19.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Position

During the year under review, the Group’s financial position remained
healthy. As of 31 March 2019, the Group recorded net cash of
approximately HK$836 million, with HK$782 million in available banking
facilities. The Group’s current ratio as of the same date was 1.4 (31 March
2018: 1.4), and the cash ratio was 0.9 (31 March 2018: 0.9). The Group
had no external borrowing (31 March 2018: nil) and a nil gearing ratio (ratio
of total borrowing less cash and cash equivalents to total equity) (31 March
2018: nil).

The Group’s return on equity for FY2018/19 was 17% (FY2017/18: 13%),
and return on assets was 13% (FY2017/18: 10%,).

Capital Expenditure and Commitment

During the year under review, the Group’s capital expenditure was HK$290
million (FY2017/18: HK$462 million). As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s
outstanding capital commitments were HK$580 million (31 March 2018:
HK$480 million).

Contingent Liabilities

As of 31 March 2019, the Company provided guarantees of approximately
HK$915 million (31 March 2018: HK$415 million) to financial institutions in
connection with banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries. The Group had
no charge on assets as of 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018: nil).

Financial Risk Management

With regard to foreign exchange fluctuations, the Group earned revenue
and incurred costs and expenses mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
while those of our Mainland China businesses were in Renminbi. Foreign
currency exposure did not pose a significant risk for the Group, but we will
remain vigilant and closely monitor our exposure to movements in relevant
currencies.
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OUTLOOK

Looking to the year ahead, we anticipate continued health in the Hong
Kong market, although the low unemployment rate may prove to be a
challenge in hiring. The Mainland China market is expected to remain a
driver of growth, albeit at a slower, more measured rate. The Group remains
confident in our management team and the execution capabilities of our
frontline staff to deliver continued improvement in the year ahead.

Although labour costs may prove to be a challenge with the incremental
rise in Hong Kong's minimum wage, the prospects for the Hong Kong QSR
business remain positive. The Group will continue to invest in the Customer
Journey and technology upgrades, while taking advantage of availability of
better shop locations to expand the branch network.

The casual dining business is actively seeking opportunities to roll out more
outlets under the Group’s multi-brand strategy, taking advantage of natural
synergies to increase future contributions to profit.

In Mainland China, the Group will capitalise on market opportunities to
open new outlets, focusing on Guangzhou and Shenzhen while expanding
our portfolio in second and third tier cities.

Having passed the major milestone of our 50 Anniversary, the Group is
ready to face the challenges of the coming decades with fresh enthusiasm
and sharper focus on the fundamentals behind business success.
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Directors and Senior Management

SEEZNEREEAE

Non-executive Directors

Chairman

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, aged 63, is the Chairman of the Company and
a member of the Nomination Committee. Mr Lo joined the Group in 1982
and had been an Executive Director since 1990 until his re-designation as
a Non-executive Director in April 2016. He was the Managing Director of
the Company from December 1997 to March 2012 and the Chief Executive
Officer from April 2012 to March 2016. As Chairman, Mr Lo is responsible
for leading and managing the Board to ensure that the Board effectively
operates and fully discharges its responsibilities. Mr Lo holds a Master’s
Degree in Chemical Engineering from Stanford University.

Mr Lo is the brother of Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, and a relative of Mr Lo Tak
Shing, Peter, Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan and Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, all
of whom are Directors of the Company. He is a director of Ardley Enterprises
(PTC) Limited and Victor Reach Investments Limited, each of which has
discloseable interests in the shares of the Company under the provisions of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, aged 66, joined the Group in 1982. Ms Lo has
been an Executive Director of the Company since 1990 except the period
from September 2016 to December 2017 which she was re-designated as
a Non-executive Director. She ceased to be an Executive Director in April
2019 and is currently a Non-executive Director. She has more than 30 years
of experience in the fast food industry. Ms Lo holds a Bachelor's Degree in
Social Sciences from The University of Hong Kong.

Ms Lo is the sister of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, and a relative of Mr Lo Tak
Shing, Peter, Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan and Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, all
of whom are Directors of the Company.
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Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 67, joined the Group in 1984 and
was appointed as a Director of the Company in 1988. Mr Chan led the
Group as Managing Director from 1989 to 1997 and served as the Executive
Chairman from 1997 to 2012. He was re-designated as a Non-executive
Director in April 2012 and served as the Chairman of the Company
from April 2012 to March 2016. Mr Chan is currently a member of the
Remuneration Committee. Having worked as a professional town planner
for various government bodies in Hong Kong and Canada, Mr Chan has
considerable experience in planning and management. Mr Chan holds a
Degree in Sociology and Political Science, a Master’s Degree in City Planning
from the University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate Degree in
Business Administration, and an Honorary Fellow from Lingnan University.

Mr Chan is the Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of
Marketing, a council member of the Hong Kong Management Association,
the Advisor of the Quality Tourism Services Association and an Adjunct
Professor of Hang Seng Management College.

In past years, Mr Chan was personally bestowed with the “The Stars of

Asia Awards”, the “Executive of the Year Awards”, the “Bauhinia Cup

Outstanding Entrepreneur Awards”, the “Directors of the Year Awards”,
the Honoree, Beta Gamma Sigma of the Hong Kong University of Science

and Technology and “Ernst & Young Entrepreneur of the Year”.

Mr Chan is currently an independent non-executive director of Starlite
Holdings Limited, Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited, Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
(International) Limited, Modern Dental Group Limited and Human Health
Holdings Limited and a non-executive director of Tao Heung Holdings
Limited, all of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

Mr Chan is a relative of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, Mr
Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, all of whom are Directors of
the Company.
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Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel, aged 65, joined the Group in 1984 and
has been a Non-executive Director of the Company since 1997. Mr Hui
is currently a member of the Audit Committee. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Social Sciences from the University of Hong Kong and a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from the Brunel University in the United
Kingdom.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael, BBS, JP, aged 61, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 1994 and is the Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee. Mr Choi is a Director and Senior Vice-President
of Henderson (China) Investment Company Limited. He has been in the real
estate industry for over 38 years with extensive knowledge and experience
in the real estate markets in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Currently,
he is the Vice-President of the Hong Kong Real Property Federation, a co-
opted member of Haven of Hope Christian Service and a member of Non-
subvented Service Governing Committee of Haven of Hope Christian
Service. Mr Choi graduated from the Business Management Department of
the Hong Kong Baptist College and obtained a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from the University of East Asia, Macau.

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey, aged 69, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 1994 and is the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. Mr Li is Chairman of IAM Holdings (Hong Kong)
Limited, a Hong Kong-based investment firm, and has extensive experience
in the fields of investment banking, merchant banking and capital markets.
He is a non-executive director of The Bank of East Asia, Limited, and an
independent non-executive director of Kunlun Energy Company Limited,
Kowloon Development Company Limited, Pokfulam Development Company
Limited and Tai Ping Carpets International Limited. The shares of all these
companies are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Mr Li holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from
Columbia University and a Bachelor’s Degree of Science in Civil Engineering
from Brown University.
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Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, SBS, JP, aged 63, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since July 2004 and is a member of
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr Kwok is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong, and is a Partner
of Kwok Yih & Chan, Solicitors. He is also qualified to practise as a solicitor
in Australia, England and Wales and Singapore. Mr Kwok is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, CPA
Australia and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
Mr Kwok graduated from the University of Sydney, Australia with Bachelor’s
Degrees in Economics and Laws respectively and a Master’s Degree in Laws.
He also obtained the Advanced Management Program Diploma from the
Harvard Business School. He has served regularly on Government boards
and committees. He is currently a member of the Committee on Real Estate
Investment Trusts of the Securities and Futures Commission and the Hospital
Government Committee of the Prince of Wales Hospital. Previously, he
served as Chairman of the Transport Advisory Committee and Independent
Police Complaints Council, Convenor of the Disciplinary Appeals Committee
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and Vice-Chairman of the
Consumer Coundil.

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert, BBS, aged 68, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director since January 2013 and is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee. Mr Au is the Special Advisor of BDO Limited, the Hong Kong
member firm of BDO International Limited. He has more than 40 years
of experience in the accountancy profession. Mr Au was the President of
the Council of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
from December 2007 to December 2008. He is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of
the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants. Mr Au is currently the
Chairman of Professional Services Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Trade
Development Council and a director of ZhongAn Virtual Finance Limited.

Mr Au is currently an independent non-executive director, the Chairman
of the Audit and Risk Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of AAC Technologies Holdings Inc., a company listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

28 Café de Coral Holdings Limited « Annual Report 2018/19

HMBEERE  REAESE AF@+ - S T=
o A-—TTENFEARBETARRELIFHR
TEF TRAEZZES HFHNZEBeRES
REGKE - SELERTBNEERN  BAF
EREMEBRZERA - RIFAFEM - &
R B N T DA R DN 2 R AR E AR © 3B
FERBAGAE BNEMEAMLE
RERBMEBEBHSEAMAgEREE -
BAEERENRMNBREKRE - X0 HIREKLE
BB ERBLBEMNOERBE LR -
THRAERGAEZHBE S RERRIZXE - 3
EECRZERNHARENREZES  RAE
FEMEEHERREeRHERERERESR
REEREBRIBRERREEZRE K
NEIBRARBEENEESLR M
BRGMBBRAALELFZECGARARE
BERBEEER -

ERALE WA NTA\K B-F
—=F - AREZERARRBEULIFNITE
= URERZBEEIE BALHE/BAEY
EREETMEFIBR 2R (BDOBRAR
REEFEBREM) BHIER - RESTHREAS
BT FLR  REVR-_ZETLF+ AR
ZT ) N\F+-_AHRMEEEEEAM G 2E
K- BREEEMAGEREE RMNEXS
MEAMAEEE  RAELBRABTEEFIER
REERGEAANZEEIRERLERS B
BRARIZES -

B S B AT R R A R AR 2 B IF
HITES  BERMEABRZEEEIRAFMEZE

BRE  RRRRBEMERXZMERARE
R LT o



Executive Directors

Chief Executive Officer

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter, aged 57, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and a director of most subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lo joined
the Group in 1996 and has been an Executive Director since 1998. Mr Lo
was appointed as the Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company in
September 2015 and has been the Chief Executive Officer since April 2016.
Mr Lo has performed key functions within the Group and led various major
projects for the growth and development of the Group’s business and
operations. As the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, Mr Lo leads the
overall management and strategic planning and development of the Group’s
businesses and operations. Mr Lo holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Electronic
Engineering & Physics from the Loughborough University of Technology,
a Master's Degree in Medical Physics from the University of Surrey, a
Doctorate’s Degree in Medical Physics from the University of London and an
Honorary Fellow from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr Lo is currently a non-executive director of Vitasoy International Holdings
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also a member of the Executive
Committee of Hong Kong Retail Management Association.

Mr Lo is a relative of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, Mr
Lo Ming Shing, lan and Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, all of whom are
Directors of the Company. He is a director of Wandels Investment Limited,
Verdant Success Holdings Limited and Sky Bright International Limited, each
of which has discloseable interests in the shares of the Company under the
provisions of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, aged 45, is an Executive Director and a member of
the Nomination Committee. He also serves as a director of most subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr Lo was a Non-executive Director of the Company from
2010 until his re-designation as an Executive Director in March 2016. Mr
Lo is in charge of property and branch development, project and facilities
management, quantity surveying and business analysis of the Group. He
had served as Advisor (Special Projects) and Manager (Food Manufacturing)
of the Group during the period from November 2003 to June 2009. Mr Lo
holds a Bachelor’s Degree of Arts, specialist in Economics from University of
Toronto and an Executive Master of Business Administration Degree from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr Lo is a relative of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita, Mr
Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, all of whom are
Directors of the Company. He is a director of LBK Holding Corporation and
MMW Holding Corporation, each of which has discloseable interests in the
shares of the Company under the provisions of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

Senior Management

Ms Leung Ho Ting, Piony, aged 48, joined the Group in February 2019
and is the Managing Director (Quick Service Restaurants Group) of the
Group. She also serves as a director of a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms Leung resumes full responsibility and leadership in providing
strategic vision, leading operation management and developing long term
business direction of the Group’s fast food business of Hong Kong region.
She has over 25 years of experience in retail and fast-moving consumer
goods industries across Asia Pacific region. Prior to joining the Group,
Ms Leung held senior management positions with leading multinational
corporations with extensive experience in general management, brand
marketing as well as strategic business development. Ms Leung holds a
Bachelor’s Degree of Arts majoring in Comparative Literature & Psychology
from The University of Hong Kong.
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Mr Yang Bin, James, aged 48, joined the Group in February 2016 and is
the Managing Director (China) of the Group. He also serves as a director
of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Yang is responsible for
strategic planning, business operation and market development of the
Group’s catering businesses in Mainland China and Macau. He has over
20 years of rich management experience gained from various international
corporations where he was responsible for leading corporate strategic
business development, formulating operation direction and expanding
business in Asia Pacific region. Mr Yang holds Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from Kellogg Business School, Northwestern University and
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.

Mr Lam Ming Fung, David, aged 50, joined the Group in April 2015 and
is the Senior General Manager (Casual Dining) of the Group. He also serves
as a director of most subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lam is responsible
for leading the overall management and development of the specialty
restaurants and casual dining businesses in Hong Kong. He has extensive
experience in business management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Lam
had worked for renowned organisation and international retail group
responsible for strategic business development, operation management,
marketing and product development and customer management. He holds
a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from University of Leicester.

Mr Ng Tsz Chiu, Ivan, aged 48, joined the Group in October 2013 and is
the General Manager (Supply Chain) of the Group. Mr Ng is responsible for
management and development of strategic procurement and supply chain
of the Group's operations in Hong Kong and Mainland China, as well as
overseeing the operation of the Group’s central food processing centres. He
has extensive experience in procurement management and has worked for
leading retail and international product distribution groups where he was
responsible for various strategic commercial and technical procurements.
Mr Ng holds a Bachelor’s Degree of Business from Queensland University of
Technology in Australia.
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Mr Lim Hung Chun, Mike, aged 55, joined the Group in January 2011 as
Chief Financial Officer. He also serves as a director of most subsidiaries of
the Company. With extensive experience in general management, corporate
finance and financial control all gained from top management positions
held in renowned corporations and firms, Mr Lim is responsible for the
overall oversight of the Group’s financial planning and strategy as well as
headquarters management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Lim held various
general management positions and directorships in listed and private
conglomerates with operations spanning key international markets since
1990. Mr Lim holds an Executive Master of Business Administration Degree
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.
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. Corporate Governance Report

EEREE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) and management
aspire to a high standard of corporate governance and constantly strive
for a responsible and value-driven management focusing on safeguarding
and enhancing interest and value of the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) as well as the long-term sustainability of the Group.

Shareholders &
Stakeholders
BRRFM0DE

Sustainability &
Growth
AFEERERRLRE Board & Board
Committees

. ESRREER
BETZEE

People & Planning
ANERKFE

Management Board

A SEEE

Risk Management

RRER

Corporate
- Management =
TEERE

Compliance with Corporate Governance Code

Adhering to the principles of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code") set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”), the Directors’ Handbook of
Corporate Governance adopted by the Board guides the Group’s corporate
governance framework and practices. For the year ended 31 March 2019,
the Company complied with all code provisions of the CG Code and
adopted the recommended best practices of the CG Code insofar as they
are relevant and practicable.

Key practices under the Group’s corporate governance framework are set
out in this report.
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Board of Directors

The Company is headed by the Board which assumes the responsibility for
leadership and control and be collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board conducts periodically evaluation of its performance with a
view to enhancing the Board’s effectiveness and corporate governance.
The latest Board evaluation conducted by an external professional advisor
was completed in June 2018. Areas of improvement were identified and
implemented to strengthen the Board’s operations.

Directors

The Board currently comprises ten members, including four Non-executive
Directors, four Independent Non-executive Directors and two Executive
Directors (collectively, the “Directors”) as follows:

Non-executive Directors

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chairman)
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita Mo

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert

Executive Directors
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan

Note: Re-designated as Non-executive Director with effect from 1 April 2019

Biographies, including relationships among members of the Board are set
out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section of the Company’s
Annual Report 2018/19.
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The Board has a balanced composition of Executive and Non-executive
Directors with each Director having sound knowledge, experience and
expertise contributing to the successful performance and development
of the Group. All Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the Shareholders and have exercised their duties of care,
skill and diligence. In situation where certain areas of expertise/advice are
required, external advisers or consultants shall be engaged to advise the
Directors at the Company’s expenses. Comprehensive liability insurance
coverage is in place to provide protection to the Company, the Directors and
senior management.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr Lo Hoi
Kwong, Sunny and Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter respectively. Their respective
responsibilities are clearly established and set out in the charter adopted by
the Board (the “Board Charter”).

The Chairman, being a Non-executive Director, provides leadership for the
Board and is accountable to the Board ultimately. The Chairman takes the
lead to encourage Directors to make active contribution to the Board’s
affairs and ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the Company.

The Chief Executive Officer represents the management of the Company
and is accountable to the Board. His main responsibilities include overseeing
the implementation of the Group’s strategies, objectives and policies as
well as monitoring day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses and
operations.

Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors and the Independent Non-executive Directors
give the Board the benefit of their skills, expertise, varied background
and experiences. Through active participation in Board meetings and
serving on various Board Committees, the Non-executive Directors and the
Independent Non-executive Directors bring in independent judgment and
make valuable contributions to the effective direction and strategic decision-
making of the Group.
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The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from
each of the four Independent Non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee has assessed during the year the independence of each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors based on the guidelines as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considered them to be independent.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company’s Board Diversity Policy sets out its approach to achieve and
maintain its diversity through consideration of a number of measurable
objectives including skills, professional experience, cultural and educational
background, gender, age, as well as other attributes and strengths that are
required for the Company’s business from time to time. Board appointments
are made on a merit basis and candidates are considered against objective
selection criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
The Board has delegated the Nomination Committee to review the Board
Diversity Policy on a regular basis, make recommendations on measurable
objectives for achieving diversity of the Board as appropriate and monitor
the progress on achieving the objectives.

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted specific procedures for identifying, assessing and
nominating suitable candidates to the Board for appointment as a new
director of the Company in addition to the incumbents or to fill a vacancy.
Nomination to the Board shall be based on merit and consideration of
objective selection criteria developed by the Nomination Committee in light
of the needs and desires of the Board as well as the Company’s business
and strategies. Selected individuals shall be evaluated against the desired
criteria with consideration of the following factors:

o skills and knowledge

o related business / financial acumen and experience

o leadership and communication capabilities

o cultural background and personality

° integrity and reputation

o other commitments, including directorships in other listed companies
and public organisations

o independence criteria of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (applicable
for appointment of independent non-executive directors)

o other attributes and strengths, as appropriate
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

In compliance with the requirements under the Listing Rules and the Bye-
laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”), (i) any Director who is appointed
to fill a casual vacancy is subject to election by Shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment; and (ii) all Directors should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and are eligible for re-
election.

All Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company have been appointed for a specific term subject to retirement by
rotation as required by the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Development
Every newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive induction package
to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the operations, business
and governance policies of the Group. In addition, our external legal adviser
meets with the new Director to ensure that he/she is fully aware of the
responsibilities as a director under statute and common law, the Listing
Rules, applicable legal requirements and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors recognise that continuous professional development is critical
for them to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains relevant. Directors receive
from senior management and the Company Secretary regular updates and
presentations on developments to the Group’s business and changes to the
statutory and regulatory requirements to facilitate the Directors’ discharge
of their responsibilities. The Company organises training and briefing
sessions regularly for the Directors to help them keep abreast with the
Group’s business and operation as well as developments of regulatory and
compliance requirements.
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Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous improvement
programmes held by external bodies at the expense of the Company. All

ARABEEE2HINERIBEBR 2 HEER
sz WAIERBER - MAESHEEHA

Directors are required to provide the Company with their training record on RARMREEE 2B IL 8 - FAEFFIIL

a regular basis. Summary of Directors’ training records for the year is set out SHNT

below:

Directors B=E Training Areas "°'®
35| g ()

Non-executive Directors FERITES

Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chairman) ERNSE(EE) a, b, cd

Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita EEBLL a, b cd

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BRAA S ab,cd

Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel FFREE S a, b, cd

Independent Non-executive Directors BUFRITES

Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael FOEM A a, b, cd

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey FEESE a,b,cdeg

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry SO S a,b,cdef

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert &M A& a, bcd

Executive Directors WITES

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter (Chief Executive Officer) BIEASL A (BEHITE) a,b,cd

Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan B ES a, b cd

Note: Training relating to (a) business development update of the Group; (b) corporate governance/
risk management; (c) legal or regulatory update; (d) accounting / financial reporting; (e)
business management; (f) information technology and (g) capital market / taxation

The Board and Management

The Board Charter sets out the duties and powers of the Board as well as
the roles and responsibilities of the Directors, the Chairman of the Board,
the Chief Executive Officer and the Management Board.

The Board is vested with duties and accountability to Shareholders
regarding management of the Group in addition to those powers and
authorities conferred upon it under the Bye-laws. The role of the Board is to
provide overall strategic direction for the Group and effective oversight of
management. The Board Charter sets out a schedule of matters reserved to
the Board which mainly include the following:

e Approval of strategic and business plans and financial budgets of the
Group;
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o Succession planning, appointment and remuneration of Directors,
Chief Executive Officer and senior management;

o Approval of significant transactions and investments and major
financial matters;

o Ensuring risk management and internal control systems of the Group;

e Approval of Company’s announcements, circulars and reports,
including interim and annual results announcements and reports; and

o Appointment or removal of external auditor.

The Board has delegated to the Management Board the authority to
manage the day-to-day affairs of the Group. The Management Board
is headed by the Chief Executive Officer and its members include all the
Executive Directors, the Chief Financial Officer and such other senior
executives of the Group as nominated by the Chief Executive Officer and
agreed by the Board. When the Board delegates aspects of its management
and administration functions to management, clear directions are given
as to the limits of the authority delegated, in particular, the circumstances
where management should report to the Board before making decisions or
entering into any commitments on behalf of the Group. The Board reviews
its delegation of responsibilities to the Management Board from time to
time to ensure that they remain appropriate to the need of the Group and
its business. Principal functions that are delegated to the Management
Board include the following:

o Development and implementation of corporate strategy, business
plans and financial budgets;

o Approval of transactions, investments and financial matters within the
limit delegated by the Board;

o Management of day-to-day operations of the Group;

o Development, implementation and monitoring of risk management
and internal control;

o Development of human resources policies and succession planning of
executives; and
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o Ensuring the Board and its Committees are provided with sufficient
and relevant information on a timely basis in relation to the Group’s
business and financial performance.

Board Committees

The Board has established the Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee to assist the Board to discharge its
functions. Each Committee has specific written terms of reference which
sets out clearly the Committee’s duties and authority. The terms of reference
of the Board Committees are published on the websites of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Committees are provided with sufficient resources to perform their
duties, including the management support and engagement of independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense. The Committees report to
the Board on their decisions or recommendations and maintain an effective
and constructive communication with the Board.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee currently comprises the following five Directors
with majority members being Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey
(Chairman of the Committee)

Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Independent Non-executive Director

Independent Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny Non-executive Director and Chairman
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan Executive Director

The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing at least
annually the structure, size and composition (including skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board and make recommendations on any proposed

changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.
The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year when the
following key issues were reviewed and considered and recommendations

were made to the Board where appropriate:

° 2018 Board evaluation results;
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e The structure, size and composition of the Board with due regard of
the Board Diversity Policy,

o Independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors; and

o Re-election of Directors for Shareholders’ approval at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 7 September 2018.

In the annual review during the year, the Nomination Committee
considered the current structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board appropriate for leading and promoting the success of the Group’s
development.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises the following four
Directors with majority members being Independent Non-executive
Directors:

Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael
(Chairman of the Committee)

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael*

Independent Non-executive Director

Independent Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director

*  Appointed with effect from 8 October 2018

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for making
recommendations to the Board regarding the Group’s policy and structure
for remuneration of Directors and senior management and the specific
remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior management.
Remuneration of Directors and senior management is determined
with reference to duties and responsibilities of the role, experience and
performance of the individuals as well as the prevailing market conditions.
Remuneration of Executive Directors is structured to align with the long-
term interest of the Company with significant proportion of remuneration
linked to corporate and individual performance.
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Two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held during the
year when the following key issues were reviewed and considered and
recommendations were made to the Board where appropriate:

o Employment contract renewal and remuneration package of Chief
Executive Officer;

° Remuneration package of Executive Directors and senior management;

o Review of Director’s fee of Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors; and

o Share award proposal under the Company’s Share Award Scheme.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises the following five Directors with
majority members being Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert
(Chairman of the Committee)

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael
Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel*

Independent Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director

*  Appointed with effect from 8 October 2018

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing the financial
information of the Company and overseeing the financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems as well as corporate

governance functions.

Three meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year when the
following key issues were reviewed and considered and recommendations
were made to the Board where appropriate:

o Independence of the external auditor and engagement of external
auditor;

o External auditor's remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit
services;
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e Audit findings by external auditor and the related management
responses as well as development in accounting standards and its
effects on the Group;

° Annual and interim results announcements and financial statements;

o Internal audit plan, risk management and internal control performance
as well as effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems;

o Corporate governance practices, compliance with CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report;

o The Group’s continuing connected transactions; and

o Adequacy of resources, qualifications, experience of staff, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting as well as internal audit functions.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two private sessions with the
external auditor and external internal audit consultant respectively without
presence of the management.

Board and Board Committee Meetings

Regular Board and Board Committee meetings are scheduled a year ahead
to facilitate maximum attendance by the Directors. Formal notices of at
least 14 clear calendar days are given in respect of regular meetings. For
special Board or Board Committee meetings, reasonable notices are given.
Arrangement is in place to invite Directors to include matters in the agenda
for regular meetings.

Agenda of the meetings and the accompanying papers for regular Board
and Board Committee meetings are sent in full to Directors at least three
clear calendar days before the date of the meetings.

Minutes of Board and Board Committee meetings record in sufficient
details the matters considered and decision reached, including any concern
raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and final versions
of minutes are sent to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time
after the meetings and kept by the Company Secretaries.
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During the year, the Board held four regular meetings at approximately
quarterly intervals and a Strategy Day for Directors to revisit and align views
on the Group’s strategic directions. Directors’ attendance of the Board
Meetings, Board Committee Meetings, Annual General Meeting and other
meetings delegated by the Board held during the year ended 31 March
2019 are set out below:

FR - BERBITTHATHER (WEFET
—R)UAR—REBHEERD  BEREEER
SERRBARTIELAE SEFREEZ
E-NEFZAZ+—BLFERTZEERT
# EERETZEEERE REBAFREK
HZEEREE R L RLEHIINT

Number of meetings attended/held during the year

ERR/ BRZERRY
Budget
Deliberation
Nomination Remuneration Audit Working Annual
Board Strategqy ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Group General
Meeting Day Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EZR B REZEE yMzEg ENERE RERIIE RRAF
L ¥R B 83 EE EE g
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny BRtEE 4/4 17 7 N/A 1EH N/A MER 71 17
(Chairman) (%)
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita BEENL 4/4 1" N/A TER N/A T N/A TER 11 n
Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael RIS L4 44 1/1 N/A TE 79 NATEE 101 1/1
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel FRERE 4/4 1N N/A NER N/A R 1710 17n 1N
Independent Non-executive Directors B 5172 %
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael EEREE 4/4 17N 17N 20 3R N/A g 17N
Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey ZEERE 4/4 1" 11 22 33 N/A MEA I
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry AHES 4/4 1/1 11 22 33 NAMER 1/1
Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert BEBDLE 4/4 1N N/A NER N/A R 33 N/A R 17N
Executive Directors BiTE%
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter BEALLE 4/4 1/1 N/A RN N/A TR N/A T 1 1/1
(Chief Executive Officer) (BEHTE)
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan BRASE 4/4 7 7 N/A AR N/A MER 7 7
Notes: BT

(a) Remuneration Committee held one meeting subsequent to Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael’s
appointment as a committee member during the year.

(b) Audit Committee held one meeting subsequent to Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel’s appointment as
a committee member during the year.
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Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the Group’s
financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flow for the reporting period.
The Board is aware that its responsibilities to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extend to annual and interim reports, reports to
regulators, other inside information and financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules as well as information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.

Management provides the Board and its Committees with adequate
information in a timely manner to enable the Directors to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put before the Board
for approval. Each Director has separate and independent access to the
Company’s senior management for inquiries and additional information.

External Auditor
A statement by the external auditor about their reporting responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor’s Report contained in the Company’s
Annual Report 2018/19.

The Company has adopted a policy on engagement of external auditor
for non-audit services. The external auditor may provide certain non-audit
services to the Group as permitted under the policy provided that the
external auditor’s independence of audit work shall not be impaired. The
Audit Committee reviews the nature, size and proportion of non-audit
service fees as to the total service fees of the external auditor on an annual
basis.

For the year under review, the remuneration paid to the Company’s auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as follows:

BERZE

B 75 B ¥R
ESERNEARERBARE M HHRE
AE B M A IE = BR A 62 B 70 B 3R A 2 75
RILA R R A8 R IR & R BN © B E S B
BE RMEEERI2HE  RIELHHRAR
EATHREZEMARERRMBER - UK
RIBZOIREATREZEN  EEZRMTH
AR BN SN IERNIERE -

EEEBERAETRLAEE NTZEGRMHTE
B MREFUARXTEZRILEZIMT
KEMERHELRAMIEFHE - SEFTBTEE
RRBIZ2BREEAE - AMELE#HMERE
— B

SNES R A B
SN BRI RS 2 IR E (TAF 2 BEAHD)
RAVAT] 2018/19 3R 2 B LM% 79 o

ARRE RN —IAA R A SNSRI R 1 3F
BT 2 BUR » JNEAZ BRED Al FE BUR L/ 88
B IR R L IR BARTS - T REF B IR M
REURBR 2B - ERRE@RFRAIN
BB RS A BB IRG & AR 2 3FEH
RIS MEE ~ RRREEH -

REBEFER » NRAB N E R GES
SRR EBAT EHIT -

Fee paid/ payable

Type of services R%EE Bt ENER
HK$'000

FET

Audit services Z RS 3,939
Non-audit services* IERZEARTE * 598
Total st 4,537

*  Include mainly advisory services on taxation and information system

* IREEAMRAREMRSNEARE
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Risk Management and Internal Control

Maintaining sound risk management and internal control systems is pivotal
to the fulfillment of the Group’s business objectives and its long-term
sustainable growth. The Board has an overall responsibility for evaluating
and determining the nature and extent of the risks according to the Board's
risk appetite in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring
that the Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems to safeguard Shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets. To this end, the Board continuously
reviews and makes improvements in its risk management and internal
control systems.

Risk Management Structure and Process

The risk management and internal control systems of the Company are
founded on internationally recognised standard and designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives of
the Group and can provide reasonable, but no absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The systems are made of by two essential
features — the risk governance structure and risk management process.

Risk Governance Structure — The Group’s risk governance structure
is based on the “3 lines of defence” model comprised of day-to-day
operational management and control, risk and compliance oversight, and
independent assurance. The enterprise risk management (“ERM") policy
formalised by the Group clearly defines the roles and responsibilities of
each of the multiple layers of the structure, including the Board, Audit
Committee, Management Board, department and operation heads as well
as Internal Audit.

Board
BEERH

1st Line of Defense: 2nd Line of Defense:

Risk Content Risk Process
Accountability Accountability
E-EBBHE: FEoEBE
BEBRAREE BB REE

Department and operation heads
BPAREELE HERITEFENERER

— Day-to-day management control -
and internal control measures
AEEREE R AT

R A R B
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The Audit Committee, delegated by the Board, provides oversight and B3 A
review on risk management, financial reporting and internal control system. B 7%
The Company’s Internal Audit team, co-sourced with external consultant, VAN

is an independent function reporting directly to the Audit Committee. It
provides independent, objective, assurance and consulting services on risk

management and internal control.

Risk Management Process — The Group’s ERM approach is a structured
mechanism and a continuous process of identifying, evaluating, prioritising,
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Identify potential risks of key processes
at least annually
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The ERM adopted by the Group is embedded in our strategy development,
business planning and day-to-day operations. The Group adopts a control
and risk self-assessment methodology and continuously assesses and
manages its risk profile on a regular basis. The ERM system uses risk
indicators and red flags to monitor the priority risks identified. Risk owners
are required to submit risk alerts with risk mitigation plan promptly and
regular risk reports are presented to the Management Board and Audit
Committee for ongoing review and monitoring. The key risks identified,
managed and monitored during the year included management succession,
brand management, business development, food safety, site acquisition
and retention as well as supply chain management. Action plans were
formulated and implemented during the year to address the areas of
concern effectively.

Annual Review of System Effectiveness

The Board, through the Audit Committee, had conducted annual review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 March 2019. The review covered all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls. Heads of
key business units and functional departments are required to confirm the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system of their
responsible areas during the year. The Board has received a confirmation
from the Management Board on the effectiveness of the systems. No
significant areas of concern have been identified and the Board considered
the systems effective and adequate.

During the annual review, the Audit Committee has also considered
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s internal audit, accounting and
financial reporting functions.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Group seeks to conduct its business honestly and with integrity at all
times. A Protocol on Malpractice Reporting and Investigation is in place
to provide guidance to our employees and business partners who may,
from time to time, need to raise issues relating to the Group in confidence
and to ensure that they can raise any matters of genuine concern, in the
knowledge that they will be taken seriously and that the matters will be
investigated appropriately and regarded as confidential.
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Under the Group's Protocol on Malpractice Reporting and Investigation,
employees and business partners may raise their concern by sending their
malpractice reports to the Head of Internal Audit who reports directly to the
Audit Committee on receipt and investigation of malpractice reports. For
malpractice reports concerning any member of the Management Board,
informants may make direct reports to the Chairman of Audit Committee.

Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of Directors of the Company, all
Directors have confirmed that they had complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2019.

The Board has also adopted written guidelines based on the Model Code
for relevant employees of the Group in respect of their dealings in the
Company’s securities.

Inside Information

The Company takes seriously of its obligations under the Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") and the Listing Rules with respect
to procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination
of inside information. The Group's Disclosure Policy sets out guidelines
and procedures to the Directors and officers of the Group to ensure
inside information of the Group is disseminated to the public in equal
and timely manner. Under the Disclosure Policy, the Company’s Disclosure
Team comprising Executive Directors and members of senior management
have the overall delegated authority to decide whether the information
reported is inside information and requires disclosure and to refer the
subject matter to the Board for approval. Measures are in place to preserve
the confidentiality of inside information and to ensure that its recipients
recognise their obligations to maintain it confidential. In communicating
with external parties, only designated officers are authorised to respond to
enquiries in allocated areas of issues. Communication is held regularly for
officers to facilitate their understanding and compliance with the policy.
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Company Secretary

Company Secretaries of the Company report to the Board and also to the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer on day-to-day duties
and responsibilities. Company Secretaries are responsible for supporting
and advising the Board on governance matters. All Directors have access
to the advice and service of the Company Secretaries to ensure that Board
procedures, all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The Company Secretaries complied with the professional training
requirement under the Listing Rules during the year.

Communication with Shareholders and
Shareholders’ Rights

Dividend Policy

The Company endeavours to enhance returns on shareholder investment
by way of, inter alia, distribution of regular and stable dividends. Guided
by the Dividend Policy adopted by the Board, the Company’s dividend
payout amount and frequency shall be based on the Group’s profit available
for distribution and shall make reference to historical payout ratios and
amounts to achieve consistency in dividend distribution. The Board shall take
into account all relevant circumstances when it decides on the Company’s
dividend distribution, including but not limited to, the Group’s business
performance, operating results, cash flow working capital requirement and
business development plans as well as general market condition and other
internal and external factors that the Board may consider relevant. Dividend
payment shall normally be in the form of cash, unless the Board resolves
otherwise.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company has established Shareholders” Communication Policy to
ensure proactive communication with Shareholders and keep Shareholders
informed of balanced and understandable information about the Company
in a factual and timely manner. The Policy also serves to govern the
Company’s open and regular dialogue with Shareholders, fund managers,
analysts and the media through effective corporate communication system
covering various communication channels including Shareholders’ meetings,
corporate’s publications and website, press and analyst conferences.
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Shareholders’ Meeting

At the last annual general meeting of the Company held on 7 September
2018, the Chairman of the Board and other Board members, including
chairmen and representatives of the Board Committees as well as the
external auditor were present to communicate with Shareholders.
Procedures for the poll voting on the proposed resolutions were explained
at the meeting by the Chairman. The Company's Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, acted as
scrutineer to ensure the votes were properly counted and the poll results
were published on both the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

Except for the annual general meeting, the Company did not convene any
other Shareholders’ meeting during the year ended 31 March 2019.

Shareholders’ Rights

Subject to the applicable laws and regulations, the Listing Rules and the Bye-
laws, Shareholders may convene general meetings of the Company and put
forward proposals at general meetings. The procedures for Shareholders to
convene a special general meeting, put forward proposals at Shareholders’
meetings and propose a person for election as a director of the Company
are available on the website of the Company at www.cafedecoral.com.

Shareholders may also send their enquiries and concern to the Board
by addressing them to the Company Secretary of the Company at the
Company's head office at 10th Floor, Café de Coral Centre, 5 Wo Shui
Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. Shareholders can also
make enquiries to the Board directly at general meetings.

Constitutional Documents

The Company’s Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws are available on
the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. During
the year ended 31 March 2019, there was no change to the Memorandum
of Association and Bye-laws of the Company.
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Investor Relations

Management of the Company regularly meets with institutional investors,
financial analysts and financial media and provides updates on the business
progress and recent developments of the Company. The Company has
also participated in investor summits, conferences and corporate days to
enhance communication with the investment community. Investors are
welcomed to send their enquiries to our Investor Relations Department at
ir@cafedecoral.com or browse the Company’s website for the latest
information of the Group.
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Directors’ Report
EFRWmE

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of Café de Coral Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group
is principally engaged in operation of quick service restaurants (“QSR")
and institutional catering, casual dining chains, as well as food processing
and distribution in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The activities of the
principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group recorded stable revenue and strong growth in profit attributable
to shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2019. During the year, the
core QSR business focused on improving the Customer Journey and in-store
technology upgrades to enhance operational efficiency and customers’
dining experience. Our casual dining business achieved substantial profit
contribution to the Group as a result of the successful development of its
key brands. Mainland China operations accelerated its new store openings
and continued to deliver healthy growth. The “Management Discussion
and Analysis” section in the Company’s Annual Report 2018/19 provides
a detailed business review of the Group’s performance for the year with
analysis using financial key performance indicators as well as discussion on
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and business development
outlook.

Together with the Annual Report 2018/19, the Company publishes its
standalone Sustainability Report which discloses the Group’s sustainability
performance in four key areas, namely, Total Customer Satisfaction, Focus
on People, Investing in Our Community and Resource Optimisation for the
year ended 31 March 2019. The report discusses in detail the Company’s
environmental policies and performance as well as our relationship and
continuous engagement through various channels with our customers,
employees, suppliers and other key stakeholders who have a significant
impact on the Group.
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Business Review (Continued)

The Group conducts its business in compliance with all applicable laws
and regulations and integrates industry best practices into our operations
where appropriate. Details of the Group’s compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group’s business
and operations are set out in the Sustainability Report 2018/19 and the
Corporate Governance Report in the Annual Report 2018/19.

The relevant discussions in the Company’s Annual Report and Sustainability
Report for the year ended 31 March 2019 as set out above form part of this
Directors’ Report.

Results and Appropriations

Results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 83 of the Company’s Annual Report 2018/19.

During the year, an interim dividend of HK19 cents per share was paid. The
Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK65 cents per
share, totaling approximately HK$380,603,000 to the shareholders whose
names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on 9 September
2019. The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on
3 September 2019 (“AGM"). Details of dividends for the year ended 31
March 2019 are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2019, pursuant
to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to approximately
HK$854,794,000.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the percentage of sales or purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers was less than
30%.

Principal Investment Properties

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes are set out
on page 213 of the Company’s Annual Report 2018/19.
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Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations totaling
HK$663,000.

Share Capital

During the year, no shares of the Company were issued on exercise of
share options under the Company’s share option schemes. Details of the
movements of share capital and share options of the Company during the
year are set out in Notes 20 and 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the Company’s share option schemes as disclosed in Note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the
year.

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 214 to 216 of the Company’s
Annual Report 2018/19.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws
and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

During the year ended 31 March 2019, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed the Company’s listed
securities, except that the trustee of the Company’s share award scheme
purchased on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”) a total of 570,224 shares of the Company at a total
consideration of about HK$10.8 million to satisfy the award of shares to
selected participants pursuant to the terms of the rules and trust deed of
the Share Award Scheme.
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Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants or
Similar Rights

Other than the share option schemes described in this report, the Company
had no outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights
as at 31 March 2019. Save as disclosed in this report, there has been no
issue or exercise of any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar
rights during the year.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Non-executive Directors
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny (Chairman)
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita Mt

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael

Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert

Executive Directors
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan

Note: Re-designated as Non-executive Director on 1 April 2019

In accordance with Bye-law 109(A) of the Company’s Bye-laws and the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, Mr Choi Ngai Min,
Michael, Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan shall retire by
rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
Information on Directors proposed for re-election will be set out in the
circular to shareholders of the Company accompanying the resolutions to
re-elect them at the AGM.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors and officers
of the Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.
Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Directors and the officers
of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets of the Company which may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duties. The
Company has maintained liability insurance to provide appropriate cover for
the directors and officers of the Group.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts

Saved as disclosed in this report and “Related Party Transactions” in Note
36 to the consolidated financial statements, no transaction, arrangement
or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts

No contract for the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year ended 31
March 2019 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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Share Option Schemes

2003 Scheme

Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted by the Company on 24

September 2003 (the “2003 Scheme”), the Company might grant options

to eligible participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company

subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. The Company had

granted options to certain employees of the Group (including Executive

Directors of the Company) pursuant to the 2003 Scheme. Summary of the

2003 Scheme is as follows:

Purpose

Participants

Total number of ordinary
shares available for issue
and the percentage of
the issued shares that it
represents as at the date
of this report

Maximum entitlement of
each participant

To grant incentives for retaining and
rewarding eligible participants for
their contributions to the business and
development of the Group

Employees (whether full-time or part-
time), Executive Directors, Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, suppliers and customers
of the Group and consultants, advisers,
managers, officers and corporations that
provide research, development or other
technical support to the Group

255,000 ordinary shares representing
0.04% of the issued shares as at the
date of this report

In any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the shares in issue
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Share Option Schemes (Continued)
2003 Scheme (Continued)

Period within which the
securities must be taken up
under an option

Minimum period for which
an option must be held
before it can be exercised

Amount payable on
acceptance of the option

Basis of determining the
exercise price

The remaining life of
the scheme

Unless otherwise specified in the
offer document, a period of five years
commencing on the date on which an
option becomes exercisable and expiring
on the last day of the five-year period
save that such period shall not expire
later than ten years from the date of
grant

Unless otherwise specified in the
offer document, there is no general
requirement that an option must be held
for any minimum period before it can be
exercised

HK$1.00

Not less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant, which must be a business
day; (i) the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Company’s share

The 2003 Scheme expired on
24 September 2013
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Share Option Schemes (Continued)
2012 Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme upon the passing of a
shareholders’ resolution on 11 September 2012 (the “2012 Scheme”).
Pursuant to the 2012 Scheme, the Board may grant options to the eligible
participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company subject to the
terms and conditions stipulated therein. As of the date of this report, no
share options had been granted by the Company under the 2012 Scheme.
Summary of details of the 2012 Scheme is as follows:

Purpose To grant incentives for retaining and
rewarding eligible participants for
their contributions to the business and
development of the Group

Participants Employees, Executive Directors, Non-
executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, suppliers
and customers of the Group and
consultants, advisers, managers, officers
and corporations that provide research,
development or other technical support
to the Group

Total number of ordinary 57,182,403 ordinary shares representing
shares available for issue 9.77% of the issued shares as at the
and the percentage of date of this report

the issued shares that it
represents as at the date
of this report

Maximum entitlement of In any 12-month period shall not exceed
each participant 1% of the shares in issue
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Share Option Schemes (Continued)
2012 Scheme (Continued)

Period within which the
securities must be taken up
under an option

Minimum period for which
an option must be held
before it can be exercised

Amount payable on
acceptance of the option

Basis of determining the
exercise price

The remaining life of
the scheme

Such period shall be determined by the
Board and specified in the letter to the
grantee, which may be varied by the
Board in accordance with the terms of
the 2012 Scheme, provided that it shall
not under any circumstances exceed
ten years from the date of grant of the
relevant option

The Board may, in its discretion,
determine the time or period when the
right to exercise the option in respect of
all or some of the shares the subject of
the option will vest

HK$1.00

Not less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant, which must be a business
day; (i) the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Company’s share

The 2012 Scheme remains in force until
10 September 2022 unless otherwise
terminated under the terms of the 2012
Scheme
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Share Option Schemes (Continued)

Movement of Share Options Granted
Details of movements of the share options granted under the 2003 Scheme

B HR kg 8l ()
CREBDHEZZE
BE-T-NFSAS+—BILEEN =

during the year ended 31 March 2019 were as follows: TE=FHECORE RN BAEZEHF B
T
Number of options®
ROHEHE@
Exercise
price per Outstanding Outstanding
option at 1 April at 31 March
= 2018 Exercised Lapsed 2019
Date of HETEE Exercise RZZ-N\F during during RZZ-h%
Grantees grant HK$ period mA—H the year theyear =A=t+-H
RRA Riti A BT TEH HRATHRE FRITE FEREM i ARATHE
Continuous contract employees 28/10/2010® 22370 31/3/2011- 492,000 - (237,000) 255,000
BELNESR 30/3/2020
492,000 - (237,000) 255,000
Notes: M &E -
(a) Number of options refers to the number of underlying shares of the Company covered by the (a) FR1D ERHE BB T B AR IE — ST = F T8I LR 1D B FT

options under the 2003 Scheme.
(b) These options vested in 5 tranches as follows: 10% on 31 March 2011, 15% on 31 March

2012, 20% on 31 March 2013, 25% on 31 March 2014 and 30% on 31 March 2015 and
were or are exercisable during a five-year period commencing the respective dates of vesting.

Save as disclosed above, no share options were granted, exercised, lapsed or
cancelled during the year ended 31 March 2019.
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Share Award Scheme

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme” or the “Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company on 27 August 2013 (the “Adoption Date”), under
which any individual being an existing director, employee, officer, supplier,
customer, consultant, adviser or manager of any member of the Group is
entitled to participate in as selected participant who may be granted an
award of restricted shares and/or performance shares during the period
commencing on the Adoption Date and ending on the day immediately
prior to the 10th anniversary date of the Adoption Date. The purpose
of the Scheme is to recognise and reward selected participants for their
contributions to the business and development of the Group. The Scheme
also aims to provide a competitive remuneration and/or incentive package
in order to attract and retain talent for the development of the Group’s
business, and to promote long term success of the Group by aligning the
interests of selected participants and shareholders.

The Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of 15
years from the Adoption Date and is administrated by the Board and the
trustee of the Scheme. The total number of shares to be awarded under the
Scheme shall not exceed 5% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company from time to time. The maximum number of shares which may
be awarded to a selected participant but unvested under the Scheme shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of issued shares of the Company from
time to time.

% 17 52 B 5T 2
RARARRZZE—=F ) \AZ+tBUHEHA
HA 1) B 1 SRR &) ([ At SREDATEl ) ok [ 5%
&) - EZETEIT - AREERKE AL
BEEE BB 1TTHRAE - #iER TP
R SR A SR 2 A AR fE AL E R
LEEL MR M REFE - REHNBEBRRTE
EERMBB+AFTEBRI —ARNER TR
YRR Sk EBERDVEAIRE - ZaTElZ B
MAERERREKIEDMEHNASEEBL R
BRoER AREERHEABRFHZEHFHE
SRR FE ARSI RIRBAS - HEIASE
B ¥BERE - WHCREDEEHRRERZF
mEEARHE - (RSB RIEK o

Bt B2 Rt 8RB R B 2R B R RIS
FUHEERRZAIZIEALETER - %
AR TR SR 2 R @B GBERN AR T
BEEITIRMAEZ5% ° LAt 8 T AR T AR
REE2REBHARB 2RO ZSBE TF
HBBARRTREETROBEZ 1% -

AREEEARDA 201819 F3 63



Share Award Scheme (Continued) B SR EEt 8 (4)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, restricted shares were awarded to ~ REZE—ZT—NF=ZA=+—HIFE AR
selected participants pursuant to the Share Award Scheme. Details of shares AR ZRE S M EEL2 RER TR

awarded under the Scheme during the year were as follows: MR - BEBZETERE 2RO FARN 2 E
BT
Number of shares
vk |
As at As at
1 April Granted Vested Lapsed 31 March
2018 during during during 2019 Vesting
Date of grant R=Z-N\F the year the year theyear R-Z—h%F period
A MA—H RERRE RERBEE REREXN =HA=+—H R
15/9/2014 1,537,425 - - (1,537,425)@ - -
31/7/2015 204,420 - (201,113) (3,307) - 31/7/2016 -
31/7/2018®
31/7/2015 304,681 - - (304,681)@ - -
1/8/2016 591,929 - (292,951) (29,797) 269,181 31/7/2017 -
31/7/2019®
1/8/2016 600,334 - - (600,334)@ - -
31/7/2017 980,987 - (321,447) (80,213) 579,327 31/7/2018 -
31/7/2020®
31/7/2017 221,161 - - (221,161)@ - -
31/7/2018 - 1,408,724 - (81,501) 1,327,223 31/7/2019 -
31/7/2021®
4,440,937 1,408,724 (815,511) (2,858,419) 2,175,731
Notes: fEE -
(a) No performance shares awarded had been vested due to non-attainment of the vesting targets (a) HARRERTE BT  BRRZEERMDRERB LA
and the shares were lapsed accordingly. KR o

(b) The awarded shares are subject to a vesting scale in tranches of 33% of the awarded shares (b) BERORLAIGE TREABHESE—EARFA R

respectively on the first and second anniversary dates of the grant date and the balance E_ARF B D RGE RGN 2 33% - FIgRm AR
of the remaining awarded shares on the third anniversary date of the grant date. In case HRREE BB E=EAAFEER - EEAFHILF
such anniversary date is not a business date, the date of vesting shall be the business day BER BOBBAHAAZEN T —EEXR -

immediately thereafter.

(© During the year, Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, being Directors of the (© FARRBEFTREALERBEELEEE2HRG
Company, participated in the Share Award Scheme. SR El o

Since the Adoption Date, a total of 10,976,254 shares had been awarded BERA B EALAZE - IRBR G BT 82 &

under the Share Award Scheme, representing approximately 1.87% of the 2 B% 17 42804 10,976,254 /% * 16 AR A =

total number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 March 2019. T-NEF=ZA=T—HBZEZEHTRHBHEL
1.87% °
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and EERFTETHRAERKR®D - 8B
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares B ERESFFZERZEAR
and Debentures

As at 31 March 2019, the interests of each Director and Chief Executive RZE—NF=ZA=+—8  KRGREZES
Officer of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of MBI E G HI ([ 75 &5 R HIEI& 6 ]) 5352 &M
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part 7 & 2 B M ATaces - siiRE AR AU &1
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the ~ FT#lZ EFTARIEZEITESH R FHIZHESTA
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO oras  ([fR24E<FAl]) BITAE AR RG] RBE BT -
otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange ~ ARRIEEEZRHFAITERAR A & EAGH
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed ~ AE (3Z7E 5 & EEEFIEXVE 2 HE ) 2%
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules o~ R R fES 2 ESEH AT

were as follows:

Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company (long positions)
ARREER HRROHAE (FR)

% of total
issued
Equity shares *
Personal Family  Corporate Other derivatives Total HERT
Name of Directors interests interests interests interests [N interests 17 4828
EEHF BARER RikrER ATFER Hit#E s fTETIR EREE ZBED*
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny 23,450,500 - - 40,983,394 @ - 64,433,894 11.004%
BRNEE
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita 14,039,928 - - 3,000,000 ® - 17,039,928 2.910%
BEBLL

Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael 7,419,407 9,614,500 - - 17,033,907 2.909%

PR R TE
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel 25,837 - - - - 25,837 0.004%
ARERE
Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey 55,000 - - - - 55,000 0.009%
ZEENE
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter 540,184 - - 91,708,213@ 167,035% 92,415,432 15.783%
BIEASLAE
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan 66,276 - - - 59,656 @ 125,932 0.022%
BEASLE
*  The percentage has been calculated based on 585,543,033 shares in issue as at 31 March 2019. * BAOLRDER-FE-NAF=ZA=T—BEEITRH

585,543,033 %514
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures (Continued)

Notes:

(a) These shares comprised (i) 3,000,000 shares held by a foundation in which Mr Lo Hoi Kwong,
Sunny is a trustee; and (i) 37,983,394 shares held by Ardley Enterprises (PTC) Limited (“Ardley”)
in the capacity of trustee of a unit trust (the “Unit Trust”) of which Mr Lo Hoi Kwong,
Sunny and Victor Reach Investments Limited (“Victor Reach”) were the unit holders. Mr Lo
Hoi Kwong, Sunny was deemed to be interested in these shares by virtue of being the sole
shareholder of both Ardley and Victor Reach as well as a beneficiary of the Unit Trust.

(b) These shares were held by a foundation in which Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita is a trustee.

© Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael was deemed to be interested in these shares through interests
of his spouse, of which 3,000,000 shares were held by a foundation in which his spouse is a
trustee.

(d) These shares were held by Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey jointly with his spouse.

(e) These shares were held by Wandels Investment Limited (“Wandels”). Wandels was 50% owned
by Sky Bright International Limited (" Sky Bright”) and 50% owned by Verdant Success Holdings
Limited (“Verdant Success”). Both of Sky Bright and Verdant Success were wholly-owned by
Butterfield Trust (Guernsey) Limited, a trustee of two discretionary family trusts. Mr Lo Tak
Shing, Peter was deemed to be interested in these shares by virtue of his being beneficiary of
one of the family trusts.

(f) These represented interests in unvested shares granted under the Company’s share award
scheme.

All the above interests in shares and underlying shares of equity derivatives
of the Company were long positions. None of the Directors held any short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the Directors and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company or their respective associates had or
was deemed to have any interest or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
recorded in the register kept under Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of every person,
other than a Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company, being 5% or more of the
Company’s issued share capital, as recorded in the register kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company (long positions)

FTERFRERS

RIZE-NF=ZA=1+—B ARAREES
KEIEIGDIZE 336 (R IRF 2 B AR - #5
BARRE R KA e ZOR A 2 AL (B
EARRBEEITRAS% A L) (RARFE

ENERAITEINEINGT

ANEEERHEROBE (FR)

Name of Personal Family Corporate
substantial shareholders interests interests interests
TERRER, BB BARER EQyd NGIL:

Wandels Investment Limited - - _
Sky Bright International Limited - - _
Verdant Success Holdings Limited - - -
Butterfield Trust (Guernsey) Limited - - -

Ms Tso Po Ping - 64,433,894 © -
BEVZ L

Ardley Enterprises (PTC) Limited - - -

Victor Reach Investments Limited - - -

Mr Lo Hoi Chun 132,000 - 67,880,834 @
ERBLE

Ms Man Bo King - 68,012,834 @ -
NEBERLT

LBK Holding Corporation 35,969,133 - -
MMW Holding Corporation 31,911,701©@ - -

*  The percentage is calculated based on 585,543,033 shares in issue as at 31 March 2019.

Other Total
interests interests
HipgEzs ERAY

91,708,213@ 91,708,213

91,708,213 91,708,213

91,708,213 @ 91,708,213

91,708,213@ 91,708,213

- 64,433,894

37,983,394 © 37,983,394

37,983,394 © 37,983,394

- 68,012,834

- 68,012,834

- 35,969,133

31,911,701

% of total
issued
shares *

1HE BT
R4 %58
ZEDHL*
15.662%
15.662%
15.662%
15.662%

11.004%

6.487%

6.487%

11.615%

11.615%

6.143%

5.450%

* ASEDER-_ZE-AF=ZA=Z+—-—HEBTKRNH

585,543,033 f% 5+ & ©
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

These interests were held by Wandels Investment Limited (“Wandels”). Wandels was 50%
owned by Sky Bright International Limited ("Sky Bright”) and 50% owned by Verdant Success
Holdings Limited (“Verdant Success”). Both of Sky Bright and Verdant Success were wholly-
owned by Butterfield Trust (Guernsey) Limited, a trustee of two discretionary family trusts. Mr
Lo Tak Shing, Peter, being a Director of the Company, was deemed to be interested in these
shares by virtue of his being beneficiary of one of the family trusts.

Ms Tso Po Ping was deemed to be interested in these shares through the interests of her
spouse, Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny.

These shares were held by Ardley Enterprises (PTC) Limited (“Ardley”) in the capacity of
trustee of a unit trust (the “Unit Trust”). Victor Reach Investments Limited (“Victor Reach”)
was deemded to be interested in the shares by virtue of being a beneficiary of the Unit Trust.
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny, being a Director of the Company, was deemed to be interested in
the shares by virtue of being the sole shareholder of both Ardley and Victor Reach as well as a
beneficiary of the Unit Trust.

Mr Lo Hoi Chun was deemed to be interested in these shares which were held, as to
35,969,133 shares, by LBK Holding Corporation (“LBK") and, as to 31,911,701 shares, by

MMW Holding Corporation (“MMW"). Both of LBK and MMW were wholly-owned by Mr Lo
Hoi Chun.

Ms Man Bo King was deemed to be interested in these shares through the interests of her
spouse, Mr Lo Hoi Chun.
These interests were held by LBK which was wholly-owned by Mr Lo Hoi Chun.

These interests were held by MMW which was wholly-owned by Mr Lo Hoi Chun.

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

were long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, the register maintained

by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO recorded no other

interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the

Company.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

Framework Agreement with Fung Yuen

On 3 March 2017, the Company and Fung Yuen Engineering Company
Limited (“Fung Yuen”) entered into a new non-exclusive framework
agreement (“2017 Framework Agreement”) which governs the terms
upon which Fung Yuen and its subsidiaries (“Fung Yuen Group”) would
be engaged by the Group to provide interior decoration, renovation,
adjustment, repairing, maintenance and/or related services to the shops
operated by the Group in Hong Kong, Macau and Guangdong Province in
the People’s Republic of China (the “Renovation Works") for a further term
of three years from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020 subject to the following
annual caps:

1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 HK$35,000,000
1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 HK$40,000,000
1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 HK$45,000,000

Fung Yuen Group is a deemed connected person of the Company as Mr
Ng Lam To, the cousin of Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny and Ms Lo Pik Ling,
Anita (both being Directors of the Company), has a majority control in Fung
Yuen Group. Thus the Renovation Works constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the 2017 Framework Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 3 March 2017.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the aggregate value in respect of the
Renovation Works under the 2017 Framework Agreement amounted to
approximately HK$7,959,000 and did not exceed the annual cap for the
year.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

Annual Review

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed
the continuing connected transactions under the 2017 Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 March 2019 and confirmed that the
transactions were entered into:

(@ inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(©)  according to the relevant agreement(s) governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the above continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its
unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
above continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules.

Related Party Transactions

The related party transactions set out in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements (other than the transactions relating to the operating
lease rentals paid to a related party, which constituted continuing connected
transactions but were exempted from the reporting and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules due to de minimis) did
not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Changes in Information of Directors

The changes in information of Directors are set out below pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules:

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert ceased to be a non-executive director, the
Chairman of the Audit Committee, the Deputy Chairman of the Budget
Committee, member of the SFC (HKEC Listing) Appeals Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Investment Committee of the Securities and
Futures Commission on 25 May 2019.

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter (executive Director)

Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter was appointed as a member of the Executive
Committee of Hong Kong Retail Management Association on 11 October
2018.

Pursuant to the service contract renewed with the Company in March
2019, the annual basic salary of Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter has been increased
to HK$4,800,000 with effect from 1 April 2019, which is subject to annual
review. Mr Lo is also entitled to profit sharing bonus with reference to the
Group's operating results.

Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan (Executive Director)

Pursuant to the service contract renewed with the Company in March
2019, the annual basic salary of Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan has been increased
to HK$2,160,000 with effect from 3 March 2019, which is subject to
annual review. Mr Lo is also entitled to profit sharing bonus with reference
to the Group's operating results and discretionary bonus with reference to
individual performance.

Director’s Fee

With effect from 1 April 2019, the annual director’s fee for Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors has been increased
to HK$300,000 and HK$400,000 respectively. Director’s fee for Executive
Directors remains at HK$50,000 per annum.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
shares were held by the public as at the date of this report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the AGM .

By order of the Board
LO HOI KWONG, SUNNY
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 June 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report
VR Glikeees

&

pwec 5 Rk i

Independent Auditor’s Report to the B B AR
Shareholders of Café De Coral Holdings Limited AXR&EBHERATRR
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (REREFME T ERAF])
Opinion BER

What we have audited EMEHFTHRE

The consolidated financial statements of Café de Coral Holdings Limited (the ~ ARKLEEBR AR (LA TEBE [ERR]) KA
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 81 to 212 MBARI(ATHBIEERIHERES =

which comprise: 212 EMREMBHRE - B

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019; o MIE-—NF=A=+—HHEZEEIBEI
MK

e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended:; o HEZHILFENGEERRK

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year —®  #HZEZ B ILFERGE ZEBRARE

then ended;
e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then — © BZEZHIIFENGAERZEHE
ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and o HEZHIFERNGERERER X

e notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a o BRAFBHEMNTE  EREETESEHERE

summary of significant accounting policies. 2o
© PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Bilding, Central, Hong Kong BERCGEE RIS - BAETIRATAE2E
T. +852 2289 8888, E5E - +852 2289 8888 -
F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com f5HE : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com
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Opinion (Continued)

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

Key Audit Matter

HARFEAEE

e
=
X
l—‘d

BARES SR (&)
BFVEE BB BR B SRR T -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMMEST N MEEERETSEE

Risk of revenue recognition

LN

Refer to note 2.19 for the Group’s accounting policies on
revenue recognition and note 22 for the analysis of revenue
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019.

AE2HME2.19 ESERRRABRNEABERK
MiE22 ESERBE-_T-—NF=A=+—HIEF
BRI AT o

The Group recognised revenue of HK$8,494 million for the
year ended 31 March 2019.

BEEEREE T - NF=-A=1+—HBLEFEERK
A8 494 BEBTT

We focused on revenue recognition in particular for
sales of food and beverage due to its magnitude and the
characteristics of the Group’s industry nature. The recording
of revenue involves high volume of small amount transactions
through various systems. Any errors arising from capturing
of data or interfaces of data amongst the various systems
may have significant impact on revenue. Therefore it required
significant time and resource to audit.

REREBORER SEEMRETELENGE
A BALEZIRNEERYERMERATER
WAL RAEEB TR RGETHNERS o
FERERBIR SR R BRI O R E £ R R =8
PR HMABKREATE - Bt - BT EAER
EREIR o

We understood, evaluated and validated management’s key
internal controls in its revenue recognition process.

g TEREEEEBNERARRBIETN
T2 EBES

We involved Information Technology (“IT") specialist to
evaluate the design of the relevant IT systems and controls
(including IT controls) over revenue recognition and tested
the operating effectiveness of those controls.

B BEE AR ([1T)) BRI ARER M &5
AT R REE (BIEIT B1) - WA ZEER
HE(ERRR -

We performed analytical procedures on revenue through
comparing the actual result of current year with that of prior
year and assessing the reasonableness of its trend in relations
to the number of outlets.

BPIEBLBEAFRERE FFENERERKFEPE
HEBZRETAIE - HWAIASHT

We also tested samples of sales transactions by tracing to
bank receipts and other relevant evidence.

BT EREPIRITHIE R AR RERESHER
5o

We tested journal entries posted to revenue accounts
selected on risk based criteria.

BfRREREERE T ABARR BRERE °

We found the sales transactions being tested were supported
by appropriate evidence.
PR RAHDHHER D EREE RE -
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
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Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Ms Kong Pui Yin.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 14 June 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ARe RO

As at 31 March 2019 R=ZE—hE=F=+—H

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

—E-NF —ETN\F
=A=t+—8H =A=+—H”
Note HK$000 HK$'000
BisE FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IERBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights HE TN TR 6 75,231 79,485
Property, plant and equipment W - BB MEE 7 1,922,710 2,020,925
Investment properties wEMZE 8 628,000 663,300
Intangible assets E|IEE 9 1,852 4,051
Deferred income tax assets EEFIBE & 17 12,681 30,506
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE 11 = 147,978
Financial assets at fair value through RAFEIAEMEEmEA
other comprehensive income L EREE 11 154,102 -
Non-current prepayments and deposits ~ JERBITE( /0B RIES 12 307,871 295,657
3,102,447 3,241,902
Current assets MENEEE
Inventories FE 13 241,325 234,362
Trade and other receivables S N HAth FE U BRTE 14 165,086 191,466
Prepayments and deposits TARIE RIEE 14 126,813 121,198
Current income tax recoverable BNHEA ] U [B] £ 18 1,017 3,383
Bank deposits with maturity over three  #83 ={& A 2|Hi B R9R1T17 3K
months 15 21,865 22,778
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEIER 15 835,537 801,240
1,391,643 1,374,427
Total assets EEE 4,494,090 4,616,329
EQUITY PR g
Capital and reserves attributable to RNAFIRER A AR R
the equity holders of the Company
Share capital A&7 20 58,554 58,554
Share premium 10 m (B 21 616,811 616,811
Shares held for share award scheme Rt 22 EhET Eli5H 2 fp 21 (133,020) (145,053)
Other reserves H b 21 537,776 602,542
Retained earnings RER 4 A 21
— Proposed dividends — BB 380,603 573,832
— Others —H A 1,954,764 1,862,995
3,415,488 3,569,681
Non-controlling interests JEPE SR RS 6,262 3,819
Total equity fatEsR =R 3,421,750 3,573,500
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
ra TSR R SR

As at 31 March 2019 R=ZE—hE=F=+—H

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

—E-NF —ETN\F
=A=t+—8H =A=+—H”
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5E FAET FETT
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Deferred income tax liabilities FEFIBEE 17 29,479 33,520
Provision for long service payments REARRTE 2B 16 45,258 34,990
Retirement benefit liabilities BREERABE 16 13,459 18,747
88,196 87,257
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade payables &R ERTARIA 18 219,710 207,478
Other creditors and accrued liabilities EMh T ERIE R ERT & A 19 725,134 706,965
Current income tax liabilities BNHAFRIE B & 39,300 41,129
984,144 955,572
Total liabilities FEb= 1,072,340 1,042,829
Total equity and liabilities faiE R B fERRE 4,494,090 4,616,329
Net current assets FRHEE 407,499 418,855
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRIDEE 3,509,946 3,660,757

The notes on pages 89 to 212 are an integral part of these consolidated ~~ E# 89ZE 212 B 2 sk B4R E M 5 HFzT A E

B o

ol
kol

financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on page 81 to 212 were approved by ~ fEE 81 E212 B2 M BHMEKLEET RN =
T-NFNATEBAHERRREZRES

the Board of Directors on 14 June 2019 and were signed on its behalf.

LO HOI KWONG, SUNNY LO TAK SHING, PETER
‘RN mEE
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
FiE EEHITE

82 Café de Coral Holdings Limited « Annual Report 2018/19



Conso
= AE 2 Z

,Z“, = E\ﬁﬁ% _RBRAES

Sak |

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B Z =T —NF=HA=+—HILFE

Idated |ﬂC0me Statement—By Function of Expense

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
liEzg FET FET
Revenue WA 22 8,493,883 8,427,399
Cost of sales SHE KA 24 (7,356,665) (7,385,291)
Gross profit EH 1,137,218 1,042,108
Other gains/(losses), net EAth 5w A, (E518) 23 17,687 (13,706)
Administrative expenses THRER 24 (447,788) (458,819)
Operating profit = A 707,117 569,583
Finance income TSI A 25 14,803 11,661
Profit before income tax Bt A& A 721,920 581,244
Income tax expense TSt & A 26 (129,810) (121,949)
Profit for the year AEE @A 592,110 459,295
Profit attributable to: ARSI
Equity holders of the Company RARIRERE A 590,285 458,055
Non-controlling interests FEFEHIME R RS 1,825 1,240
592,110 459,295
Earnings per share for profit RARRERE A
attributable to the equity holders FEAG A 2 X
of the Company
Basic E=Y/N 28 HK$1.027& T HK$0.79 87T
Diluted e 28 HK$1.017& T HK$0.79/& 7T
The notes on pages 89 to 212 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ £S89 %F 212 B 2 T RAAR & M MK B

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Are EEWATRR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B Z =T —NF=HA=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—B-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET T
Profit for the year NG A 592,110 459,295
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hiv 2 (E518) WA :
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss BB EF 7484572 HH
Exchange differences arising from EIREINB AR 2 [N =
translation of foreign subsidiaries (46,960) 66,031
Fair value loss on available-for-sale AfEEeREEN N TEER
financial assets - (81,643)
Items that will not be reclassified TEFEE B 7 BIRm o HE
subsequently to profit or loss
Revaluation surplus of property, plant and Y« BERREELEKE
equipment prior to transferring to YR EfLABH
investment properties - 65,287
Remeasurement of retirement benefit B ERRSENABERKE
liabilities and provision for R 7% & B A
long service payments (12,393) 12,990
Fair value gain on financial assets at BRATFEIAHEMEEBAZ
fair value through other TREENR T ER
comprehensive income 6,124 -
Total comprehensive income for the year REFZHEZERA 538,881 521,960
Total comprehensive income EIERFEREZAERA -
for the year attributable to:
— Equity holders of the Company - RRBIREFE A 537,056 520,720
— Non-controlling interests - FEIE It S 1,825 1,240
538,881 521,960
The notes on pages 89 to 212 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ £ 89%F 212 B 2 iiFE R & M MK B
financial statements. s -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE—ZE—NF=A=+—HILFE

idated Statement of Changes in

Attributable to owners of the Company

Equity

KD FRRE
Shares held
for share Non-
Share Share award Other  Retained controlling Total
capital premium  scheme reserves  earnings Total interests equity
R R
SRR FiEIM
BA RGEE  ZRGE EtRE  REEN @it s BES
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS000 HKS'000
FET FEr  FEx FET FiEx FET FET FEx
Balance as at 1 April 2018 W=Z—-\FWA—B%#% 58554 616,811  (145053) 602,542 2,436,827 3,569,681 3,819 3,573,500
Profit for the year REREA - - - - 590,285 590,285 1825 592,110
Other comprehensive (loss)/income:  Eft 2 (8518) /KA :
Exchange differences arising from  E#EHNHBARZ
translation of foreign subsidiaries fE 5% =5 - - - (46,960) - (46,960) - (46,960)
Fair value gain on finandcial assets at A FEIAZZE
fair value through other WAZ 2 REER)
comprehensive income ATHERF - - - 6,124 - 6,124 - 6,124
Remeasurement of retirement benefit EXf RN ERAEE
liabilities and provision for REERE &R
long service payments - - - - (12,393)  (12,393) - (12,393)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income @27 (E518) /A - - - (40,836) 577,892 537,056 1,825 538,881
Employee share award scheme-value {EE k{3 12B1:t2] - (B2
of employee services REEE - - - (1,209) - (1,209) = (1,209)
Purchase of shares H%J\JM\ - - (10,800) - - (10,800) - (10,800
Vesting of shares of share RIDREE 2R N R
award scheme - - 22,833 (20,247) (2,586) - - -
Transfer upon lapse of share options — ER& {7 i & R - - = (1,067) 1,067 - - -
Transfer from statutory reserves BIATE M imEH - = = (1,407) 1,407 - - -
Loan capitalisation BERENM - - - - - - 1,200 1,200
Dividends BRE = = = - (679,240) (679,240 (582) (679,822)
- - 12,033 (23,930) (679,352) (691,249) 618  (690,631)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 RZE-n%
ZA=T—R&#H 58,554 616,811  (133,020) 537,776 2,335367 3,415,488 6,262 3,421,750

RRES
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Conso idated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE—ZE—NF=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG
Shares held
for share Non-
Share Share award Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium scheme  reserves  earnings Total interests equity
It 52
HElEE FEIERINE

BA - RiEE 2B EtREE REEN st BE e
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 — HK$000  HK$'000
tEr  TEr  TEr  FEr  TEr  FEr  TET  TEn

Balance as at 1 April 2017 RZZE—+ENA—H&# 53518 607,364 (164,622) 549,967 2,436,150 3,487,377 3,743 3,491,120
Profit for the year AEEHH - - - - 458,055 458,055 1,240 459,295

Other comprehensive income/ (loss):  Eft2EYA,/ (B518)
Exchange differences arising from  E#EHNHBARZ

translation of foreign subsidiaries 0 =5 - - - 65,205 826 66,031 - 66,031
Fair value loss on available-for-sale Al ESREER
financial assets ATEEE - - - (81,643 - (81,643 - (81,643)

Revaluation surplus of property, plant %% - BE K& EEA
and equipment prior to transfer REMFAI BB

to investment properties - - - 65,287 - 65,287 - 65,287
Remeasurement of retirement benefit EF:tEEKEEHAE

liabilities and provision for REERE &R

long service payments - - - - 12,990 12,990 - 12,990
Total comprehensive income ‘rREBA - - - 48,849 471,871 520,720 1,240 521,960
Employee share award scheme-value (EE {3 12B1:t2] - (B2

of employee services REEE - - - 26,240 - 26,240 - 26,240
Purchase of shares BARG = = (2,544) = = (2,544) = (2,544)
Proceeds from shares issued BRI 2 PR 36 7,861 = = = 7,897 = 7,897
Release of share-based compensation Rf7HER (7 ZiE e AR

reserve to share premium upon MBS HESBA

exercise of share options RIV&E - 1,586 = (1,586) - - - -
Vesting of shares of share award 1””;?@] SFERNRNEE

scheme - - 22,113 (20,451) (1,662) - - -
Transfer upon lapse of share options  ER& {7 i & R = = = (477) 477 - - -
Dividends RE = - - - (470,009) (470,009) (1,164) (471,173)

36 9,447 19,569 3,726 (471,194) (438,416) (1,764)  (439,580)

Balance as at 31 March 2018 W-E-N\#=f=1+—H
b 58,554 616,811  (145,053) 602,542 2,436,827 3,569,681 3,819 3,573,500

The notes on pages 89 to 212 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ EE89ZE 212 B 2 i RALF S M E MK E
financial statements. EEaziba)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SFEEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B Z =T —NF=HA=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—)\F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
liEzg FET FET
Cash flows from operating activities REXB 2 IREME
Net cash generated from operations BEELAZFRE 31(a) 1,067,722 995,436
Hong Kong profits tax paid B2 EEFIEH (82,458) (82,384)
Overseas taxation paid BT 2 BINRIE (33,149) (20,383)
Net cash generated from operating REEXBEE2FRE
activities 952,115 892,669
Cash flows from investing activities REFRH2IRERE
Purchase of property, plant and NEBEME - WERZE
equipment (293,388) (450,021)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BB KRBTSR
plant and equipment 31(b) 4,952 1,311
Proceeds from disposal of HERE VTS
investment properties 31(c) 54,359 -
Proceeds from disposal of intangible & & EFT1S 3K
assets 31(d) 2,142 -
Dividend received from listed investments & 4 & &% 2 11,736 15,818
Interest received Blkz FE 14,803 11,661
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits w, () BA=E AR B8
with maturity over three months RIERTTIF X 913 (482)
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposit notes 4> (1&10) $R1T17 R E 1 5,800 (34,956)
Net cash used in investing activities ARREEEFHS (198,683) (456,669)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FelRenEgxk
For the year ended 31 March 2019 B Z =T —NF=HA=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
liEzg FET FET
Cash flows from financing activities BERH 2 IREME
Net proceeds from issue of shares upon  17{E R B M 31 7AX(D <
exercise of share options FriS s F5E - 7,897
Purchase of shares held for B B Ik fh RN Bl A 2 k(D
share award scheme (10,800) (2,544)
Dividends paid BEARRE (679,822) (471,173)
Net cash used in financing activities RARmE R FHE (690,622) (465,820)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReERAEEEEE 2
cash equivalents SEEn, CRld) 62,810 (29,820)
Cash and cash equivalents at FERRKReMASEEIER
the beginning of the year 801,240 790,017
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SN IE Rigset ~ &/ 2¢ (28,513) 41,043
Cash and cash equivalents at FEARKRESMASEEEE
the end of the year 15 835,537 801,240

The notes on pages 89 to 212 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ £ 89F 212 B Z i RAAR & M IS MK B
financial statements. s -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4T e SRR M

2.1

General Information

Café de Coral Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda with limited liability on 1 October 1990. The
address of its registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Company'’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in the operation of
quick service restaurants and institutional catering, casual dining
chains, as well as food processing and distribution business.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors
on 14 June 2019.

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of investment properties and financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, which are carried at fair value.

2.1

IGEDY

AREEEBBERAR(ARA]) R
—NWNEF+A-BEBRREREN
—NAN—FRaEFMKZAE— BB
REERERERAR - MM EE
Holk A Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda °
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(I&BBRAT]) ERET ©

BRA BRI KNERE P MR IAETT
(BT REM2%H - RFE T MK
BEEBREERN_T—NEATHA
BUEETIES

ERETHERREE

REANRA M B HRREANER ST
REN T o BRIESTTRRAL - L FBER
EFMEHRNAEFENERER -

mRERE

ARRIMEMBEAR (G [ ARE]) 2
REMBHRRIVIRBEMABEREBMG
HRELRRBB(RRAGDNFE 6228 2
BRERERE - REVBHRRCERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IN=Np e e kR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies.

(i) New and amended standards and interpretation adopted
by the Group
The following new and amended standards and interpretation have
been adopted by the Group for the first time for the financial year
beginning on or after 1 April 2018:

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments”

° HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with customers”

° Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28, “Annual
improvement 2014-2016 cycle”

o Amendments to HKFRS 2, “Classification and measurement
of share-based payment transactions”

o Amendments to HKFRS 4, “Applying HKFRS 9 financial
instruments with HKFRS 4 insurance contracts”

° Amendments to HKFRS 15, “Clarification to HKFRS 15"

° Amendments to HKAS 40, “Transfers of investment
property”

o HK(IFRIC)-Int 22, “Foreign currency transactions and advance
consideration”

90 Café de Coral Holdings Limited * Annual Report 2018/19
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

VN

2.1
(i)

SR S B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

New and amended standards and interpretation adopted
by the Group (Continued)

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments” and
HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with customers” are disclosed
in Note 2.2 “Changes in accounting policies” section below.

Apart from aforementioned HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, there are no
other amendments to standards and interpretation that are effective
for the first time for the reporting period that could be expected to
have a material impact on the Group.

BEESBREE (&)
mEELE ()

SR B BRAN 3R] R AR ET 22 A
AR 3218 ()

RNE BB ME LA ST A] R
EBMBREEAS[RAEFANS
WA ) BN T X 2.2 B B
8 | —HRE -

B Ll &8 B 55 s 2RI 9 R B A
WERERN155 » RS A EEAD EHX
Rz A R BE R B s AN S
BELAEATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IN=Np e e kR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting 2

Policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1

(i)  The following new and amended standards, interpretation
and framework have been issued but are not effective for Al
the financial year beginning 1 April 2018 and have not

been early adopted

Amendments to annual improvements
project (HKAS 12, HKAS 23, HKFRS 3
and HKFRS 11)

FEBCEIER (BB gsH4ER12
BAEFTER23 - BB BIRELER]3
REBHBEHRELER) 21E5]

Amendments to HKAS 19

BB e ERI9 2185T

Amendments to HKAS 28

BB GETAERI28 27T

Amendments to HKFRS 9

BB IwEHER 9 2 1EFT

HKFRS 16

BEMBmELER16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

a5 (BRI BHRERELZEE) 323

Conceptual framework for
financial reporting 2018

— \FHBRERSIESR

HKFRS 17
BRI IwEAER 17

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

/%Bﬁfk#ﬁ = Z E|J 10&%/% = u+
4RI 28 Z1EFT

ERETHBREE (&)

A ELE (48)
(i) TIRCHEMEVHET REETE
CRERER EXARAR=F
—NFHA-HRBENTRFEE
M0 INER TR

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on
or after
FEHERG
RZEEN

Annual improvements 2015 — 2017 cycle 1 January 2019

—E-NF—H—H

—E-—RFE-ET

—EFRERFEUE

Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement 1 January 2019

FHEIEET - HBRsB1E —NF—H—H
Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures 1 January 2019
REFERRIREERRZ RAER —NF—H—AR
Prepayment features with negative compensation 1 January 2019
HAamENIRRERS T E—NWF—HF—H
Leases 1 January 2019
HE —FE-NF—H—H
Uncertainty over income tax treatments 1 January 2019
FR1S BB IR 2 TN RE 1 —h&E—H—H
Revised conceptual framework for financial reporting 1 January 2020

—T_TF—HA—H

KASET IS S HESR
Insurance contracts
{7% AA = IQ\/j

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor

1 January 2021
—T—_—%—A—H

Not yet established

and its associate or joint venture by Hong Kong

REFEEBERNFHEE DA Institute of Certified
ZEMEBEHEIEE Public Accountants

BB RHAAR A
13T B 58
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4T e SRR M

2.1
(i)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The following new and amended standards, interpretation
and framework have been issued but are not effective for
the financial year beginning 1 April 2018 and have not
been early adopted (Continued)

Except for HKFRS 16 as described below, the adoption of these new
standards, interpretation and framework is not expected to have
any significant impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

Nature of change

HKFRS 16, “Leases” addresses the definition of a lease, recognition
and measurement of leases and establishes principles for reporting
useful information to users of financial statements about the leasing
activities of both lessees and lessors. A key change arising from
HKFRS 16 is that most operating leases will be accounted for on
statement of financial position for lessees. The standard replaces
HKAS 17 “Leases”, and related interpretations.

Impact

Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased
item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only
exceptions are short-term and low-value leases. The accounting for
lessors will not significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the Group’s
operating leases. As at the reporting date, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of HK$2,331,597,000
(Note 33(a)).

2.1
(ii)

ERETHBREE (&)

mREZE ()

T 5 5% B M B3 5] R RS R 2
A RERER BYRR-F
—N\FMA—-BRRNTRFES
R TMER TR ()

B TSR 2 BB R R Al 165 -
RMZ SRR - RRREREST
BHAREEMEERRBRRERETE

=y 480
N2 o

BRMBHRELER 16/ HE

BEME

B EHRERER 161 E | BmAEH
T MENRERANE  LHEZFAM
BHRREREXABARLEANEE
ABWEGRHERNRRA - BAEMBR
RN M TREH/AMOKE
HERBRAEANTBEARRII o %
ERBMARFE G ER17[HE] RiERH
FEE

74

Rz LR - BE (ZHEERAENE
FHE) X N e c BB ERHER o M
—PIshE REHMEEERE - HHE
AZETRES T EEEANE -

ZEABETEYEAEECLHENS
STERIE - RIREBH - AEEHTAH
$H5 48 & & & IE 5 2,331,597,000 7% 7T
(M43E33(@a)) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4T e SRR M

2.1
(i)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The following new and amended standards, interpretation
and framework have been issued but are not effective for
the financial year beginning 1 April 2018 and have not
been early adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

Except for the short-term and low-value leases, HKFRS 16 requires
the Group to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all
lease contracts on 1 April 2019 including those that are currently
identified as operating lease. In the consolidated income statement,
the rental expense will decrease, while depreciation of right-of-use
assets and interest expense arising from the financial liabilities will
increase. However, from 1 April 2019, for operating lease that would
expire within 12 months, the Group will apply the short-term lease
exemption. The accounting for these short-term leases is similar to
the accounting for an operating lease under HKAS 17.

Date of adoption by Group

The standard is mandatory for financial years commencing on or
after 1 January 2019. The Group considers that full retrospective
approach is more appropriate; under such approach, comparative
amounts will be restated for the year prior to first adoption.

94 Café de Coral Holdings Limited « Annual Report 2018/19
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

VN

2.2

(a)

(b)

0)

sre MR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies

The following explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9
“Financial instruments” and HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts
with customers” on the Group’s consolidated financial statements
and also discloses the new accounting policies that have been
applied from 1 April 2018, where they are different to those applied
in prior periods.

Impact on consolidated financial information

The Group elects to adopt HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 without restating
comparatives. The classification and the adjustments arising from the
adoption of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 are therefore not reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018,
but are recognised in the opening of the consolidated statement of
financial position on 1 April 2018.

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” — Impact on adoption

Classification and measurement

The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is based on the
business model under which the financial assets are managed and its
contractual cash flow characteristics.

An investment in equity securities is classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss unless the equity investment is not
held for trading purposes. On initial recognition of the investment,
the Group can make an election to designate the investment
at measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI") (without subsequent reclassification to profit or loss) such
that the subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Management designated its Hong Kong listed equity investments
as financial assets at FVOCI. As such, available-for-sale financial
assets of HK$147,978,000 in the consolidated statement of financial
position was reclassified as financial assets at FVOCl on 1 April 2018
upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

2.2
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(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N

2.2
(b)

(i)

(i)

sre MR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”
(Continued)

— Impact on adoption

Classification and measurement (Continued)

Other classes of financial assets and financial liabilities had the same
carrying amounts in accordance with HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 on 1
April 2018 and there is no change in measurement categories of
each material class of financial assets and liabilities.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group’s significant financial assets which are subject to the new
expected credit loss model include cash and cash equivalents, bank
deposits with original maturities over 3 months, trade and other
receivables.

The Group was required to revise its impairment methodologies
under HKFRS 9 for these classes of financial assets. The Group applies
the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for trade receivables
based on credit risk characteristics and the days past due. For other
financial assets, expected credit losses are assessed according to
change in credit quality since initial recognition. Financial assets are
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment
plan with the Group.

As at date of adoption on 1 April 2018 and during the year ended
31 March 2019, the Group has assessed the expected credit loss
model applied and the change in impairment methodologies has no
significant impact to the Group’s allowance for impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.2
(@]

2.3

(a)

sre MR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
Impact of adoption

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts
with customers” from 1 April 2018 which resulted in changes in
accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements. As such, receipt in advance
from customers which was previously included in other creditors
and accrued liabilities, amounting to HK$31,901,000 as at 1 April
2018, are now recognised as contract liabilities (as included in other
creditors and accrued liabilities) to reflect the terminology of HKFRS
15. Except for the above, the directors consider the adoption of
HKFRS 15 does not have a material impact to the opening balance
of equity as at 1 April 2018.

If HKAS 18 had continued to apply to the year ended 31 March
2019 instead of HKFRS 15, except for a reclassification from contract
liabilities to other creditors and accrued liabilities, there would be
no impact to the consolidated financial statements as at and for the
year ended 31 March 2019.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31
March.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

2.2
(@

2.3

(a)

ERETHBREE (&)

SETBREE (E)
BEANKRELENISI|REEFE
H2ZWA |- FRNEE
AEEE-ZT-N\FHA—BHREERS
;‘%Eﬁ&&%ﬁﬁlﬁsmaﬁﬁ:.,\’Jzuiz
Al SHBREH REEEUE
i&%ﬁqaﬁ&am CRELFARE - Bt
BAVAEMEMNRBEREGTBRACE
WEFPHRE(R=_ZE—N\FNA—HA
31,901,000% 7)) IRiER RS LB E (5
AHMEMNERBERETER)  URBRE
R TSR R 15 2 T8 o B LA
HIN EERBEMNE AU ERELER
158N =T — \FEAH—H 2 iREHY]
AR SN B R E

WRBE—E-NAF=A=1t—HL*F
Eﬁﬁ?“”ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁgﬂu18LAHWQ%E/E
MBEmEERNS - REANREEH D
BAHMENREREFTERIN - 4
SHR _T-NF=_A=1T—HEREE
“E-NF=ZA=t+—HUILFENES
MBS RRERTE ©

e
B BRRBEARRREMABNE
RIEE=ZA=1T—"HNMHERE

#z
N

LRj= NG
MEAREASERAEHIENER (2
REBILER)  EAKREYH2EZER
%i‘*ﬂ’]x%ib@#&ﬁﬁf‘ﬂ 2 5k Z B HERILA
EREBHZEBNEIZEZETDY
HT BRI ER - MBARRNHEE
HIEBBEAKE N BMEAAR R
PR LA B BRRIBUBSAR S o

,_._
=]

b=l

AREEEERAR 201819 i 97



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

VN

2.3
(a)

sre MR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset
or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amount of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost is
adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

VN

2.3
(a)

SR S B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwiill. If the
total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised
and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred.

When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.
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2.3
(b)

2.4

2.5
(a)

sre MR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from
non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in
the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when control
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, a
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments has
been identified as the Chief Executive Officer who makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in HK$, which is
the Company’s functional and the Group's presentation currency.
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VN

2.5
(b)

sre MR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow
hedges or qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘finance income or cost’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated income
statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets such as equities classified as fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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IN=Np e e kR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

()  Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement item are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate
component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation

of the net investment in foreign operations are taken to shareholder’s
equity.
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VN

2.5
(@]

2.6

sre MR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the equity holders of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
group’s ownership interest in associates or joint ventures that do
not result in the group losing significant influence or joint control)
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in equity.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Cost represents
consideration paid for rights to use the land on which various plants
and buildings are situated. Amortisation of leasehold land and land
use rights is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of the
leases.
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2.7

SR S B

VN

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land classified as finance lease and all other property, plant
and equipment, except for freehold land, are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Freehold
land is stated at historical cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

No provision for depreciation is made on freehold land. Depreciation
of other property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land classified Shorter of remaining period of

the lease or useful life

2.5%

Shorter of remaining period of

as finance lease
Buildings
Leasehold improvements
the lease or useful life
10%
12.5% - 33.3%

Plant and machinery
Furniture and other equipment
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

VN

2.7

sre MR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. They are included in the consolidated income
statement.

For property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
which becomes an investment property, the Group revalues such
property on the date of change in use, and any difference at that
date between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property
is dealt with in assets revaluation reserve.

The fair value at the date of the change in use is the deemed cost
for subsequent accounting as investment properties. On disposal of
the property, revaluation reserve is transferred to retained profits as a

movement in reserves.
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VN

2.8

sre MR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Investment properties
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is
classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises leasehold land and buildings. Land
held under operating leases are classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. In such cases, the operating leases are accounted for
as if they were finance leases.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are performed
in accordance with Valuation Standards on Properties issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and are reviewed annually by

external valuers.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.
The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows
that could be expected in respect of the property. Some of those
outflows are recognised as a liability, others, including contingent
rent payments, are not recognised in the financial statements.
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2.8

2.9
(a)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during the period in
which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the
fair value of the Group's share in net fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary or joint venture or associate at
the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries
is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisitions of joint
ventures or associates is included in investments in joint venture or
associates and is tested for impairment as part of the overall balance.
Separately recognised goodwill is tested annually for impairment
and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment
losses on goodwiill are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwiill arose.
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sre MR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (Continued)

(b)  Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets with definite useful lives and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
costs of other intangible assets over their estimated useful lives of 5
to 20 years.

2.10 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
non-financial assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, but are at least tested annually for impairment. Assets
which are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
were impaired are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each reporting date.
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2.11
(a)

0)

sre MR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Financial assets
Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018

Classification
From 1 April 2018, the Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income, or through profit or
loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account for equity investments at
FVOCI.

2.11
(a)

ERETHBREE (&)

ETREE
B-ZE-\FNA-HEEANE
ATER

g

AT N\FWA—BiE AEEESE
REENRATIFERR

. Higim N HEGIARMEZERA
SBRBER)FEZZFEREE
I54

REHERATEZERMEE

ARBARNREANERGMEENR
SIRB T ANBRHEEES -

BAHEFEZEE SN RERARL
ABzmREMEEPA - WIFREREE
ZBEETAREBEFARERERY
SHARSELTIHEZEE - 5
BRI B A FEIIAREMEEEA
N

AREEEAR AR 201819 £k 109



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

VN

2.11
(a)

(i)

sre MR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018 (Continued)

Measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or
loss.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair
value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive
income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to the profit or loss following the derecognition of
the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right
to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in “other gains/(losses), net” in the
consolidated income statement as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

sre MR

N

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(iii)

(b)

0)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018 (Continued)

Impairment

From 1 April 2018, the Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried
at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

Classification
° Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are included in current assets, except
for those with maturities greater than 12 months after the
end of reporting date. These are classified as non-current
assets. Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and
receivables in the statement of financial position.

o Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in non-current assets
unless the investment matures or management intends to
dispose of the investment within 12 months of the end of
reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.11
(b)

(i)

sre MR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018
(Continued)

Measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the consolidated income statement. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried
at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in a
foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale financial assets
are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes
in amortised cost of the securities and other changes in the carrying
amount of the securities. The translation differences on monetary
securities are recognised in the consolidated income statement;
translation differences on non-monetary securities are recognised
in equity. Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.11
(b)

(i)

sre MR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018
(Continued)

Measurement (Continued)

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are
included in the consolidated income statement as “gains and losses
from investment securities”. Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in
the consolidated income statement. Dividends on available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in the consolidated income
statement when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid
prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted
securities), the Group establishes fair value by using valuation
techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
reference to other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models, making
maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on
entity-specific inputs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.11
(b)

(iii)

sre MR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018
(Continued)

Impairment

The Group assesses at end of each reporting date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available-
for-sale financial assets, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered an indicator that
the securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-
for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in the consolidated income statement — is removed from equity
and recognised in the consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated income statement on equity
instruments are not reversed through the consolidated income
statement.

A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group will
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are
considered indicators that the receivable is impaired. The amount of
the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement
within administrative expenses. When a trade and other receivable is
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account for trade
and other receivable. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre MR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.12 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The
cost comprises costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable selling expenses.

2.13 Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade and other receivables with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
See Note 2.11 and Note 3.1(d) for further information about the
Group’s accounting for trade and other receivables for a description
of the Group’s impairment policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IN=Np e e kR

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
bank overdrafts.

2.15 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where the Company purchases its equity share capital (treasury
shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares
are cancelled or reissued. Where such shares are subsequently
reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is
included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.

2.16 Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

SR S B

VN

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

(@)

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on
the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities are
not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there
is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.18 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee termination
payments. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole.

A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with
respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best
estimate of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used
to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of
the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of discounts.

Revenue is recognised when, or as, the control of the goods or
services is transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms
of the contract and the laws applicable, control of the goods
and services may be transferred over time or at a point in time.
The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration of the type of customer, the type of transaction and
the specifics of each arrangement.

(i) Sales of food and beverages
Sales of food and beverages are recognised in the consolidated
income statement at the point of sale to customers or when a group
entity has delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Rental income
Rental income is recognised in the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Royalty and franchise income
Royalty and franchise income are recognised on an accrual basis over
the period in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements.

Management and service fee income
Management and service fee income is recognised over the time
when services are rendered.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

2.20 Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.
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2.21
(i)

(i)

(iii)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments are
recognised as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to be
settled within 12 months and are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when they are settled.

Pension obligations

The Group operates various pension schemes. The schemes are
generally funded through payments to insurance companies or
trustee-administered funds, determined by periodic actuarial
calculations. The Group has both defined benefit and defined
contribution plans. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan
that is not a defined contribution plan. Defined benefit plans typically
define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as
age, years of service and compensation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

VN

2.21
(iii)

sre MR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The liability or asset recognised in the statement of financial position
in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date less the fair value
of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined
by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest
rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension liability.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in statement of
profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service costs.

Remeasurement arising from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to
publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.21
(iv)

(v)

sre MR

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service payments to its
employees upon the termination of their employment or retirement
when the employee fulfills certain circumstances under the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their services in the current and
prior periods.

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method,
discounted to present value and reduced by entitlements accrued
under the Group’s retirement plans that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group. The discount rate is the yield
at the reporting date on high quality corporate bonds which have
terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability.

Remeasurement are charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans under which the Group receives services from
employees as consideration for equity instruments of the Company.
These plans comprise share option schemes and a share award
scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

VN

2.21
(v)

SR S B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options and the awarded shares is recognised as
an expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options or the awarded shares
as at the date of grant: (i) including any market performance
conditions; (ii) excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets); and (iii) including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for employees to save or
holding shares for a specified period of time). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options
or awarded shares that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of
each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of options or awarded shares that are expected to vest based on
the non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

For the share award scheme, the Group may purchase its own
shares through the trustee of the share award scheme from the
open market for the shares to be vested under the share award
scheme. The shares purchased by the Group that are not yet vested
for this share award scheme were recorded as treasury shares and
recorded as “Shares held for share award scheme” as a deduction
under equity. Upon vesting of the awarded shares, the related costs
of the purchased shares are reduced from the “Shares held for share
award scheme”, and the related fair value of the awarded shares
are debited to share-based compensation reserve with the difference
charged/credited to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares.
The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.22 Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are expensed in the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the leases.

When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the assets are
included in the consolidated statement of financial position based
on the nature of the assets. Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

2.23 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.

2.24 Financial guarantees

A financial guarantee (a type of insurance contract) is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of a debt instrument. The Group does not recognise
liabilities for financial guarantees at inception, but performs a liability
adequacy test at each reporting date by comparing its net liability
regarding the financial guarantee with the amount that would be
required if the financial guarantee to result in a present legal or
constructive obligation. If the liability is less than its present legal or
constructive obligation amount, the entire difference is recognised in
the consolidated income statement immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

W N\

3.1

(a)

sre MR

Financial Risk Management

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of the Group.
Because of the simplicity of the financial structure and the current
operations of the Group, no hedging activities are undertaken by
management.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China and
is exposed to foreign exchange risk from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Chinese Renminbi (“RMB").

Management has a policy to require group companies to manage
their foreign exchange risks against their respective functional
currencies. It mainly includes managing the exposures arisen from
sales and purchases made by relevant group companies in currencies
other than their own functional currencies. The Group also manages
its foreign exchange risk by performing regular reviews of the
Group’s net foreign exchange exposure. The Group has not used any
hedging arrangement to hedge its foreign exchange risk exposure.

As the assets and liabilities of each company within the Group are
mainly denominated in the respective company’s functional currency,
the directors are of the opinion that the Group’s volatility of its profits
against changes in exchange rates of foreign currencies would not
be significant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3.1
(b)

(@]

sre MR

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets except for bank
deposits, and bank structured/guaranteed deposit notes, the income
and operating cash flows of which are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.

Interest rate risk mainly arises from bank deposits at variable interest
rates which are subject to cash flow interest rate risk. The directors
are of the opinion that any reasonable changes in interest rates
would not result in a significant change in the Group’s results.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is presented for interest rate risk.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to securities price risk because investments
held by the Group are classified on the consolidated statement
of financial position as financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income. The Group has not mitigated its price risk
arising from these financial assets.

For the Group’s financial assets that are publicly traded, the fair
value is determined with reference to quoted market prices. For the
Group's financial assets that are not publicly traded, the Group uses
its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the reporting
date.

As at 31 March 2019, if the price of the listed equity securities
(financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income)
had increased/decreased by 10% with all other variables being
held constant, the Group’s FVOCI investment reserve would have
increased/decreased by HK$15,410,000 (2018: HK$14,798,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.1
(d)
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VN

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk

Risk management

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, contractual
cash flows of debt instruments carried at amortised cost, deposits
with bank and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to
customers and debtors, including trade and other receivables.

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Majority of the Group's
bank balances and deposits are placed in banks and financial
institutions which are independently rated with high credit ratings.
Management does not expect any losses from non-performance by
these banks and financial institutions as they have no default history
in the past. Therefore, expected credit loss rate of cash at bank is
assessed to be close to zero and no provision was made as at 31
March 2019.

The credit quality of the landlords is assessed based on the financial
position of the landlords as well as past experience of the Group in
dealing with the respective landlords. The Group has policies in place
to ensure rental deposits are placed to landlords with appropriate
credit histories and credit terms are granted to reliable debtors. The
Group’s historical experience in collection of deposits and other
receivables falls within recorded allowance and the directors are of
the opinion that expected credit loss rate of these balances is close
to zero and no provision was made as at 31 March 2019.

There is no concentration of credit risk as the Group's bank
balances and deposits are deposited in over ten financial institutions
with good credit ratings, and the Group has a large number of
counterparties for rental deposits, trade and other receivables.
Management does not expect any losses from non-performance by
these financial institutions and counterparties.

3

3.1
(d)
(i)

B ERERE (F)
ﬁ%ﬂ
FER
N oy =g
EERRERSRASSEER - kS
BRAAEZEEIAZANRLR

PSESCD)

B RORMBEEBNTFIAREP R
EHANEERR (BEEXMEMER

ARIB) FTSIRE ©

ZT NERTZAER - REEHA

ﬁﬁ B N IF R F IR E R B L
%ﬁ&¥ﬁmﬁf?%mﬁﬂ&%W%
BA - HRZFRITEEMEEREL
BEARY NEEEREATELEREA
mERBHMELENTMAEBSR - Et -
RITHRENBHREEBEB RN EHE
AT R -_F-hF=A=+—HIE
EET R o

EIWMEEERTDRBEEMBOGRIAK
AEERBEZIRIZHBELRMAT
o AEBRABRKBERALERIFE
Stk XTRHEABIRE - XAASE
MﬁﬁAﬁ%ET% RIBEAEE B
ER&E - WEoRe MHE M EWARIEL
%tﬁ%“ﬁZ@ﬁ BEERRAF
BHNFAEHMEEBREROT BN
E-NF=ZA=1+—BUEREE

REBRIRTITRERR T 2 BIF N E
BETHALARFEEFR 2B
B BMUYESTEERR MASEE
ﬁmyﬁﬁﬁﬁuﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁmEW%
BN S%7S - ERERBTELERE
HZETREBLRISH T RBEOMES
EEfRLK

AREEEAR AR 201819 5k 129



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o A

VN

B SR T ot

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(d) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has three main types of financial assets that are subject to

the expected credit loss model:

(1)

@)

Cash and cash equivalents;
Trade receivables; and

Other financial assets measured at amortised costs (including
deposits and other receivables)

Cash and cash equivalents

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables of the Group are subject to the expected
credit loss model. The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for trade receivables. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on the nature of customer accounts,
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles
of sales over a period of 12 months before 31 March 2019
or 1 April 2018 respectively and the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables.
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3  Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HEERREE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIEBEZE (&)
(d)  Credit risk (Continued) (d) EEmRpk(E)
(i)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) EHEEBEGE)
(2)  Trade receivables (Continued) (2) EEENKEIEE)
On the basis, expected loss rate of trade receivables is BRUEEE R-_T—-—HhLhF=A
assessed to be close to zero, as at 31 March 2019 and 1 April =+—BEk=ZZF—N\FWEHAH—
2018. In respect of trade receivables, the loss allowance as at B &XEWRENTEHBERX
31 March 2019 and 1 April 2018 (on adoption of HKFRS 9) WA EREIT - HEFEEI
was determined as follows: BRIEmME RZTE—NAF=A
=+—HE=ZE-N\FWHA—H
WEEEE (EREBMBREL
Alo)ExEMT
0-30 31-60 61-90 91-365 Over 365
31 March 2019 days days days days days Total
“E-REZA=1-H 0Z30H 31260H 61290H 91%2365H #365H @5t
HKS000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HKS$000
FEn A FEn FEn & FEn
Gross carrying amount BEEE- 2%
- Trade receivables A 49,724 11,201 5,581 4,320 1,225 72,051
Loss allowance EERE - - = = (1,182) (1,182)
0-30 31-60 61-90 91-365 Over 365
1 April 2018 days days days days days Total
—2-\fmA-H 0%308 31Z60H 61290A 912365 #1365 st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
AT TEL TET TET TET AT
Gross carrying amount BERE- 2%
- Trade receivables FEBR IR 43,600 11,529 7,052 3,183 942 66,306
Loss allowance EEkE - - - (103) (942) (1,045)
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
3) Other financial assets measured at amortised costs (including
deposits and other receivables)

Other financial assets at amortised cost include the other
receivables excluding prepayments. The credit quality of other
financial assets at amortised cost has been assessed with
reference to historical information about the counterparties
default rates and financial position of the counterparties.
Management is of the opinion that the risk of default by
these counterparties is not significant and does not expect
any losses from non-performance by the counterparties.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of the other financial
assets at amortised cost is assessed to be close to zero and no
provision was made as at 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2018.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
available credit facilities. The Group continues to maintain a healthy
net cash position by keeping credit lines available and to maintain
flexibility in future funding.

The Group’s primary cash requirements are payments for trade and
other payables and operating expenses. The Group mainly finances
its working capital requirements through internal resources.

As at 31 March 2019, all of the Group’s financial liabilities equaled
their carrying amounts as they are due within 12 months from 31
March 2019 with insignificant discounting impact.
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3.2

3.3

SR S B

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Total capital of the Group is calculated as “capital and reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Company” less total
borrowings, if any. Management considers that the Group’s capital
risk is minimal as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value,
by valuation method. The difference levels have been defined as
follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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3  Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are

measured at fair value at 31 March 2019:

3 MBEREREEE)

3.3 APEME (&)
AEBR-T-AF=A=+—AEA
TFEFENEBAERTINTE

Level 1 Total
£ et
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value through BRATEIAEMEE
other comprehensive income WAZ R & E
— Listed equity investments - kiR E 154,102 154,102
Total financial assets measured BEATEENER
at fair value BEBRR 154,102 154,102

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are

measured at fair value at 31 March 2018:

ARER_Z-N\F=ZA=+—BEA
FEAEBNSREERIINTE

Level 1 Total
E— FEE
HK$000 HK$'000
FETT FETL
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets AELESREE
— Listed equity investments - FTRR R E 147,978 147,978
Total financial assets measured BAFEFTENEE
at fair value BEAEE 147,978 147,978
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3.3

sre MR

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. These
instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

The carrying values less loss allowance of trade and other receivables
and payables are a reasonable approximation of their fair values. The
fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments. There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3

during the year.

3.3

HERREE (&)
NEEME (E)
EERMERZNEMTI A  EAFE
DERBREBRMSE - ﬁu%i&{ﬁ
BERMTEHRRZA . X5\ - K4
ﬁ\%mAi\iE%ﬁ%&ﬁa%%
EE MZERERREBELAERSHEE
BEITHEBRNERMER SR - &M
AR AR o WEET ASMASE 4
REEERMBEENSHIAENATF
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REMNAESHAIBREMISEE
EQWEE%W%E%ﬁomﬁﬂIE
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= BZeEMmIAIAEZ —F -

AR ZEEZH AELIFERAE
EHMIHEER - BT ARPIAE =4 -
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EBEREEREE  SEAVEZRER
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(a)

sre MR

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment, leasehold land and land use
rights and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land use rights,
and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on the higher of value-in-use calculations or fair
value less costs to sell calculations. The calculations require the use of
judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that
may indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable;
(i) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could affect the net present value used in the
impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of operations.
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(b)
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sre MR

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives, and
related depreciation and amortisation charges for its property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets. The estimates are based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets of similar nature and functions.
Management will increase the depreciation and amortisation
charges where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives.
It will write off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may
differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in a
change in depreciable and amortisable lives and therefore affect the
depreciation and amortisation charges in future periods.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. The Group recognises liabilities or anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

The Group also has significant tax losses carried forward not
recognised as deferred income tax assets. Deferred income tax
assets in respect of tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

(b)

(9

BAE RV S BT & N H il ()

M- BENRE
ZA{E S
AEBZEEBREYE  BEN&E
MEFVEEETEMAAERFANERH
PEREIH L o AR ARMIEE &
jJAbZ%% BB R e BB E A

RN EBLEE

EEBRCERAERAFHAEE - fWA]
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(d)

(e)
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Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Income taxes (Continued)

No deferred income tax assets are recognised when it is uncertain
whether there are sufficient future taxable profits available before
such tax losses expire where the final outcome of these uncertainties
are different from the estimation, such differences will impact the
carrying amount of deferred income tax assets in the period in which
such determination is made.

Judgement is required in determining the provision for withholding
tax on the undistributed retained profits of the PRC subsidiaries. The
Group assesses its needs to make distribution out of its subsidiaries.
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised on the undistributed
retained profits that are expected to be distributed by the Group in
the future.

Fair values of financial assets
The fair values of financial assets that are traded in an active market
are determined by the quoted market prices.

Fair values of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value with changes
in the fair values recognised in consolidated income statement. The
Group obtains independent valuations at least annually. At the end
of each reporting period, the management update their assessment
of the fair value of each property, taking into account the most
recent independent valuations.
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(f)
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Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans under which the Group receives services from
employees as consideration for equity instruments of the Company.
These plans comprise share option schemes and a share award
scheme. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options or shares is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options or shares granted as at the date of grant:
(i) including any market performance conditions; (ii) excluding
the impact of any service and non- market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth targets); and
(iii) including the impact of any non-vesting conditions. Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number
of options or shares that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of
each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of options or shares that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income statement,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

(f)

BAE RV S BT & N H il ()
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Segment Information

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of quick service
restaurants and institutional catering, casual dining chains, as well as
food processing and distribution business.

The Chief Executive Officer of the Group reviews the Group's
internal reporting in order to allocate resources amongst different
segments. He assesses the business principally from a geographical
perspective including Hong Kong and Mainland China. Segment

AEEIZEEERERNBBRR
REERARRYER N D HFET °

AEBEBHERNTEENASE AR
T RERESESRER  WEBR
wEAE (BREERPEAM) FEE
EMR e RTINZ D BEEHKRRRE

result as presented below represents operating profit before fair

value gain on investment properties, depreciation and amortisation

and impairment loss.

Segment information for the Group for the current year and

EMEZR

AEERF -

BEERIZ E&HAM o

& - HH OB

REBAFEEN D BEHM LR T

comparative figures are as follows: N~
Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
BB FR Bl At rEH
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Year ended 31 March 2019 BHE-T—NF
ZA=+—RHIFE
Total segment revenue BAFERA 7,345,454 1,274,169 8,619,623
Inter-segment revenue (Note i) U ONCIED) (3,500) (122,240) (125,740)
Revenue (from external revenue) WA (2R B NEBURA)

(Note ii) (B &Eii) 7,341,954 1,151,929 8,493,883
Segment result (Note iii) DABELE (T 884,711 162,011 1,046,722
Depreciation and amortisation e R (304,708) (51,168) (355,876)
Fair value gain on investment WEME 2 A HER

properties 19,800 - 19,800
Impairment loss of property, M - R MEE 2 BEEE

plant and equipment (3,529) - (3,529)
Finance income WA 11,646 3,157 14,803
Income tax expense FriSti& MR (107,486) (22,324) (129,810)
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Segment Information (Continued) 5 S2¥ERGE)
Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
BB AR B At KEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FETT FET FETL
Year ended 31 March 2018 HE—_ZT—\F
=H :‘f’_ HIEFE
Total segment revenue FEEET PN 7,355,111 1,205,743 8,560,854
Inter-segment revenue (Note i) NEB S FEUWA (FFEET) (3,893) (129,562) (133,455)
Revenue (from external revenue) WA (2k 8 SNERUA)

(Note ii) (BF=Eii) 7,351,218 1,076,181 8,427,399
Segment result (Note iii) DFEEELE (i) 792,172 136,029 928,201
Depreciation and amortisation e K (297,576) (46,870) (344,446)
Fair value gain on investment REWEZ R FHERN

properties 18,800 - 18,800
Impairment loss of property, M - BB KRB REEE

plant and equipment (32,972) - (32,972)
Finance income TSI A 4,959 6,702 11,661
Income tax expense FriStiE A (86,928) (35,021) (121,949)
0) Inter-segment transactions were entered into in the normal (i) NED IR F TR IEH ¥ 15 878

course of business. =21 VAR

(i) The Group has a large number of customers. For the

year ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, no revenue was

derived from transactions with a single external customer

representing 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue.

(ii)

rEEREEAERT  -BE_T
—NFR-ZB-NF=A=1+—
HIEFE  WEE —INEETZ
RBEEEAREERKA 10% X
PAEZ WA
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5 Segment Information (Continued)

(i) Reconciliation of total segment results to total profit before

5

(iii)

T REER (F)

ROBRRRRE

PRIV

R A58 B g A1 )

income tax is as follows: BRaAR -
2019 2018
—E-NF —N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Segment results Pak e 1,046,722 928,201
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #7% [z 8 (355,876) (344,446)
Fair value gain on investment WEYF 2 AHEER
properties 19,800 18,800
Impairment loss of property, M - BB MR ERERRE
plant and equipment (3,529) (32,972)
Operating profit 18 s A 707,117 569,583
Finance income B RSU A 14,803 11,661
Profit before income tax FRA A& A 721,920 581,244

142 Café de Coral Holdings Limited « Annual Report 2018/19



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IN=Np e e kR

Segment Information (Continued) 5 S2¥ERGE)
Mainland
Hong Kong China Group
&8 B Ay b AEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Year ended 31 March 2019 HE—_ZT—NF
=EF= —i—— BIEFE
Segment assets DIREE 3,648,783 677,507 4,326,290
Segment assets include: DIEEERSRE
Additions to non-current assets ANEFENBEE(ERMT AR
(other than financial instruments FEIEFI IR & ERRIN)
and deferred income tax assets) 250,101 101,629 351,730
Year ended 31 March 2018 HE—Z—\&F
—A=1t—HItFE
Segment assets DEREE 3,541,137 893,325 4,434,462
Segment assets include: DIEERLE
Additions to non-current assets ANEIENBEE(ERMT AR
(other than financial instruments FEIEFIIB & ERRIN)
and deferred income tax assets) 440,887 82,083 522,970
As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s non-current assets (other N-—_ZE—hE=A=+—H ' ~"&EH

than financial instruments and deferred income tax assets) that

are located in Hong Kong and the Mainland China amounted
to HK$2,570,465,000 (2018: HK$2,713,049,000) and
HK$365,199,000 (2018: HK$350,369,000) respectively.

EREBERFPEIAMNIERDE E
(EMITAREEHEEERIN) 25
#2,570,465,000/% w( = & — \ & :

2,713,049,0007% 7T ) & 365,199,000%

TT(ZF
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5 Segment Information (Continued)

Reconciliation of total segment assets to total assets is provided as

DEER ()

ROBERERBEENHIRNT

follows:

2019 2018
—g-nE —=— )\
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEL
Total segment assets BOBEE 4,326,290 4,434,462
Deferred income tax assets RIEFIAE 12,681 30,506
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESHERE - 147,978

Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEIIAHEMEARAZ EREE
other comprehensive income 154,102 -
Current income tax recoverable BNHA AT Y [B] £ 18 1,017 3,383
Total assets EEE 4,494,090 4,616,329

6 Leasehold Land and Land Use Rights HELHR T ERRE

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent
prepaid operating lease payments and their net book values are
analysed as follows:

AEBNRHEE 1 & i AR ER
EEMNELHERERERRFE  »
N

2019 2018

—E-NF —F—N\F

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FEx FEIT

Beginning of the year FEEER 79,485 80,532
Amortisation of leasehold land and FEE £ 3th [ + S {35 PR ARS8 85

land use rights (2,959) (2,967)

Exchange differences PE 5 =5 (1,295) 1,920

End of the year FREEE 75,231 79,485

Amortisation expense of HK$2,959,000 (2018: HK$2,967,000) has
been charged to cost of sales.
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7  Property, Plant and Equipment 7 Y% BERRE

Land and Furniture
buildings  Leasehold  and other
(Note b) improvements  equipment Plant and

T REF HE &ME  machinery Total
(PffEEb) BFEE HittF%E BRERME k)
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET T FET FET FET
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+F
MmA—HA
Cost %N 1,249,047 1,043,481 1,432,526 201,134 3,926,188
Accumulated depreciation ZRFERLREBE
and impairment losses (217,031) (649,700)  (1,014,876) (100,974)  (1,982,581)
Closing net book amount FEREFE 1,032,016 393,781 417,650 100,160 1,943,607
Year ended 31 March 2018 BE_Z—N\F
=A :‘I'— HIEFE
Opening net book amount FEYRmFE 1,032,016 393,781 417,650 100,160 1,943,607
Additions NE = 222,213 231,679 7,904 461,796
Disposals & - (11,556) (10,278) (378) (22,212)
Depreciation e (29,352) (136,404) (156,303) (18,668) (340,727)
Impairment RE - (15,405) (17,567) = (32,972)
Transfer from property, plant B - BB REE
and equipment to BERERENE
investment properties (Note 8)  (Ffiz£8) (76,800) = = = (76,800)
Revaluation surplus prior B - BB REE
to transfer of property, EE SR AR
plant and equipment to 2 Efh B
investment properties 65,287 - - - 65,287
Exchange differences [ 5 =58 10,351 7,186 1,918 3,491 22,946
Closing net book amount FIEEFE 1,001,502 459,815 467,099 92,509 2,020,925
At 31 March 2018 RZE—N\F
=A=+—H
Cost AR 1,246,288 1,161,960 1,504,565 214,537 4,127,350
Accumulated depreciation and  2FEHE KR EEE
impairment losses (244,786) (702,145)  (1,037,466) (122,028) (2,106,425)
Closing net book amount FIEEFE 1,001,502 459,815 467,099 92,509 2,020,925
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7  Property, Plant and Equipment 7 Y% BERRMEGE)
(Continued)
Land and Furniture
buildings Leasehold and other
(Note b) improvements  equipment Plant and
THRET HE HMKE  machinery Total
(FizEb) EFEE Hithzz e R R Has B
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Year ended 31 March 2019 BEZZ—NF
ZA=T-RLLFE
Opening net book amount FNREHE 1,001,502 459,815 467,099 92,509 2,020,925
Additions NE - 141,649 135,598 12,936 290,183
Disposals HE - (8,028) (7,433) (79) (15,540)
Depreciation ik (29,114) (144,753) (159,665) (18,821) (352,353)
Impairment A = (1,377) (2,152) = (3,529)
Exchange differences e (6,852) (5,908) (1,975) (2,241) (16,976)
Closing net book amount FREREHE 965,536 441,398 431,472 84,304 1,922,710
At 31 March 2019 R-B—NF
EfET—E
Cost TN 1,235,509 1,213,161 1,547,020 221,100 4,216,790
Accumulated depreciation and ZEFERAEER
impairment losses (269,973) (771,763) (1,115,548) (136,796) (2,294,080)
Closing net book amount FREREHE 965,536 441,398 431,472 84,304 1,922,710
@) Depreciation expenses of HK$327,317,000 (2018: (@ ¥ & R £327,317,000% o ( =
HK$321,102,000) and HK$25,036,000 (2018: T —/\%F 321,102,000/ 7T ) &
HK$19,625,000) have been charged to cost of sales and 25,036,000 T( = F — /\ §F :
administrative expenses, respectively, while impairment loss 19,625,00078 7T ) B 73 Al T A 85
has been charged to other gains/(losses), net (Note 23). EXRARITRER - BEBER
STAEMFE R, (EE) (Fs
23) °
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7  Property, Plant and Equipment

(Continued)

(b) The Group’s land and buildings are analysed as follows:

7

Y% - BB RRE (&)

b) AEEHREF IO

2019 2018
—B-NEF —E—N\&F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FEIT
Net book value: BREVHE -

Freehold land KA FERE L 14,811 14,811

Leasehold land classified METHOEARERE
as finance lease 390,454 401,756
Buildings g 560,271 584,935
965,536 1,001,502

8 Investment Properties 8 REWR
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Beginning of the year FHEEER 663,300 567,700
Transfer from property, plant and B - B REE

equipment to investment properties ERER AN - 76,800
Fair value gain (Note 23) NFEEEF (KIFE23) 19,800 18,800
Disposal (Note 31(c)) & (FizE31(c) (55,100) =
End of the year FREH 628,000 663,300
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8 Investment Properties (Continued) 8 RKBEWHX(E)
Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment properties: PRENENEREPHEROSE
2019 2018
—g-nE EF S\
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Rental income e A 24,468 22,700
Direct operating expenses EEReBRAZYEZ
from properties that generate EEEEER
rental income (1,543) (986)
22,925 21,714
As at 31 March 2019, the group had no un-provided contractual RZE-—NAF=A=+—8  A5EL
obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2018: Nil) BEEBARREERREZABEGNE

E(CE-N\F:8)-

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment properties was N E2 Bl4% & W) 5 /3 CBRE Limited ([ &8
performed by CBRE Limited (the “Valuer”), to determine the fair B D ETEYGE NEETREDE
value of the investment properties as at 31 March 2019 and 2018. RZBE-NFRZZE-NF=A=+—
Fair value gain has been credited to other gains/(losses), net (Note BEOAFE 2FEZHNEEEAM
23). A, (B5H8) (BI7E23) AETA o
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8 Investment Properties (Continued)

The following table analyses the investment properties carried at fair
value, by valuation method.

8 KREWX(H)

TRANBHEERDFEDITIREYE -

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2019 using

REB-NAF=ZA=+—-BZATVEFEFAEHR

Quoted prices in
active markets for other observable

Significant
unobservable

Significant

identical assets inputs inputs
EEEEEERE Hity AT & EMN FABEN
5 L WRE ERBAE ERBAE
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
i (B—4) (BB=#) (BB=4)
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Recurring fair value measurements & EMHEAF(EE
Investment properties: KEME -
— Shops — Hong Kong - - B - - 628,000

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2018 using
R-E—\F=RA=+—RZz2AHEFEFRXEA

Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets for  other observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
FAEEELSER HAb I #RE FERTEIERE
M5 ERR(E EVNCYNE] BARBAE
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
et (B—8) (B4 (B=4)
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TFrET TET T
Recurring fair value measurements  EHEQFETE
Investment properties: WEWE
— Shops — Hong Kong - - A - - 663,300

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of
fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

AEBBRANEM A R EHER

EZEREBREFE - ERAFEER
EEEA N o
FR B BoARE=LEUE

R
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Investment Properties (Continued)

Valuation process of the Group

The fair value of the Group's investment property at 31 March 2019
were determined on the basis of a valuation by a qualified valuer in
accordance with the “HKIS Valuation Standards 2017 published by
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, which is also compliant with
the RICS Valuation — Professional Standards of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors and the International Valuation Standards
(IVS).

Valuation technique

Fair value is defined as “the estimated amount for which an asset
or liability should exchange on the valuation date between a willing
buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s-length transaction after proper
marketing and where the parties had each acted knowledgeably,
prudently and without compulsion.”

Under the direct comparison method, fair value of the investment
property is derived from comparing the property to be valued directly
with other comparable properties, which have recently transacted.
However, given the heterogeneous nature of the properties,
appropriate adjustments are usually required to allow for any
qualitative differences that may affect the price likely to be achieved
by the property under consideration. The most significant impact
into this valuation approach is price per square meter. The higher the
price per square meter, the higher the fair value of the investment
properties.

There was no change to the valuation technique with that of prior
year.

The Group’s management reviews the valuation performed by
independent valuer and holds discussion of the valuation processes
and results are held with the independent qualified valuer once a
year for financial reporting purpose.
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9 Intangible Assets 9 HIEE
Other
intangible
Goodwill assets Total
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2017 N—E—+FHH—H
Cost A 1,350 59,371 60,721
Accumulated amortisation RAEE S NOREE R
and impairment losses (246) (55,854) (56,100)
Closing net book amount FIREETFE 1,104 3,517 4,621
Year ended 31 March 2018 HE_ T \E=ZA=1+—HIFE
Opening net book amount FHRREFE 1,104 3,517 4,621
Amortisation expense (Note (a)) 242 /A (M3 (a) - (752) (752)
Exchange differences M =5 - 182 182
Closing net book amount FREREFE 1,104 2,947 4,051
At 31 March 2018 R-ZE—N\F=A=+—H
Cost AR 1,350 59,371 60,721
Accumulated amortisation ZIEEESH ORI EEE
and impairment losses (246) (56,424) (56,670)
Closing net book amount FREETEFE 1,104 2,947 4,051
Year ended 31 March 2019 HE T NWE=A=1+—HIFE
Opening net book amount FAAREFE 1,104 2,947 4,051
Amortisation expense (Note (a))  #5%E F (Kt (a) - (564) (564)
Disposals HE = (1,577) (1,577)
Exchange differences [ N =58 - (58) (58)
Closing net book amount FIRAREFE 1,104 748 1,852
At 31 March 2019 R-ZE—HAFE=A=+—H
Cost PR R 1,350 57,794 59,144
Accumulated amortisation 2FEE I R EETE
and impairment losses (246) (57,046) (57,292)
Closing net book amount FARAREDFE 1,104 748 1,852
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(b)
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Intangible Assets (Continued)

Amortisation expense of HK$564,000 (2018: HK$752,000) has been
charged to costs of sales.

Other intangible assets mainly represent franchise rights with useful
lives of 5 to 20 years.

Impairment tests for goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs)
identified according to country of operation.

A segment-level summary of the goodwill allocation is presented
below.

Hong Kong BB

(a)

(b)

(9

BREE (8)

564,000 70 ( —Z — J\ £ : 752,000/5
TC) 2B E AR T A B o

HEMEFEEETFBEERE - EFEA
FHIAS5ZE 204

BRI
BEDERALENELER (RERS
EEBAHA) HE -

2019 2018
—2-NnE —EN\E
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FET
1,104 1,104

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined based on the
higher of (i) fair value less costs to sell and (i) value in use determined
using the discounted cash flow method. The calculations of the
recoverable amounts of the CGUs in Hong Kong were determined
with reference to their fair value less costs to sell.

152 Café de Coral Holdings Limited « Annual Report 2018/19

ReELEMMA RESENIZORF
{ERL & O 2 (i) A BRIR IR & M B OERT
B2EABEABRSERE)ETE -
REBRSEEBUMNAIRE AR
BEAFEROEKRASE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4T e SRR M

10 Subsidiaries 10 MIEXRF
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March TREIRZZE-—NF=ZA=+—HBH
2019: TEWNBRRER
Place of
incorporation/ Issued/ Percentage
establishment registered  Class of of shares
and operation capital  shares held held’
Name of subsidiary ML R L BRI/ FiE FriRk4®  Principal activities
MEARERE RS2 EMfBRAE ROER B EEXEK
Amigo Mio Limited Hong Kong HK$20  Ordinary 100%  Catering
B 2087 E& R
Asia Pacific Catering Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
Corporation Limited B 1,000,000 L@ R
wERRERAA
Barson Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000  Ordinary 100%  Property investment
BHERARAR B 10,0008  E& MERE
Bloomcheer Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
HEBERAF BB 1,000,00087T E& R
Bravo le Café Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BB 28T E@ HR
Brilliantwin Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
NG B 1,000,000/ Ei#@ HR
Café de Coral Assets Limited  British Virgin Islands Us$1  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
RBERES 1%1T  E#® REER
Café de Coral Central Hong Kong HK$20  Ordinary 100%  Food processing
Processing Limited B 2087 LA RYIEE
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10 Subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary
MEARERE

Café de Coral (China) Limited

AEK%(FE) BRAF

Café de Coral (Denmark) ApS

Café de Coral Development

Limited!

Café de Coral Group Limited

AREERBRAA

Café de Coral (Guangzhou)
Catering Company Limited
RRE(BMN) RmARRAR

Café de Coral (Macau) Limited

AEK%(ORF) BRAF]

Café de Espressamente illy

(HK) Limited

City Energy Limited
BlEE AR AR

Dai Lo Foo (Holdings) Limited

RER(RE)BRAA

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
MR R
RBE I

Hong Kong
BB

Denmark
e

British Virgin Islands

B

Hong Kong
BB

The People’s

Issued/
registered
capital
E®T/

o AR

HK$60,960,458
60,960,458 7T

DKK 125,000
125,000 fH25 52 BB

Us$1
B

HK$148,923,550

148,923,550 7T

HK$21,000,000

Republic of China 21,000,000/ 7T

(“The PRC")
PEARKME
(TeRE )

Macau
SBFT

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB
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MOP300,000
300,000 27T

HK$16,000,000
16,000,000 47T

HK$200,000
200,000 7T

HK$1,804,176
1,804,176 7T

10 FELR (&)

Percentage
Class of of shares
shares held held’
Fis Fr# B4 Principal activities
grig el Bol' EEEH
Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
g KREER
Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
g KREER
Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
g REER
Ordinary 100%  Catering
g R
= 100%  Catering

R

Ordinary 70%  Catering
g R
Ordinary 70%  Investment holding
g REER
Ordinary 100%  Property investment
i MERE
Ordinary 100%  Catering
g R
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10 Subsidiaries (Continued) 10 FIBATE (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued/ Percentage
establishment registered  Class of of shares
and operation capital  shares held held’
Name of subsidiary FEM AR R L B®1T/ FE Fr# B4 Principal activities
MEARERE RQE I aEfRA  ROER BO' TEER
Diners Court Management Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
Limited BE 1,000,000 E&@ R
LZRUEBRARAF
Dongguan Asia Pacific Catering The PRC HK$7,400,000 - 100%  Catering
Company Limited H 7,400,000 78T 7928
RERZBHRRARAF
Dongguan Continental Foods ~ The PRC RMB27,330,000 - 100%  Food processing
Limited m AR# 27,330,000 T RYAEE
REBRERmARAR
Eldoon Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BB 1,000,000 E&@ R
Exo Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$4,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BB 4,000,000/ EBE R
Fine Regent Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
REBBARLE BB 3,000,000 &l KR
Foshan Café de Coral Catering The PRC HK$6,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Company Limited H 6,000,000 87T KR
BLARLERRABRAD
Gateway City Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
B 1,000,000 L@ R
Global Force Limited Hong Kong HK$12,466,446  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BEARAF £ 12,466,446 8 L@ R
Grand Seasons (Central) Food ~ Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
and Beverages Caterers b 1,000,000/  Ei@ 7928

Company Limited

RRES
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10 Subsidiaries (Continued) 10 FIBATE (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued/ Percentage
establishment registered  Class of of shares
and operation capital  shares held held’
Name of subsidiary AR L B®T/ FE Fr# B4 Principal activities
MEARERE RBE I AR ROER Bo' TEER
Greatpower Kingdom Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$12,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
RAEEEFR QA BE 12,000,000 il R
Greenwise Limited Hong Kong HK$4,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
HEBRAR BB 4,000,000/ Ei#@ KR
Guangzhou Asia Pacific The PRC HK$16,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company Limited R 16,000,000 % 7T KR
BEMZEHRRARAT
Guangzhou Café de Coral The PRC US$23,500,000 - 100%  Food processing
Foods Limited H 23,500,000 7T BYIEE
BMNARLEERBEBRAR]
Honour Congee & Noodles Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
Food Limited BE 1,000,000 E& R
ERERRERAR
Huizhou Asia Pacific Catering ~ The PRC HK$3,200,000 - 100%  Catering
Company Limited H 3,200,000 7T KR
BMZEHRARAT
Invol Resources Limited Hong Kong HK$6,125,000  Ordinary 100%  Property investment
BEERERER AR (incorporation)/ 6,125,000/ E&@ MERE
The PRC (operation)
B (ML)
FE ()
Jetstar Universal Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
RERARAT B 1,000,00087C  EiB@ KR
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10 Subsidiaries (Continued) 10 FIBATE (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued/ Percentage
establishment registered  Class of of shares
and operation capital  shares held held’
Name of subsidiary FEM AR R L B®1T/ FE Fr# B4 Principal activities
MEARERE RQE I aEfRA  ROER BO' TEER
Jiangmen Café de Coral The PRC HK$5,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company Limited R 5,000,000 7T KR
IPIRRERRBR AR
Kamstar International Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
L ERERBRAR] 6 1,000,00087T  EiB@ 7428
Kater International Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
I B A R A A 6 1,000,00087T  EiB@ 7428
Kolink Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Leasing of
BlHt b EFR AR B 28T L@ premises space
MEWMELE
Luckyview Enterprises Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary 100%  Leasing of properties
FRECERRAT BB 1#8T  T@ HEWE
Maradona Limited Hong Kong HK$20  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
BB 2087 LA REER
Paramount Success Limited Hong Kong HK$14,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
REARAR] B 14,000,00087C &Ll REER
Perfect Plan International British Virgin Islands US$1  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
Limited REERES 1% @ REER
Real King Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
KABRLRE 5 5000,000/ 87T E#@ R
Regal Universal Limited Hong Kong HK$8,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
BRRFARLA B 8,000,000/87T &l R
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10 Subsidiaries (Continued) 10 FIBATE (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued/ Percentage
establishment registered  Class of of shares
and operation capital  shares held held’
Name of subsidiary AR L B®T/ FE Fr# B4 Principal activities
MEARERE RBE I AR ROER Bo' TEER
Scanfoods Limited Hong Kong HK$2,100,000  Ordinary 100%  Food trading
ItRERRmARAR BB 2,100,000 &l BmE
Shenzhen Café de Coral The PRC HK$12,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company Limited R 12,000,000 % 7T KR
RYARRERRBR AR
Shenzhen Prime Deal Catering  The PRC HK$32,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Company Limited H 32,000,000/ 7T KR
RYIEBRR AR AR
Silver Weal Enterprises Limited  Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
FNEEEBRAA B 1,000,000 E& R
Sparango Limited Hong Kong HK$6,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
5 6,000,000/87T &l R
The Spaghetti House Hong Kong HK$10,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
Restaurants Limited B 10,000,000/ L@ KA
EMERRLT
Very Nice Fast Food Limited Hong Kong HK$17,025,000  Class A 100%  Catering
HEERmMARAA B HK$5,675,000  Class B2 AR
17,025,00087T  A¥ERI2
5.675,000/87T  BHEHI?
Vogue Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary 100%  Investment holding
BAAEMNER AT B 1#T  TE KA
Weli Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Ordinary 100%  Catering
AARRHE BB 1,000,000 E& R
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10 Subsidiaries (Continued) 10 FIBATE (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued/ Percentage
establishment registered  Class of of shares
and operation capital  shares held held’
Name of subsidiary FEM AR R L B®1T/ FE Fr# B4 Principal activities
MEARERE RQE I aEfRA  ROER BO' TEER
Winfast Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000  Ordinary 100%  Property investment
KEEBER AR (incorporation)/ 10,0008 E& MERE
PRC (operation)
B (EKSL)
FE ()
Worldson Enterprises Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2  Ordinary 100%  Catering
EFERERRAT BB 28T E@ KR
Worldway Limited Macau MOP300,000  Ordinary 100%  Property investment
RERRAE P 300,000}8FIT &l MERE
Yumi Yumi Caterers Limited Hong Kong HK$6,701,560  Class A 100%  Catering and
EEHRARAR BB HK$2,872,100  Class B property investment
6,701,560/87C  A¥ERI3 RERMERE

2,872,100/  BFHEAI3

Zhongshan Café de Coral The PRC HK$1,300,000 - 100%  Catering
Catering Company Limited R 1,300,000 /7T R
HIUARLERRBR AR

Zhuhai Café de Coral Catering  The PRC HK$8,000,000 - 100%  Catering
Company Limited H 8,000,000 87T KR
WEAREFRER AR

[ Café de Coral Development Limited is held directly by the Company. All other ! Café de Coral Development Limited F3 252 &)
subsidiaries are held indirectly. BHERE - MEEMMB AR REERE -

2 Holders of class A shares of this subsidiary have priority over those of class B shares 2 KB ARARRRG 2 HEAZE TR
on certain shareholders' rights. REMBRBERRG 558 APMER 2

e

3 Holders of class A shares of this subsidiary have voting rights, while holders of class g LM B AR ABRIRG 2 A ABEBIRE
B shares have no voting rights. ¥ - T BEABIAR < F5 8 A AR AL -

2 The official names of the companies incorporated in PRC are in Chinese. English 2 R BFMEIOARZEEREERP
translation is for reference only. X o BNEREHRSE -

5 All of the companies incorporated in PRC are wholly foreign owned enterprises. 5 AR EFMER IO AR RINGEERE -
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11 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through 11 ZEAFEIAEMEERKRA

Other Comphrensive Income/Available- ZEREE AHEESE
for-sale Financial Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets include the following: AEHESHEEREATIER -
2019 2018
—E-NEF —F—)\F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET

Listed investments denominated in HK$ —_E#%& (LA TEHE)

— Market value of listed equity - F kR S TE
securities - 147,978
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income BRATFEIAREMEERAZCHBEE
include the following: BIEATIERE -
2019 2018
—E-NF —EFN\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Listed investments denominated in HK$ & (ABTEHE)
— Market value of listed equity - LR S TE
securities 154,102 -
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Financial Assets at Fair Value Through 11
Other Comphrensive Income/Available-
for-sale Financial Assets (Continued)

Movement in the available-for-sale financial assets is as follows:

BAFEIAHEMEEZEBA
ZEMEE AHHESHE
BE (&)

2018

—EF—N\F

HK$°000

FET

Beginning of the year FHEEER 229,621

Fair value loss transferred to other EREHMEEmERAZ

comprehensive income (Note 21) N EEE(MRFE21) (81,643)
End of the year FRER 147,978

Movement in the financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income is as follows:

BATEFIALMBEERAZ S RAE
2 BB -

2019

—E-hEF

HK$°000

FET

Beginning of the year FANEEAR -
Reclassified from available-for-sale financial A ER4NEBI iR EXER] 918

assets upon adoption of HKFRS 9 HAMEHESREESHHHE 147,978

Opening balance as at 1 April 2018 RZ_T—)\FHH—B#i&eR 147,978

Fair value gain transferred to other BERFEMEERAZ
comprehensive income (Note 21) NEEEN (HEE21) 6,124
End of the year FREEER 154,102

The fair values of the listed equity investments are based on their
current bid prices in an active market.

EHBEREN R FEREERTSH

RITEHERS
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12 Non-current Prepayments and Deposits

Non-current prepayments and deposits mainly comprise rental and
utility deposits and prepayments for property, plant and equipment.

Substantially all of the non-current prepayments and deposits are
denominated in HK$ or RMB.

13 Inventories

Inventories mainly comprise food and consumable stores and are
stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost
of sales amounted to HK$2,334,851,000 during the year ended 31
March 2019 (2018: HK$2,404,317,000).

14 Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments
and Deposits

12 FRBESTERES

FRBENRERZSTECEEAS R
IKERZREMYE - BERRENEAN

A °

BAB D IERETEN FRIB R IR S A
TTHARBEHE

13 FE&

FETERRRYMERM  HRAE
HEATIREME 2 BIEEARR -

RBEE-_FT—NF=ZA=+—8LHF
[ BERABIHREFAEEREAZ
17 & AKX 7 /52,334,851,00078 L ( — &
— )\ : 2,404,317,000/87T) °

14 EERHMEWIERE - AN
RERZRE

2019 2018

—E-hF —F-N\F

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade receivables LR BRIA 72,051 66,306

Less: Loss allowance B B RS (1,182) (1,045)
Trade receivables — net (Note a) = EEWOFARIA (FisEa) 70,869 65,261
Other receivables (Note b) H b eI BRIE (BIED) 94,217 126,205
165,086 191,466

Prepayments and deposits TAfRIE RIEE 126,813 121,198
291,899 312,664
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14 Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments
and Deposits (Continued)

@

The Group’s sales to customers are mainly on a cash basis.
The Group also grants a credit period between 30 to 90
days to certain customers for the provision of the Group’s
institutional catering services, sales of merchandise for the
Group's food manufacturing business and its franchisees.

Other receivables primarily comprise value-added tax
recoverables, other receivables from a security logistic
company and certain bank deposit notes with PRC banks.
As at 31 March 2019, the Group had RMB denominated
bank structured deposit notes amounting to HK$29,156,000
with principal guaranteed, and with maturities of 3 months
at an effective interest rate ranging from 2.7% to 2.8%
per annum. As at 31 March 2018, the Group had RMB
denominated guaranteed deposit notes of HK$34,956,000
with maturities of 1.5 months at fixed interest rate of 3.2%
per annum.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

14

ERMEMEWERE - BN
RERRE (&)

@ AEEHEPZHENRERS
RE - AEETHET=TENT
REEHTHIRERNEE#E
KBRS - HEAKRERMYE
FTEE G B AR AT IR R o

(b) HiEKEBEFZEETKRDIE
B - RELYRA 78 H e
BRIERETHEREE  DHHERR
FRAHIRIT - RZT—NEF=
A=+—8 ' XEEHEBUAR
BT EZRABITEBEERE
1% 29,156,000/ 7t * HAR A& 3 (@
A BEBRFMNENFTR27T%E
28% MZE—N\F=H=1+—
B AEBERBREUARESEZ
1R B 1F TR ZE % 34,956,000 78 7T
HRA15EA - REEF =
32%FTE ©

ERBUCRIENREOITIAT

2019 2018

S —FN\E

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

0 - 30 days TZ=+H 49,724 43,600
— 60 days =+—BZA~TH 11,201 11,529

— 90 days ~Tt—HZEAT+H 5,581 7,052

91 — 365 days Nt+—HEZE=G,-1+HH 4,320 3,183
Over 365 days BB =m/ThH 1,225 942
72,051 66,306
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14

SR S B

Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments
and Deposits (Continued)

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
provision for loss allowance which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. Details on the calculation of loss
allowance is set out in Note 3.1(d). The creation and release of loss
allowance of trade receivables have been included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated income statement. Amounts charged
to the allowance account are generally written off when there is no
expectation of recovering additional cash. The Directors are of the
opinion that adequate provision for uncollectible trade receivables
has been made in the consolidated financial statements.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables and deposits
approximate their fair values due to their short maturities.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables are

denominated in the following currencies:

14

EXRHMEWRE - BN
MERZE (&)

AEBEAEFEVBRELERIOMTT
AR EBBRE ZBBRREBHMAR
ERVERERATFENBHEERE -
ERBH T EFHBERME3 ) - #
KRR I Y R R IR R BB T AT
AGEBRRAZITHER - ERER
B R IRR M B — R e A RSB AR E
BINRERME - EFR/ERS M
BRERARGENRDE 2 =X RIARIBEL
FE R

BN ERHRERE - X REMEKR
BRZReNERENRSFNREAFE -

REBI SRR A EWIRE 2 REE
BATEWHEHE -

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E—N\F

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

HK$ BT 97,302 113,553
RMB AR 67,782 77,898
Others Hib 2 15
165,086 191,466
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BB=EAZHBENRITE
REEERREEEER

15 Bank Deposits With Maturity Over Three 15
Months and Cash and Cash Equivalents

(@) Bank deposits with maturity over three (a) BB=1{EAZIEBWRITEX

months

R=B-NAF=A=1+—0 BBE=f
A8 A MR RO T FFEA

As at 31 March 2019, bank deposits with maturity over three

months bore average interest rate of 2.63% (2018: 0.82%) per

annum.

Bank deposits with maturity over three months:

2.63% (ZZF—)\F : 0.82%) °

B =10 A 2IH A NRITER :

2019 2018
—E-NF —EFN\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
US dollar ETT 19,527 19,715
Canadian dollar iy 2,338 3,063
21,865 22,778

(b) Cash and cash equivalents (b) RERBEZEER
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash at banks and on hand SFITAFEHRE 126,100 174,840
Short-term bank deposits FERARITIE K 709,437 626,400
Cash and cash equivalents RekIBeEEIAR 835,537 801,240

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 2.2%
(2018: 1.8%) per annum. These deposits have an average maturity
of 57 days (2018: 82 days).

EHSRTTFERCEREMEE22% (=
T—N\F:1.8%) ZEHFHZ2FHE
HAASTB(ZE—/\F :820) -
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4T e SRR M

15 Bank Deposits With Maturity Over Three 15 EBEB=EA WA NRITHF

Months and Cash and Cash Equivalents MERERAESEEEHE
(Continued) (#8)
(b) Cash and cash equivalents (Continued) (b) BERIRLEZEER (8)
Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the following RekAEeFEBEB A TIIERE
currencies:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
HK$ BT 686,951 413,919
RMB AR 117,172 359,654
US dollar =TT 2,854 2,847
Canadian dollar MERT 911 773
Others Hth 27,649 24,047
835,537 801,240
The Group’s cash and bank balances of HK$113,150,000 (2018: AEBUARBSERNIERE € MIBITE
HK$349,353,000) were denominated in RMB and were deposited £2113,150,000% t( = & — N\ F:
with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these RMB denominated 349,353,000 7T ) 77 WU A B A b §R
balances into foreign currencies and remittance of these deposits out 1T BZREAARBGTENERI LA
of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange SN % B H P B 78 38 <7 AR B U AR A Y
control promulgated by the PRC government. HNE B Il 3R TE S A1 o
16 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and 16 EXKETEFNEBERRHBKRKE
Provision for Long Service Payments B
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FET
Retirement benefit liabilities RASEHNEE
Defined contribution schemes (Note a)  SREMERETEI (KMizEa) (15,891) (15,794)
Defined benefit scheme (Note b) AERAMTE (MiaEDb) (13,459) (18,747)
Provision for long service payments REARG @B (i)
(Note ¢) (45,258) (34,990)
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(a)

(b)

SR S B

Retirement Benefit Liabilities and
Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

Defined contribution schemes

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The scheme is administered by
an independent trustee.

Under the MPF scheme, each of the Group and the eligible
employees makes monthly mandatory contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The mandatory
contributions by each party are subject to a maximum of HK$1,500
per month. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately upon the
completion of service in the relevant service period.

The Group also operates defined contribution schemes for its
employees in the Mainland China. The Group is required to make
contributions to the schemes at various applicable rates of monthly
salary that are in accordance with the local practice and regulations.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has defined contribution scheme
payable of HK$15,891,000 (2018: HK$15,794,000), which were
recorded in other creditors and accrued liabilities.

Defined benefit scheme

The Group also operates a defined benefit scheme for its employees
in Hong Kong. The benefit entitlement under the scheme is
calculated based on the final salary of the staff and the length of
service with the Group. The scheme assets are held independently of
the Group's assets in separate trustee-administered funds.

16

(a)

(b)

RASENEER RURE
&7 HE ()

FIEHFKETE
AEBRESBHIEAESH BT A
REBRMET RERENZE B
BRHBRHEAES B (RESH
Bl)) - ZE BB REAER o

RIERESHE AEERESERE
81988 R1REB AW (& 2.a
MR ERDI) Z 5% RFT IR -
77 /)R B H K LR ST A 1,50078
TC © &%aT &2 N FE A AR RE AR #% B ]
Z BRA5 1% BERN SR8 o

AEE A RE LRI AR
5l AEBARENEGIRET 5
B2 & 007 B A R 2 B

T-NF=A=+—8 A5EH
R M FRETEIFERT 518 15,891,000 % 7T
(ZZ—)\£ :15,794,000587T) * 25t
AHMEMNRERESBANR °

RERANETE
REETAESEBRGER R
B - BB ERRREENAE
BRZ &S H S RAREF R E - &
B2AEDRBYERERESAZA
EEEENFFE -
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16 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and
Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

(b) Defined benefit scheme (Continued)
The scheme is funded by contributions from the Group and the
employees in accordance with qualified independent actuary’s
recommendation from time to time on the basis of periodic
valuations.

Such defined benefit scheme obligation was valued by Mercer (Hong
Kong) Limited, an independent qualified actuary, using the projected
unit credit method.

The net liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position are determined as follows:

16

(b)

RASENEER RURE
&7 HE ()

RERAETE (&E)
LA Bl AN B E B R A R B
AT T R E T R G 2 R T 1
H 2 BT R -

HRERMASETHBLAERKEE
BiEtE (B8 ) BR A RRAETELE
SRRETHE -

EHRAMBIMAKRARRZFREE T
SITAERE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FEIT
Present value of funded obligations EEEMEZRE (95,911) (114,438)
Fair value of plan assets SEIEEC A AFE 82,452 95,691
Net liabilities in the consolidated EPBRRAERNZFEE
statement of financial position (13,459) (18,747)
Remeasurement on defined benefit ETERAEERNEE (FIEAIZBRIN
obligation excluding interest expense (1,070) 1,307
Remeasurement return on plan assets ~ &E#zt 25t E1EE 2 B3R 58 921

168 Café de Coral Holdings Limited « Annual Report 2018/19



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

WS

16
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sre MR

Retirement Benefit Liabilities and 16
Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

RASENEER RURE

&7 HE ()

Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b) *%Eﬂ”riJ (48)
The movements in the defined benefit obligation are as follows: ERNEERNEBNT :
2019 2018
—E-hF —N\&F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Beginning of the year FANEERR (114,438) (125,483)
Current service cost A A A (2,437) (2,959)
Interest cost B A (1,831) (1,568)
Employee contributions B 8 H3R (671) (809)
Remeasurement on defined BT ERERAETE
benefit scheme (1,070) 1,307
Benefits paid EENE =R 24,536 15,074
End of the year FRER (95,911) (114,438)
The movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows: SEIEENAFEESNT ¢
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Beginning of the year FOEEH 95,691 103,195
Interest income A BUA 1,534 1,297
Employee contributions EEMHX 671 809
Employer contributions BEMHRK 9,052 4,563
Administrative expenses paid from Mt BIEEX N ZITHER
plan assets (18) (20)
Remeasurement on return on plan assets EF T E:1E14 = 2 B3 58 921
Benefits paid SRR T (24,536) (15,074)
End of the year FREE R 82,452 95,691

RRES
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16 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and
Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

(b) Defined benefit scheme (Continued)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement are as

16 RASEIEER RIIRS

&7 HE ()

(b) FEBFEE ()

TR BaRkNBRZSBWT ¢

follows:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Current service cost IR A RS A4 2,437 2,959
Interest cost B A 1,831 1,568
Interest income on plan assets FTEIEE 2 F B (1,534) (1,297)
Administrative expenses THER 18 20

Total, included in employee w@=s - B RIEEREERF
benefit expenses (Note 29) FsZ A (Ff3E29) 2,752 3,250

Of the total amount debited to the consolidated income statement,
approximately HK$1,489,000 (2018: HK$1,728,000) and
HK$1,263,000 (2018: HK$1,522,000) have been included in cost of
sales and administrative expenses, respectively.
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16 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and 16 EAKEENEBR RIRKE

Provision for Long Service Payments TiRE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b) REBRETE(E)
The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows: Az EERERBZAT
2019 2018
—ET-NE —T-N\F
Discount rate BhIR = 1.5% p.a. 1.7% p.a.
BF1.5% BF1.7%
Expected rate of future salary increases A< 2R¥FHN 2 FBHALE & =R 4.5% p.a. 4.5% p.a.
B5F45% BF45%
The remeasurement of defined benefit obligation recognised in EHFREZHABARKERHAERINE
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income was a loss of EzEHTEREIE1,012,0008 T (=
HK$1,012,000 (2018: gain of HK$2,228,000). T—/)\F : %712,228,000&7T) °
The cumulative remeasurement of defined benefit obligation TEHRE2HBABRKBERNRAERMNE
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income 2 25t EFEH = R 518 34,392,000 %
was a loss of HK$34,392,000 (2018: a loss of HK$33,380,000). To(—ZF— \% : [§51833,380,000/%T) °
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan FEHEEEREGRHEEER L
assets are as follows: PR
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-)N\&F
Equity instruments e T A 14.5% 1.5%
Debt instruments BEETA 76.0% 84.9%
Other assets Hih & E 9.5% 13.6%
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16 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and 16 EAKEENEBR RIRKE

Provision for Long Service Payments TiRE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Defined benefit scheme (Continued) (b) REBRETE(E)
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation (“DBO”) to changes RERBMNEBETEHRREHNGURMLR -

in the assumption is:

Impact on DBO

HAEENSENTE

Changes in Increase in Decrease in

assumption assumption assumption

Assumption BR& REE 2 E BRI N RERD

Discount rate BhIR X 0.5% Decreased Increased

by 2.1% by 2.2%

B 2.1% EIN2.2%

Salary increase rate g R = 0.5% Increased Decreased

by 2.1% by 2.1%

EIN2.1% ™A 2.1%

Expected contributions to the defined benefit scheme by the BE-_T-_TF=-A=t-HLFE"
Group for the year ending 31 March 2020 are approximately REB AT B EINFEHRHEROR

HK$3,682,000. 3,682,000/8 7T °

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is AERMEENINEFIFHRA4EF -

4.4 years.
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(b)

(0

SR S B

Retirement Benefit Liabilities and
Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

Defined benefit scheme (Continued)
Expected maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation in the next
ten years on 31 March 2019:

Less than a
year

—F LR
HK$000
FET

Defined benefit obligation REBNEE 11,006

16 RASEIEER RIIRS
&7 HE ()

(b) HERFEE(E)
R-Z-NF=A=+—-BYRTET
B AERAR I TEEI I A A7 -

Between Between
1-2 2-5 Next 5
years years years
—EWF —EHEF T-HEAEFH
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
12,128 41,026 36,775

Through its defined benefit obligations, the Group is exposed to a
number of risks. The defined benefit scheme offers a defined benefit
depending on members’ length of service and their salary at the time
of leaving the firm. Active members contribute 2.5% of their salary
to the scheme, while the Group bears the remainder cost of funding
the scheme. The scheme exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as
interest rate risk, salary risk, and investment risk.

Provision for long service payments

The Group provides long service payments for its employees in
respect of long service payments on cessation of employment in
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.

Such provision for long service payment obligation was valued by
Mercer (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent qualified actuary, using
the projected unit credit method.

AEBEBRERNETHEZHER
% o FE A BIRH AR TKE R
T4 BB R 182 S5 1A ol BRL B 110 5 M 7 5 ) SR
FERRA o R BIRIEEFME 2.5% 7]
RN MASBEAFAEZETEF
PRER o kAt 8 E AN B B a0 A R =
% FER MRERRERERLR

(0 RERBEEE
AEBREESERBEOCETELT
RIBARTMX A RBRBESTAT -

WEARGEEBRITHBILSERRE
HESE (B8 ) R ARKAREM
EEEERETHE -
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16 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and 16 EHARETFEERRIARKE
Provision for Long Service Payments TiRE (&)
(Continued)

(0 Provision for long service payments () RHBRBEEE (&)
(Continued)
The liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial TEREMBARRRNERZBEWNT
position is determined as follows:

2019 2018
—Z-hEF ZT-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Liability in the consolidated statement — #R&AMEKREAZ BfE
of financial position (45,258) (34,990)
Re-measurement on plan liabilities SEBECENTE (11,381) 10,762
Movements in the liability recognised in the consolidated statement FEREMBARRARABERZ ABEESH N
of financial position are as follows: N
2019 2018
—B-hEF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Beginning of the year F YR (34,990) (45,525)
Current service cost R A RRFS A A (2,088) (2,593)
Interest cost FERA (607) (617)
Remeasurement of provision of RERG e BE EHTE
long service payments (11,381) 10,762
Benefits paid EENE =R 3,808 2,983
End of the year FRER (45,258) (34,990)
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16 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and 16 E/f&EIEERRBAKRE
Provision for Long Service Payments TiRE (&)
(Continued)
(0 Provision for long service payments () RHBRBEEE (&)
(Continued)
Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement are as R BRRERZ AT
follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Current service cost IR A RS A4 2,088 2,593
Interest cost BB 607 617
Total, included in employee benefit w=n - EREEEERAFIA
expenses (Note 29) (FfF5E29) 2,695 3,210

Of the total charge, HK$2,695,000 (2018: HK$3,210,000) have
been included in administrative expenses.

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

Discount rate BLIR =&

Expected rate of future salary increases AR 2 FBHAME & =R

#S H - 2,695,000 (&8 — N\
F 1 3,210,000 D) BIEETERERNR -

PR E2REMRAT

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
1.5% p.a. 1.8% p.a.
BF1.5% HF1.8%
4.5% p.a. 4.5% p.a.
BF45% BF45%

The remeasurement of provision for long service payments
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
was a loss of HK$11,381,000 (2018: a gain of HK$10,762,000).

The cumulative remeasurement of provision of long service payments
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
was a loss of HK$44,553,000 (2018: a loss of HK$33,172,000).

FEiRA E2mERARE N ERA KRS
SEE 2 EFNFT=EAE1E 11,381,0008
(== — )\ : %7%110,762,000/87T) °

ERAt2EBARERARRN RS
R cBECRFTENTEARER
44,553,000 ( Z T — N\ F: FE
33,172,000 7T) °
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16 Retirement Benefit Liabilities and
Provision for Long Service Payments
(Continued)

(0 Provision for long service payments
(Continued)
Expected contributions to the long service payment obligation by
the Group for the year ending 31 March 2020 after the offset the
accrued MPF account balance is approximately HK$3,042,000.

The weighted average duration of the long service payment
obligation is 5.8 years.

Expected maturity analysis of long service payment obligation in the
next ten years on 31 March 2019:

Less than a
year

—F LR
HK$'000
FET

Long service payment obligation ~ KEIRZEEET 3,042

16 EBARESEIEERRIAKRE
SRHME (E)

(0 ERHR%KeEE(E)
RIEHEEFRESRF &R - ~N5E
REBEZE - ZE-_ZF=A=+—HIFE
FEES TS 2 RERE S BEEHERL
/453,042,000 78 7T °
RERS BT 2 MEFHFHAES.8
E'E o
R-ZE—NAF=A=+—HBZ2KHR%
SEENRR+F2TEIRIEE D7 -

Between Between
1-2 2-5 Next 5
years years years
—ZEME g T—ELFEH
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
5,636 15,860 17,438

The long service payment obligation arises as per Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance to the extent that the long service payment
obligation exceeds the employer balance in the Hong Kong
mandatory defined contribution plan. It exposes the Group to
actuarial risks such as interest rate risk, salary risk and the investment
risk of the Company's MPF scheme’s constituent funds.
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sre MR

Deferred Income Tax 17

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same
fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown on the consolidated statement of financial

EAERTE

BIRRHATRNA G RBHIRE
EEMIEAGEEMREE  MEERAY
KA —HBRE - AIREHRIBEERE
EANRI B AR » SR M BN R AR
THRB(RELESEERETE) W

position: I
2019 2018
—E-hF —F-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred income tax assets to be HE 12 18 A 12 U B )R AR T B
recovered after 12 months 12,681 30,506
Deferred income tax liabilities to B 12 E A RENELERIBE&E
be settled after 12 months (29,479) (33,520)
(16,798) (3,014)
Movements in net deferred income tax liabilities are as follows: EEREAG #ESHOT
2019 2018
—E-NF —EF—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FEIT
Beginning of the year FH4E 3,014 5,639
Deferred taxation charged/(credited) to Eﬁ*/\Tﬁ s&Ak(GEA) 2
the consolidated income statement FEIEFIA (FiaE26)
(Note 26) 13,667 (2,685)
Exchange differences ME 5 =5 117 60
End of the year FERER 16,798 3,014
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17 Deferred Income Tax (Continued) 17 EERIE(E&)
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities of the AEB s FRNEEREBEEERGE S
Group (prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation B) (R — B AVE R 2 A eI SH Al )
jurisdiction) during the year are as follows: LU
Deferred income tax assets: EEHIBEEE !
Decelerated tax
depreciation Tax losses Provision and others Total
WERIEE HE BERAM e
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-hAFE ZET-)N\F ZEB-hFE T N\F ZB-hFE ZT-N\F B-hFE ZTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Beginning of the year F 41455 6,771 9,984 44,716 36,885 9,307 7,718 60,794 54,587
Credited/(charged) to 7E4R& Bk A
the consolidated A (R)
income statement 2,902 (3,213) (21,566) 7,831 (6,078) 1,649 (24,742) 6,267
Exchange differences [E X =48 - - - = (117) (60) (117) (60)
End of the year FRER 9,673 6,771 23,150 44,716 3,112 9,307 35,935 60,794
. . agug . S 24 == .
Deferred income tax liabilities: ELEMIEEE
Accelerated tax
depreciation Intangible assets Total
EBIEFE BREE k]
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F —E-hF —E-N\&F —Z-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Beginning of the year FHEER 63,635 60,028 173 198 63,808 60,226
(Credited)/charged to iR EERA
the consolidated (GEA) /B
income statement (10,902) 3,607 (173) (25) (11,075) 3,582
End of the year FRER 52,733 63,635 - 173 52,733 63,808
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sre MR

VN

Deferred Income Tax (Continued) 17 EERIE(E&)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carrying REHIEEE DA EEBET SN RS
forwards to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefits 38 R 2R B ER 5t M| B4 3R 1 A P A R 2 A
through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 March 2019, BEBER RZE—NWF=A=+—
the Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets in respect of A ANEE &R EE 411,784,000
losses of approximately HK$411,784,000 (2018: HK$359,703,000). # 7T (=T — J\4F : 359,703,000 7T )
Unrecognised tax losses amounting to approximately HRELEDIEE E - 206,763,000
HK$206,763,000 (2018: HK$207,968,000) and HK$40,510,000 B e = & — J\ & : 207,968,000 7%
(2018: HK$50,024,000) will be expired up to year 2037 and 2023 7T ) % 40,510,000 (=T — N\ F :
respectively, while the remaining balance can be carried forward 50,024,0007% 7T ) 7 FE J&%ME &5 R
indefinitely. ZE-ALFRITI=FEWR BTE
4 A PR B A4S
Deferred income tax liabilities of HK$11,395,000 (2018: RN B AR B A 3 ) PR B 2 ) BT R ER Y
HK$7,448,000) have not been recognised for withholding tax that —EENF-A—BHEARPEREB R
would be payable on the undistributed retained profits amounting F /167,492,000 T ( =T — N\ & :
to HK$167,492,000 (2018: HK$108,567,000) of the Company’s 108,567,000 7T ) FETHYFEHIFH - I
subsidiaries in the Mainland China earned after 1 January 2008. RHMEFR11,395,0008 L (ZF—NF:
Such amounts are not intended to be distributed in the foreseeable 7,448,000/ ) MR IERE - B#
future to the group companies outside of the Mainland China. RN A LR D B4 B b LA
HNIEBE AT o
Trade Payables 18 EXENIRE
The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: EEEMNRIENRESITOT
2019 2018
—E-hF —N\F
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FHEIT
0 - 30 days TE=1H 217,446 199,337
- 60 days =t+—=1H 278 7,118
— 90 days ANT—ENATH 344 153
Over 90 days wBiE A 1,642 870
219,710 207,478
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18 Trade Payables (Continued) 18 ZEEENIRIE (&)
The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated in the BERMBRBEMNERETDAEN TS
following currencies: & :
2019 2018
—B-he —E—)\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
HK$ BTT 170,117 151,191
RMB AR 49,593 56,287
219,710 207,478
The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their fair values AR EREREERE - A ENBEENE
due to their short maturities. E{EABENE A FE o
19 Other Creditors and Accrued Liabilities 19 HtENSRERETER

Other creditors and accrued liabilities mainly comprise accrued
salaries and wages and other provisions. Substantially all of the other
creditors and accrued liabilities are denominated in HK$ and RMB.
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20 Share Capital 20 BAK
2019 2018
—ZT-hEF —ZE-NF

Number of Nominal Number of Nominal

share value share value

REA HEE k% E EfE

‘000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000

TR FET Fhg F&T

Authorised: EE

Ordinary shares of TR EAREE

HK$0.10 each 0.10%7T
Beginning and end FHNHE RAERR

of the year 1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRARE :

Beginning of the year FHEEER 585,543 58,554 585,178 58,518
Shares issued under RIEHR 0 BT 2l

share option scheme BITH A (st 32)

(Note 32) - - 365 36
End of the year FRERH 585,543 58,554 585,543 58,554
During the year, no shares (2018: 365,000 shares of HK$0.10 each, FR - BERGS(ZF—/\F : 365,000
average exercise price of approximately HK$21.64) were issued [REESK 20108 T 2 KM AL
pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company. During the 21,6482 FHTERE) BREAREIZK
year ended 31 March 2018, total proceeds less expenses amounting DA BT - BHE-ZT—N\F=A
to HK$7,897,000 were provided to the Group with working capital. =+—HLEFE FISREERTLE

R#7%7,897,000%& T * RIERALREE
RERBDES -

During the year, the Group purchased 570,224 (2018: 100,055 FR AEEEBAERD KB E
shares) of its own shares through the trustee of the share % %% AR AR TS 8 B 570,224 %
award scheme from the open market. The total amount paid to = — )\F :100,0550% ) £ 8 B %
acquire these shares was approximately HK$10,800,000 (2018: 1’\ cHMBEZEROHIN 2B E
HK$2,544,000) and has been deducted from shareholders’ equity. #) /10,800,000 T( = F — )\ F:

As at 31 March 2019, such shares were recorded as treasury shares 2,544,000 L) + B B K& ? E 25 1A
of the Company and the Group as they were not yet vested. B RZE-—NF=A=+—H0" AR

DHREE  ZERMDIE/RRRRAK
SENEFRARK -
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21 Reserves 21 &
Share-  Shares held
Capital  Exchange based  forshare  Statutory
Share  redemption translation compensation award reserve
premium reserve reserve Capital  Investment reserve scheme EERE  Contributed Revaluation  Retained
&5 Jit reserve reserve  WRARE  RAREHE (note ) surplus reserve earnings Total
Ry HEgRE fHRE EAGRE RERE  KMERE  &ECRH (M)  REE&  fERE  REE ]
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FEr  TEr  FEr  TEn  FEn fET TEn FEr TEn FER TET FEn
Balance as at 1 April 2018 WE-/\ERA-AER 616811 152,034 84,334 1,019 47,595 47,900 (145,053) 28,680 80,696 4024 243687 3511127
Falr value gain on financial FATRINEMRERAL
asetsat farvaluethough— £BEEHATEER
other comprehensive income - - - - 6,124 - - - - - - 6,124
Remeasurement of retiement ~ EHERERTIRER
beneft iabltes and RERBLARE
provision forlong
service payments - - - - - - - - - - (12,393) (12393
Transfer from statutory reseves  EBEZTHE - - - - - - - (1,407) - - 1407 -
Employee share award ESRAEE:E
scheme-value of employee ~ -EEHEEE
services - - - - - (1,209) - - - - - (1,209)
Transfer upon [apse of RRASER AR
share option - - - - - (1,067) - - - - 1,067 -
Vesting of shares of share R &R OGE
award scheme - - - - - (20,247) 283 - - - (2,586) -
Eichange differencesarising ~~ EEBSNBATZERZE
from translation of
forelgn subsidiaries - - (46,960) - - - - - - - - (46,960)
Profitattrbutable toequity  ZRFRESAAREER
holders of the Company - - - - - - - - - - 590,285 590,285
Purchase of shares BARR - - - - - - (10,800) - - - - (10,800)
Dividends it - - - - o o @ o o = (679.240)  (679,240)
Balance asat 31 March 2019 H=F-f
=R=1-B## 616,811 152,034 31374 21,019 53,119 25317 (133,020) 7,13 80,69 140,224 2,335,367 3,356,934
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- A= —d
21 Reserves (Continued) 21 #E (&)
Shares
held for
Capital Exchange Share-based share Statutory
Share  redemption  translation compensation award Teserve
premium Tesenve Tesenve Capital ~ Investment resenve scheme jtERE  Controuted  Revaluation Retained
A e resene resene  HRARAH  RHREE (notel) surplus feserve eannings Total

k%8 BORkE  fEGE fut = K&k Bewl  HAZRR (R EaRs  fMERE  REEA £8
SO0 SO0 KOO0 AKSU0D AKSUDD MKSUDD MKSODD  MKSOOD  HKSUOD  HKSUOD  HKSUOD HKSUOD
T T 7T T T 7 TAT TAT TAT TéT TéT Tér

Balence as at 1 April 2017 RIE-tEMA-RBER 607304 152,034 19,129 21,019 129,238 4174 (164,622) 24179 85,197 74937 2,436,150 3428859
Proceeds from shares isued ~~ &{78Rk{ 2530 7861 - - - - - - - - - - 7861
Falr value loss on IRHESRAENATAEE

avalable-for-sale

financial assets - - - - (81,643) - - - - - - (81,643)
Remeasurement of retirement ~ EftERMEEHIAER

benefit libilities and RERHLRR

provision for long senvice

payments - - - - - - - - - - 12,990 12,990
Transfer to reserves Bz - - - - - - - 4501 (4501) - - -
Revaluation suplus priorto 1%+ B R AR

transfer of property NNz ERRS

plant and equipment to

investment properties - - - - - - - - - 65,287 - 65,287
Employee share award EaRA%E:E

scheme - value of -EERBEE

employee services - - - - - 26,240 - - - - - 26,240
Release of share-based

compensation reserve to

share premium upon |

exercise of share options 1,586 - - - - (1,586) - - - - - -
Transfer upon [apse of AR SERRmER

share option - - - - - (1) - - - - 41 -
Vesting of shares of share BOELRERIEE

award scheme - - - - - (20,451) 2113 - - - (1,662) -
Buchange differences arising. ~~ EESINBAAZEX ZE

from translation of

foreign subsidiaries - - 65,205 - - - - - - - 826 66,031
Proftattibutable toequity ~ ARFRIESEAELET

holders of the Company - - - - - - - - - - 458,055 458,055
Purchase of shares BARR - - - - - - (2,544) - - = = (2,544
Dividends e = = = = = = - - - - (470,009) (470,009)

Balnce asat 31 March 2018 =51
A=t 616,811 152,034 84334 21,019 4759 47900 (145,053) 28,680 80,696 140,224 2436821 351,127

0) Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, PRC companies (i) RIERHEBEERKEEN - &
are required to allocate 10% of the companies’ net profit NAEIZAERRF RN 10% 5B
to the fund until such fund reaches 50% of the companies’ EuttEe  EEARFEHEER
registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised, NAElFMERZ50% "1k EE
upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset against RESKCEAERIERTAR
accumulated losses or to increase registered capital of the 36 25T BB I 1A 7] 2
companies, provided that such fund is maintained at a B WZHEEESSKEAERR
minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered capital. RNAIFEMERZ 25% KF o
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22 Revenue 22 WA
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT—)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Sales of food and beverages HERY NS 8,398,170 8,335,340
Rental income e U A 50,287 48,139
Management and service fee income BB MRS E WA 7.114 11,095
Franchise income =W A 457 434
Sundry income I A 37,855 32,391
8,493,883 8,427,399
23 Other Gains/(Losses), Net 23 HMEERN S (EiE)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —F-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAETT FAETL
Dividend income from listed equity LEREREREWA
investments 11,736 15,818
Fair value gain on investment properties & ¥ H) A FE% T 19,800 18,800
Loss on disposal of other property, HEEMYE - BEREETER
plant and equipment, net (10,588) (20,901)
Loss on disposal of investment properties H &% & Y2 &8 (741) =
Impairment loss of property, plant M - BE K& REER
and equipment (3,529) (32,972)
Government subsidy BATEBD 1,009 2,799
Forfeiture of deposit relating to disposal S%Ug¥%E H &304
of a property - 2,750
17,687 (13,706)
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24

sre MR

Expenses by Nature

Expenses included in cost of sales and administrative expenses are

24 BHEBEPENEA

BREHEXRARITRERNER DT

analysed as follows: LU
2019 2018
—E-AF —\&F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Cost of raw materials and packing R R B 2,334,851 2,404,317
Amortisation of leasehold land T E 3 J + sk P 2 5

and land use rights 2,959 2,967
Amortisation of intangible assets fE A E 564 752
Depreciation of property, M - BEEREZTE

plant and equipment 352,353 340,727
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEWFzKEHERS

rented premises (including (BIEZ AT S 71,093,000 70

contingent rentals of HK$71,093,000 —Z—)\f :51,030,00087T))

(2018: HK$51,030,000)) 1,015,684 1,024,580
Exchange (gains)/losses, net FEX CER) B8 3 (3,061) 748
Employee benefit expense (excluding EEBNFAX (TEENRD X ME)

share-based compensation (FfF5E29)

expenses) (Note 29) 2,668,644 2,635,011
Share-based compensation expenses LARR 5 Sz A<t B2 (Bt @) (BdEE 29)

(Note a) (Note 29) (1,209) 26,240
Auditor’s remuneration ZERRT N & 3,827 3,759
Electricity, water and gas BE  KEBRERE 399,767 394,110
Advertising HES 74,062 77,977
Loss allowance on trade receivables &R ARTA B R A (MfRE 14)

(Note 14) 137 195
Sanitation BRE 118,246 112,152
Repairs & maintenance HIERRES 94,041 88,266
Other expenses B & 743,588 732,309

7,804,453 7,844,110
Representing: &k -
Cost of sales SHE A 7,356,665 7,385,291
Administrative expenses THER 447,788 458,819
7,804,453 7,844,110

RRES
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24 Expenses by Nature (Continued) 24 RMEFENERE)
(@  During the year ended 31 March 2019, amount included @ BEZE-NF=ZA=+—HL
the reversal of the share-based compensation expenses FE ZoRBEREBRRLARE
previously recognised for the awarded performance shares BB R 0 1SR A9 LARR A7 32 £ B
of approximately HK$22,560,000. The vesting of awarded ©#922,560,000/8 7 - IR EE
performance shares were conditional upon attainment ROBEINKBERESEREM
of performance target with reference to the Group's EENXRABRESAEE M
performance and the performance target was not achieved. KEBERENX - Bt - WES
Therefore, no awarded performance shares are vested. B R B R AR -
25 Finance Income 25 BrRWA
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FEIT
Interest income FEHA 14,803 11,661
26 FAISHER

26 Income Tax Expense

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until year
2035. Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate
of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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26

sre MR

WS

Income Tax Expense (Continued)

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income

statement represents:

26

FresiEM (&)

RiFEBRmRAMR 2 HIARRE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT—)N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET T
Current income tax: BNEATIA -
— Hong Kong profits tax - BEMEH 93,476 85,142
— PRC taxation — R A I 24,594 21,085
Deferred income tax relating to TR ERELRED
the origination and reversal AR IR
of temporary differences 13,667 (2,685)
Withholding tax on dividend IR EFENTIE — 17,880
(Over)/under provision in prior years BAFE (BERE) TBETRE (1,927) 527
129,810 121,949
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26 FIEBEA (E)

26 Income Tax Expense (Continued)

AEBEBRRTADEN < 518 B RE K
REB2REMETE 2 BmiiE =8

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong

Kong as follows:

mF :

2019 2018
—E-hF —E—N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before income tax FR A% B Al 721,920 581,244
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% &% 16.5% (ZZ—/\4%F : 16.5%)
(2018: 16.5%) FTEMTIE 119,117 95,905
Effect of different taxation rates HABER AR E 2 &
in other countries 10,761 5,890
Income not subject to taxation BERBZ WA (14,260) (10,981)
Expenses not deductible for AR E A
taxation purposes 6,862 14,306
Reversal of previously recognised/ BEIRRE R (BREARK
(recognition of previously wR) 2 ERER
unrecognised) temporary difference 4,659 (5,943)
Tax losses not recognised RIERZ g 5,352 4,740
Withholding tax on dividend f% B FaH0F 1A - 17,880
(Over)/under provision in prior years BAFE (BEBE) BETR (1,927) 527
Others Hip (754) (375)
Taxation charge MBS 129,810 121,949
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VN

Dividends 27 RE
2019 2018
—EB-NF —E—)\F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Interim dividend, paid, of HK19 cents RIS - BARE AR 197810
(2018: HK18 cents) —ZT—)\%F : 18/81l)
per ordinary share 111,253 105,398
Final dividend, proposed, HK65 cents EEAHRE - BARE AR 65 AL
(2018: HK63 cents) —ZT—)\F : 63/81l)
per ordinary share 380,603 368,892
Special dividend, of Nil RIS - BIREER - &
(2018: HK35 cents) (Z=— )\ : 35/81l)
per ordinary share - 204,940
491,856 679,230

A final dividend of HK65 cents per ordinary share in respect of the
year ended 31 March 2019 was proposed. Such final dividend is
subject to approval by the shareholders at the upcoming annual
general meeting. These financial statements do not reflect this
dividend payable.

BE_T-NF=A=+—HILFEMR
B ARARE SR ER6sE
fill - R EAR B B BRI B8R 178
BRAFAE LBBESAEE - A/
MR W ARRIREZETALE. ©
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28 Earnings Per Share 28 BRHF
(@) Basic (@) HZK
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit BRERGN DR AARRERE AR
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted fEiﬁTﬁ'JVJFMiWE?’Y‘ﬁﬁ‘ IR (FBEER
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year excluding NAIBEAR G BT B E 2 E@AR) 2
ordinary shares purchased by the Company for share award scheme. e BERGTE
2019 2018
—ET-nE —TN\E
Profit attributable to equity holders RARIRIERE A AFE(R 5 A
of the Company (HK$'000) (F%7T) 590,285 458,055
Weighted average number of BT E R 2 T 2
ordinary shares in issue ("000) (FEE61) 580,429 579,962
Basic earnings per share (HK$ per share) FREANGEF (BB TT) HK$1.02 HK$0.79
1.02% 7T 0.797%87T
(b) Diluted (b)y #3H
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted SRR RBEIESTRITZE
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year (excluding AR MEFHEEFAND BT EBR
the ordinary shares purchased by the Company under the share (MBRARRRER D RE SR
award scheme) with the weighted average number of ordinary Bk Z g FEEELFEMmMAR -
shares deemed to be issued assuming the dilutive impact on the B P RER A () BIRE K B 1) 2R B T B VAR
share options and shares under the share award scheme. I EBRHELE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Profit attributable to equity holders RNARIRERE ARG ET
of the Company (HK$'000) (F#7T) 590,285 458,055
Weighted average number of BT SRR 2 I 2
ordinary shares in issue (‘000) (FE4) 580,429 579,962
Adjustment for share award et SRt 81 2 F8ER (FE6L)
scheme (‘000) 1,291 1,180
Adjustment for share options (‘000) P B 2 8 ER (8842 ) = 23
581,720 581,165
Diluted earnings per share EREsERN (BRET)
(HK$ per share) HK$1.01 HK$0.79
1.01387T 0.79787T
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29 Employee Benefit Expenses 29

Employee benefit expenses during the year are as follows:

EEEAEX

FANRERNFESIT

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Wages, salaries and allowances T& - &5 K2R 2,428,235 2,391,879
Discretionary bonuses JEEETEAL 133,076 134,685
Pension costs BEHAR A
— Defined contribution plans - R EHKEE 101,886 101,987
— Defined benefit plan (Note 16) - REBAETE (H:E16) 2,752 3,250
— Long service payments (Note 16) - RERES (MizE16) 2,695 3,210
Employee benefit expense EERAFxX
(excluding share-based (TEFEARG ZHE)
compensation expenses) 2,668,644 2,635,011
Share-based compensation expenses AR D ST B (Fd5Ea)
(Note a) (1,209) 26,240
Employee benefit expenses EEBARXZ 2,667,435 2,661,251

(@) During the year ended 31 March 2019, amount included
the reversal of the share-based compensation expenses
previously recognised for the awarded performance shares
of approximately HK$22,560,000. The vesting of awarded
performance shares were conditional upon attainment
of performance target with reference to the Group’s
performance and the performance target was not achieved.
Therefore, no awarded performance shares are vested.

BHE-_ZT-h&F=A=1+—HL
FE ZoBEREREILATE
R ELE MR D W R A DARR (D A B
£ #722,560,00078 7T o $81% 45
B EEIKE2EREBRE M
ETHRABEBZERAAES M
REBEBERENX - At - WES
BT SR AR -
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30 ESHNAENER (KEBEEE
(B&RAI) (% 622 F) 5 383
R (2R (HMEEENEE
#RANE622GE) REE

30 Benefits and interests of directors
(disclosures required by section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of

Information about Benefits of Directors) EFHRAEEER)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong
Listing Rules)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM=
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 March BE_ZT-NF=A=1T—HLFEHN
2019 is set out below: BEESEMEHI AT
Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect of
director’s
other services
in connection
with the
management
of the affairs
of the
Company
orits
subsidiary
Salaries, Share-based  undertaking
allowances Employer's compensation HEES
and contribution benefits HEBALR
benefits in to pension DROZAN  SEMELE
kind Discretionary scheme HeRRl SHmiRfte
Fees ¥¢ ZBR bonuses EEMERE Sub-total (Note ) EfpRiERZH Total
Name of director ESf7 e Bz FEERL HE L5 N oy LB a5
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
AT AT FAT T T T T T
Non-executive directors #8772 %
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny BRS04 1,060 - - - 1,060 - - 1,060
Mr Chan Yue Kwong, RISt LE
Michael 180 - - - 180 - - 180
Mr Hui Tung Wah, Samuel  #HEE4 180 - = = 180 = = 180
Independent non-executive  BUH#E7EZE
directors
Mr Choi Ngai Min, Michael  ZEiR%E4 300 - - - 300 - - 300
Mr Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey ~ ZEE %4 300 - - - 300 - - 300
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry  SBRE504 300 - = = 300 = = 300
Mr Au Siu Cheung, Albert  BRHI%E4 300 - - - 300 - = 300
Executive directors H1EE
Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter BEdstk
Chief Executive Officer BRHTE 50 4,288 5,949 18 10,305 1,705 - 12,010
MsLoPik Ling, Anita (i)~ BEEZBELL(i) 50 5317 302 - 5,669 - - 5,669
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan BERSEE 50 1,992 1375 18 3,435 598 - 4,033
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30

(a)

Benefits and interests of directors 30
(disclosures required by section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong
Listing Rules) (Continued)
Directors’ emoluments (Continued) @)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 March
2018 is set out below:
Salaries,
allowances Employer's
and contribution
benefits in to pension
kind  Discretionary scheme
Fees &4 ZHR bonuses  [ETHIRAE
Name of director 2 ik BEY  EERA SR
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FAr AT FAr AT
Non-executive directors FHEE
Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny EELRE 1,060 - - -
Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael TRt %5 180 = = =
MrHui Tung Wah, Samuel ~ FFER A 180 = = =
Independent non-executie  EUHTEZE
directors
Mr Choi Noai Min, Michael ~ £5EiR %4 300 = = =
MrLiKwok Sing, Aubrey ~ ZEERH 300 - - -
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Lary ~ SI3E k4 300 - - -
Mr AuSiu Cheung, Abert  EB#I%E 300 - - -
Executive directors HTEE
Mir Lo Tak Shing, Peter BERGE
Chief Executive Officer BEHIE 50 4288 4732 18
Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita (i) BEEL() 148 1290 = =
Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan BRALE 50 199 1,048 18

EENANENER(KES
BCRBMERB) (5£622FE)%E
383k (A BRI (BMEBEEF
=ER)RAD(£622GE) &
EBLTHRAEEER) ()

EE5ME (&)
HE-T—/\F=A=T—ALEEN
EEEWLHZIT

Emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect of

director's

other services

in connection

with the

management

of the affairs

of the

Company

or its

subsidiary

Share-Dased  undertaking
compensation ElEz
benefits ~ HHERALH

RORME  SENELCE
Wemrl  ShmiEke

Sub-total (Notel) EfREERf Total
G (&) sEkeme iz

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
AT AT TET TET

1,060 = = 1,060
180 = = 180
180 = = 180
300 = = 300
300 = = 300
300 = = 300
300 = = 300

9,088 1,578 = 10,666

1438 P} = 1461

3108 506 = 3614
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30

(a)

(b)

(@]

(d)

sre MR

Benefits and interests of directors
(disclosures required by section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong
Listing Rules) (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
No director waived any emolument during the year.

Notes:

(i) The share-based compensation benefits represent the relevant expenses relating
to each of the directors apart from those relating to performance shares. Benefits
relating to the performance shares will be presented based on the market price of
the shares on the day of vesting.

(ii) Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita was re-designated from Non-executive Director to Executive
Director on 1 January 2018 and then re-designated from Executive Director to Non-
executive Director of the Company on 1 April 2019.

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any directors in
respect of their other services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking (2018:
Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
No payment was made to directors as compensation for the early
termination of the appointment during the year (2018: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No payment was made to the former employer of directors for
making available the services of them as a director of the Company
(2018: Nil).
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(e)

(f)

Benefits and interests of directors
(disclosures required by section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong
Listing Rules) (Continued)

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with
such directors during the year (2018: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2018: Nil).
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30

(e))

Benefits and interests of directors
(disclosures required by section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong
Listing Rules) (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include three (2018: two) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 30(a). The
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2018: three) individual
during the year are as follows:

30

(9)

EENANENER(KES
BCRBMERB) (5£622FE)%E
383k (A BRI (BMEBEEF
=ER)RAD(£622GE) &
EBLTHRAEEER) ()

hEmEHMAL
AREEAEEALBRSHMALEE
=R(CE-N\F - MBEF EME
EENHITE30() - EEmA (=T — N\
FZR) AITRAFER K 2 S 10
s ¢

2019 2018
—g-nE —=— N\
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET

Basic salaries, gratuities and K&« Am e & E b jEAE
other allowances 7,317 9,944
Discretionary bonuses JEEFEFEAT 3,616 2,842
Contributions to pension schemes RN FT B 36 54
Share-based compensation expenses LARAD 2 - B 1,652 2,010
12,621 14,850

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000

3,500,001 #JTZE 4,000,000 47T
5,000,001 /&L & 5,500,000 745 7T
6,000,001 77T 2 6,500,000 /87T

s 2 ERImT :

Number of individuals

2019
—E-hF

2018
—T-N\F
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30

(h)

(i)

Benefits and interests of directors
(disclosures required by section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and Hong Kong
Listing Rules) (Continued)

No incentive payment for joining the Group or compensation for loss
of office was paid or payable to any director or the five highest paid
individuals during the year.

Senior management’s emoluments by band
The senior management’s emoluments (excluding directors) fell
within the following bands:

30

(h)

(i)

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 # 7T % 3,000,000 7% 7T
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 # 7T % 3,500,000 7 7T
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 77T % 4,000,000 7 7T
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 % 7T % 5,500,000 7 7T
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 # 7T % 6,500,000 7 7T

EENANENER(KES
BCRBMERB) (5£622FE)%E
383k (A BRI (BMEBEEF
=ER)RAD(£622GE) &
EBLTHRAEEER) ()

FREEMNESFIAERZSFMALE
KA EREERMAREE 2 KE)E
SEER A FE(E -

SREEAETMEE
BREBAB(TEREES) 2FMEE
A
Number of individuals
AE
2019 2018
—B-NEF —E-N\F

= 1

1
1
1
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31 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 31

SRERTREBRME

Cash Flows
(@) Reconciliation of profit before income taxto  (a) KRBIAVGFEEEESE 2 FIR
net cash generated from operations THER
2019 2018
—E-NF —ETN\E
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before income tax BRI Al 721,920 581,244
Adjustments for: R
— Finance income - BIA (14,803) (11,661)
— Depreciation of property, plant - - BWERZHETE
and equipment 352,353 340,727
— Amortisation of leasehold land - HHE b R T A 2
and land use rights 2,959 2,967
— Amortisation of intangible assets - BB 564 752
— Fair value gain on investment - REWMEZ R HERA
properties (19,800) (18,800)
— Net loss on disposal of other - HEHMYE - KE K&EFER
property, plant and equipment 10,588 20,901
— Net loss on disposal of investment - HEREME 2 FER
properties 741 -
— Gain on disposal of intangible assets — — tH&EEFE = 2 & F (565) -
— Share-based compensation expenses  — LARZ(D 2 < B & (1,209) 26,240
— Dividend income from listed - LR ER S A
investments (11,736) (15,818)
— Impairment loss of property, plant - W% HENEREORERE
and equipment 3,529 32,972
— Loss allowance on trade receivables — — % ¥ fE I BRI E518 45 137 195
Operating profit before working MBNE & BB 2 2 EE
capital changes 1,044,678 959,719
Changes in working capital: MENESEE -
— Inventories -FE (6,963) 5,792
— Prepayments and deposits - AN FRENES (14,624) (3,780)
— Trade and other receivables — &N H b eI ERIE 20,443 (59,434)
— Trade payables - EEEERIE 12,232 (3,631)
— Other creditors and accrued liabilities  — EAth fE BRIE L FEET & 19,369 97,856
— Retirement benefit assets and - BN RAEERRARG S #E
provision for long service payments (7,413) (1,086)
Net cash generated from operations LBEAZFHRS 1,067,722 995,436
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31 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 31 HSREBRERERKE (&)
Cash Flows (Continued)

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, (b) HKEBREREXRANHEY
proceeds from disposal of property, plant and X BMERRBRERERE:
equipment comprise:

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FEIT
Net book amounts R FE 15,540 22,212
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWZE - BE k&2 FEE
plant and equipment (10,588) (20,901)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BE KRBTSR
plant and equipment 4,952 1,311

(¢ In the consolidated statement of cash flows, () HEREREXRANWHERE

proceeds from disposal of investment properties YIS ELE
comprise:
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Net book amounts BREDFE 55,100 -
Loss on disposal of investment properties &% & ¥ 2 B8 (741) -
Proceeds from disposal of HERE YRS
investment properties 54,359 -
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31 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 31

Cash Flows (Continued)

(d) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, (d)
proceeds from disposal of intangible assets

mEeERERERWE (B&)

GERERERANHERL
EEMERER !

comprise:
2019 2018
S —=N\F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Net book amounts BREVHE 1,577 -
Gain on disposal of intangible assets HERTEE Zm 565 -
Proceeds from disposal of & R B EEFTS X
intangible assets 2,142 -
32 Share Options and Share Award Scheme 32 ROHARER KRG EEEE

Share Options

Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted by the Company on 24
September 2003 (the “2003 Scheme”), the Company might grant
options to the eligible participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in
the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.
The Company had granted options to certain employees of the
Group (including executive directors of the Company) pursuant to
the 2003 Scheme. The 2003 Scheme expired on 24 September 2013
and the Group has stopped granting share options under the 2003
Scheme since then.

The Company adopted a share option scheme upon the passing
of a shareholders’ resolution on 11 September 2012 (the “2012
Scheme”). Pursuant to the 2012 Scheme, the Board might grant
options to the eligible participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in
the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.
No share options had been granted under the 2012 Scheme since its
adoption up to 31 March 2019.
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32

sre MR

Share Options and Share Award Scheme
(Continued)

Share Options (Continued)

For options granted under the 2003 Scheme, the exercise price in
relation to each option was determined by the Board of Directors of
the Company, but in any event would not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date
of grant, which must be a business day or (ii) the average of the
closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated in the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant or (iii) the nominal value
of a share of the Company . The exercisable period and the vesting
period of the options were also determined by the Board of Directors
and the options shall expire at the end of a 5-year period after the
options become exercisable save that such period shall not expire
later than 10 years from the date on which the option is deemed to
be granted and accepted in accordance with the 2003 Scheme.

As at 31 March 2019, the weighted average fair value of all
outstanding options granted under the 2003 Scheme was HK$4.51
per option, which was determined using the Binomial option pricing
model. The significant inputs into the model were weighted average
share price of HK$22.15 at the grant date, exercise price shown
below, volatility of 27%, dividend yield of 3.5%, an expected option
life of eight years, and an annual risk-free interest rate of 1.9%.
The volatility measured at the standard deviation of continuously
compounded share returns is based on statistical analysis of daily
share prices over the last three years.

32

B4R R 6 R B8
(#&)

Rz {0 A% (&)
1R1Z 2003 58I H 2 (AR {0 Bt - H
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AT ABLROREAH(AARSE)
RRB BB EET BT ERERMN
o W Bk () BRRE B AR RER
ZFRRRBRONE BB T HRE
I} P2 S T 8 3k (i) AN R R R D
8 AEEHESE - RinEIE21TEH
FEBBMAESRRE - RO HER
ATz ARG AFHmEATEBIR
1% 2003 FH BIRARER L R EZ A 2 B
AT ERRA

RZFE—NF=A=+—8"  FTARE
2003 5HEI M B AR TE AR BRI R
MEFHAFERA-BHETEER
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32 Share Options and Share Award Scheme 32 J& 7 8 # K Iz {7 22 & =+ &
(Continued) (%)
Share Options (Continued) i 10 HARE (48)
Movements in share options during the year ended 31 March 2019 BHE_ZT-NF=A=+—HLFE
are as follows: W RIDEAEZEBITERAT
Exercise  Beginning of End of
Grant date Exercise period price the year Granted Exercised Lapsed the year
BEA% frEse fifefE Egs 5 fife %X Exih
HKS
AT
28 October 2010 31 March 2011 to 30 March 2020 2310 492,000 - - (237,000) 255,000
ZE-TETACT\B ZF—HZA=+-BEZF-EE=A=tA
492,000 - - (237,000) 255,000
Movements in share options during the year ended 31 March 2018 BHE-FT- )/ \F=ZA=+—RHLFE
are as follows: N RIDEAIEZ EBITERAT
Bxercse  Beginning of End of
Grant date Exercise period price the year Granted Exercised Lapsed the year
oz It fiféE Faes & fife X FRis
HKS
A7
2 October 2007 30 March 2009 to 1 October 2017 14.748 35,000 - (35,000) - -
ZERrETACA ZETNEZR=TRECEtE1A-H
28 October 2010 31 March 2011 to 30 March 2020 22370 914,000 = (316,000) (106,000) 492,000
Z2-RELACTNE ZB-—HZA=t-BE-Z-EE=A=tH
28 October 2010 31 March 2012 to 27 October 2020 22370 14,000 - (14,000) - -
“BEETACTN\E CE-CESAST-RECRCEETACTLR
963,000 = (365,000) (106,000) 492,000
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32 Share Options and Share Award Scheme 32 J& 7 8 # K Iz {7 22 & =+ &

(Continued)

Share Options (Continued)

All the 255,000 outstanding options were exercisable as at 31 March
2019 (2018: 492,000). No share options were exercised during
the year so there was no related weighted average share price for
exercise of the options during the year (2018: HK$25.24 per share).

Share Award Scheme

On 27 August 2013, a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme” or the “Scheme”) was approved and adopted by the
Board of Directors of the Company. Unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, the Scheme will remain valid and effective for 15 years
from the date of adoption.

(#&)

fig 10 HARE (48)
R—ZZE—-—NhEFE=ZA=+—H: A
255,00017 M AR 1T B AR (D BARE ] T 17
F(=ZT— )\ :492,0001) - AR
R £B A% (7 BRI IETT(E - INF RN AT
R B 2 B MEEERE(ZE
—N\F : Fi%25.2487T) °

IR 10 22 Bt 2
R-ZZTE—=%FN\A=-++tH KRFE
ERHE REA— B, =E R &) (A%
DERENETEl ] s [ZET8l]) - RIESTT
BUBSIERT « 2%t 211 B 54 B HAREET
THFABRBRIREBRA -
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32 Share Options and Share Award Scheme
(Continued)

Share Award Scheme (Continued)

During the year, no (2018: 296,710) performance shares (Note b)
and 1,408,724 (2018: 1,125,466) restricted shares (Note ¢) were
granted to selected participants pursuant to the Scheme. Details of
the performance shares and restricted shares awarded under the
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2019 are as follows:

32 R0 & IR 4D 3R B At &

(#&)

IR 1n 2Bt El ()

FR-ER(ZF—NF :296,7100%)
EERD (MaEb) % 1,408,724 % (=&
— )\ : 1,125,466 0% ) R #il 14 3% (7 (B
HOEREBZER FREIESEE -
HE-_Z-—AF=A=t—BIt&EE"
RIE LT8R B M EE RS K BRHI AR

BT
Number of shares
KA
As at As at
1 April Granted Vested Lapsed 31 March
Fair value 2018 during during during 2019
Date of grant pershare WM=Z—-N\E  theyear  theyear  theyear W=Z—H%  Vesting period
RitiAH BRAYE mA-H FRR ENER FREXY ZA=t-B BEH
HKS
AT
(Note a)
(Fitst a)
15/9/2014 238 1,537,425 - - (1,537,425) - July2019 (Note b)
“Z-nELA (i)
317712015 258 204,420 - (201,113 (3,307) - 31July2016-31July 2018 (Note c)
“ENELA=T-HE
ZE-\EEA=T-B(HEd
317112015 24.6 304,681 - - (304,681) - July2019 (Note b)
ZZ-NELA (Ffb)
1/8/2016 2438 591,929 - (292,951) (29,797) 269,181 31 July 2017-31 July 2019 (Note c)
“E-tELA=T-RE
ZE-NEEA=T—A
1/8/2016 243 600,334 - - (600,334) - July 2019 (Note b)
ZZ-NELA (Ffb)
317712017 236 980,987 - (321,447) (80,213) 579,327 31 July 2018-31 July 2020 (Note ¢)
T N\ErA=t-HZE
“ERELA=1-B (M)
317112017 23.8 221,161 - - (221,161) - July 2019 (Note b)
“Z-NELA ()
317112018 18.6 - 1,408,724 - (81,501) 1,327,223 31 July 2019-31 July 2021 (Note ¢)
ZT-NEtA=T-BZ
“E--F+A=1-H (ko)
4,440,937 1,408,724 (815511)  (2,858,419) 2,175,731
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32 Share Options and Share Award Scheme

(Continued)

32 R0 & IR 4D 3R B At &

Share Award Scheme (Continued)
Details of the restricted shares and performance shares awarded
under the Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2018 are as

(#&)
B R BT 8 (&)
REE-F—\F=A=t+—HItF

B - RIBFZAT IR B0RR HI A D S

follows: BN BT ¢
Number of shares
Rih8R
As at As at
1 April Granted Vested Lapsed 31 March
Fair value 2017 during during during 2018
Date of grant er share RZZ—+F the ;/;ar the year theyear RZT—N\F Vest| ﬁg period
it B i““?ﬁf mA—AH FREE FERER =ZA=1—8
/’57[
(Note a)
(M a)
31/7/2014 26.2 204,129 - (201,739) (2,390) - 31July2015-31 July 2017 (Note c)
:g ﬁE{H—Jr—Hi
‘*—tﬁtﬂ +—H (Ko
15/9/2014 23.8 1,841,720 - - (304,295) 1,537,425 JulL 9 (Note b)
K—jﬁtﬂ(ﬁ b)
317712015 25.8 487 990 - (242,684) (40,886) 204,420 31 ]July 2016-31 July 2018 (Note c)
_2? /ﬁ A=f—-RE
T—N\E+A=1+—H (K
31/7/2015 246 442,665 - - (137,984) 304,681 Ju|£201 (Note b)
-4+ A (HzEb)
1/8/2016 248 1,065,101 - (356,047) (117,125) 591,929 31 July 2017-31 July 2019 (Note ¢)
—Z- JCEJEH_‘I’_Ei
“E-NFEA=t—H(MEc)
1/8/2016 24.3 124,197 - - (123,863) 600,334 JulL 019 (Note b)
‘K—jﬁtﬂ (B¥zEb)
317712017 23.6 - 1,125,466 (2,248) (142,231) 980,987 31 July 2018-31 July 2020 (Note c)
“F-\EtA=t-HE
“E-TFA=1T—A (Mo
317712017 238 - 296,710 - (75,549) 221,161 Ju|£201 (Note b)
-5+ A (HzEb)
4,765,802 1,422,176 (802,718) (944.323) 4,440,937
During the year, the Group purchased 570,224 (2018: 100,055) FR - AEEFEBZTENITARA
of its own shares through the trustee of the Scheme from the Hmis BB 570,224/ (=T — )\ 4 :
open market. The total amount paid to acquire the shares was 100,055 %) HB B D - RZZE—1F

approximately HK$10,800,000 (2018: HK$2,544,000) and has been
deducted from shareholders’ equity as at 31 March 2019. The shares

purchased by the Group that are not yet vested for this Share Award

Scheme were recorded as treasury shares of the Group. As at 31
March 2019, there were 4,993,551 treasury shares (2018: 5,238,838)
held through the trustee of the Scheme.

ZA=+—H BBERMNINzEE
B8 49 /10,800,000 . (= F — )\ & :
2,544,000/ 70 ) B B IR E # 5= Al
o NEBR R BT EIMEEE
HMAFEBORMNDEERASENETR
MAE - R_TE—NAF=ZA=+—8"
ZA B Z A E 4,993,551 RETT
BB (ZZF— N\ : 5,238,838%) °
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32 Share Options and Share Award Scheme 32
(Continued)

Share Award Scheme (Continued)

Notes:

(a) The fair value of the awarded shares was based on the closing price per share at
the date of grant and adjusted by the fair value of the dividends during the vesting
periods as the grantees are not entitled to dividends during the vesting periods.

(b) The vesting of awarded performance shares were conditional upon attainment
of performance target with reference to the Group’s performance and the
performance target was not achieved. Therefore, no awarded performance shares
are vested. These awarded performance shares were lapsed on 31 March 2019 (Note
29).

(a) The awarded restricted shares are subject to a vesting scale in tranches of 33%
of the awarded shares respectively on the first and second anniversary dates of
the grant date and the balance of the remaining awarded shares on the third
anniversary date of the grant date. In case such anniversary date is not a business
date, the date of vesting shall be the business day immediately thereafter.
Management has revised its estimates of number of shares that are expected to
vest based on the market vesting conditions.

d) During the year, Mr Lo Tak Shing, Peter and Mr Lo Ming Shing, lan, being Directors
of the Company, participated in the Share Award Scheme.

33 Commitments and Contingent Liabilities 33

(@) Operating lease commitments (@)
At 31 March 2019, the Group had total future aggregate minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

B4R R 6 R B8

(#&)

(@ BEROATFEZERK L B HNEFRKS
EBREFBHNNOREQAFEEHRAER B
ERANERBRNEEZERE -

(b) BEFERNAEIN L2 EREBERRME
EMRBBERAAURE  MRREBFERE
B o B - 3 55 R (R AT SRR R AN o X
ERBREERNENR T —NF=A=1—
B R (PEE29) -

(© BERGIMERDZLIOUHRE  EREA
Wt E—ERAFARE—EBAFHD S
JB BR AR 17 2 33% » FIERAY B AR AD RIRO R
HEHEFFE=ERAFARE SAFAYL
FEER  BROBBEAHAAZENT —E
BEH - BEEECRETSBBRIHETE
WA TRERNEE 2 fhEt -

(d) FARRRERERAKERERALEY
BLER REETE -

AERIAREE

REHERE
RZZE-NAE=A=+—8H  AEER
B ATRGE 2 L HE MR ARRER 2
RIEHEFRLRAT ¢

2019 2018
—B-he —F-N\E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Land and buildings T RIEF

— Not later than one year -—FRHE®» 843,294 847,170

— Later than one year and - EEZENFRNEW
not later than five years 1,344,691 1,292,227
— Later than five years - RAFEHE®m 143,612 180,382
2,331,597 2,319,779
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(a)

(b)

34

SR S B

VN

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities 33 HEERIALE (&)
(Continued)
Operating lease commitments (Continued) (a) KEHRSHAIE(E)
The above lease commitments only include commitments for basic FREERERBFEAEE  UTE
rentals, and do not include commitments for additional rentals ERRERE R EUEE2EM®E M
payable, if any, when turnover of individual restaurants exceeds a Rz EINEE (WE) - BAB AT A&
pre-determined level as it is not possible to determine in advance the TESEEZZRINES
amount of such additional rentals.
Capital commitments (b) BAREIE
As at 31 March 2019, the Group had the following capital RZZE-NF=A=+—8 xEEZ
commitments: BAEENT -
2019 2018
—E-NF —EFN\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Acquisition of property, WREMZE - BB KB
plant and equipment
Authorised and contracted for BHER B ERY) 69,683 34,691
Authorised but not contracted for BEHEERERY) 510,089 445,157
579,772 479,848
Financial Guarantees 34 HBIFER

As at 31 March 2019, the Company had given guarantees totaling
approximately HK$915,000,000 (2018: HK$415,000,000) to
financial institutions in connection with the banking facilities granted
to its subsidiaries.

The Group's bankers have given guarantee in lieu of deposits
amounting to approximately HK$133,353,000 to the landlords and
utility providers of the subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 March 2019
(2018: HK$120,167,000).

R-ZT—-AFE=A=+—8 "  KRFMA
SR BEIREEEENB AR 2 R1TE
BERERE £4915,000,0008 7T (= F
—\4E : 415,000,000 7T) °

R-EBE-NAF=A=+—8 AEE@Z
ARBITEMAEBHBRAGIZEER
NAREHEFREER  UREBZS
4 %8 %) 4133,353,000/8 L ( —ZE— N\
% 1 120,167,000 7T) °
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35 Future Operating Lease Arrangements

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had future aggregate minimum
lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

35 ARREEHEzZH

R-_ET—

NE=ZA=1+—H A&ER

R AIRGE 2 A THE MR ARRER Z

RIEHEEFIRERNAT :

2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
TET FEr
Not later than one year —FRNEm 41,815 45,318
Later than one year and not later F_EFRFRNHRm
than five years 57,574 42,429
More than five years FF &AW - 2,025
99,389 89,772
36 Related Party Transactions 36 BHMARS
(@) The Group has the following significant (a) FAAEEHEEBE T EUT 2
transactions with related parties during the BARS :
year:
2019 2018
—B-hF — N\
HK$000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Operating lease rentals paid MRS N2 EEHERS
to a related party:
— Tinway Investments Limited (Note i) - KGR EGR AT (KizEi) 2,400 2,388
Franchise and development fees paid MIEARE T S22 ERIEE
to a related party: ERERM :
— illycaffe SpA (Note ii) — illycaffe SpA (B Eii) - 304
Notes: B 5E

0]

(ii)

Tinway Investments Limited is a company jointly owned by Ms Lo Pik Ling, Anita,
an associate of Mr Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, and Ardley Enterprises (PTC) Limited,
the trustee of a unit trust of which Mr Lo Hoi Kwong, Sunny being a beneficiary.
Ms Lo, Mr Chan and Mr Lo are Directors of the Company.

illycaffe SpA holds 30% equity interests in Café de Espressamente illy (HK) Limited,

a 70% owned subsidiary of the Group.
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4T e SRR M

36 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 36 BAEEARS (&)
(@) The Group has the following significant (a) FAKXAEEEBEBE T EUT 2
transactions with related parties during the BEARS ()
year: (Continued)
The above transactions were carried out in accordance with the ERR G TIRANE B RBE ]2
terms of the contracts entered into by the Group and the related BRUEFETT -
parties.
(b) Key management compensation (b) TEEEBAESME
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FET
Salaries and allowances B2 Y=l 23,390 19,506
Fees we 150 248
Discretionary bonuses FEEEIEAL 12,610 9,075
Contributions to pension schemes RINEFT B 108 108
Share-based compensation expenses LARR (9 2 A5 Bl <2 4,973 4,445
41,231 33,382
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(a)

37 Statement of Financial Position and 37 AARUBEMRRERRHFEEE
Reserve Movement of the Company g
Statement of financial position of the (a) AATMBKIMRREK
Company
31 March 31 March
2019 2018
—g-nE —=— )\
=ZH=t+—H =A=+—H
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREEE
Investment in a subsidiary RBARMKRE 331,802 331,802
Amount due from subsidiaries RS NGIE O 1,242,815 1,395,625
1,574,617 1,727,427
Current assets REEE
Amount due from a subsidiary R VNGIE O - 8,540
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFEIER 263 459
263 8,999
Total assets HWEE 1,574,880 1,736,426
EQUITY e
Capital and reserves AATREREA
attributable to the equity FEAG R A R
holders of the Company
Share capital i 58,554 58,554
Share premium Iegrapini=] 37(b) 616,811 616,811
Shares held for share [ B2 BT &1
award scheme A 2D 37(b) (133,020) (145,053)
Other reserves H i 37(b) 271,878 294,401
Retained earnings R @7 37(b) 760,327 911,086
Total equity RiEEEE 1,574,550 1,735,799
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REIEE
Other creditors and HE S IRIB R
accrued liabilities fE5TE A 330 627
Total equity and liabilities BRENEEHEEE 1,574,880 1,736,426
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37 Statement of Financial Position and

(b)

37 DRI R K

Reserve Movement of the Company g (&)
(Continued)
Reserve movement of the Company (b) ZAATEEZE
Shares
Capital ~ Share-based heldfor  Contributed
Share  redemption compensation  share award Surplus
premium reserve reserve scheme (note i) Retained
BR LRGN ROREGE BaEs earnings Total
R EE BEGE  oMeRE  sEzRG (RzEi) REEH %
HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
Balance as at 1 April 2018 RZZ— )\ A—-BHH 616,811 152,034 47,900 (145,053) 94,467 911,086 1,677,245
Employee share award scheme BB Ri7 %8312
- value of employee senvices - EEREER - - (1,209) = = = (1,209)
Transfer upon lapse of share ~ ERGBEEHMER
options - - (1,067) - - 1,067 -
Vesting shares of share award RSB Sl EE
scheme - - (20,247) 2,833 - (2,586) -
Purchase of shares BAR - - - (10,800) = = (10,800)
Profit attributable toequity ~ AARRERA AR
holders of the Company - - - - - 530,000 530,000
Dividends RE = = = - - (679,240) (679,240)
Balance asat31 March 2019 R=F-NEZA=T-RER 616,811 152,034 25317 (133,020) 94,467 760,327 1,515,9%
Balance as at 1 April 2017 RZE—tEMA-BER 607,364 152,034 44174 (164,622) 94,467 532,280 1,265,697
Proceeds from sharesissued &7 Fif5 5 7,861 - - - - - 7,861
Employee share award scheme BB R{7£8: 2l
- value of employee senvices - [EEREEE - - 26,40 - - - 26,240
Transfer upon lapse of R BELRmEE
share options - - (477 - - 477 -
Release of share-based BT HEmbRGD ZE
compensation reserve to HeEE \RIDEE
share premium Upon exercise
of share options 1,586 - (1,586) - - - -
Vesting shares of share bOEERE bk
award scheme - - (20,451) 2,113 - (1,662) -
Purchase of shares BARN - - - (2,544) - - (2,544)
Profit attributable toequity ~ AARRERA AT
holders of the Company - - - - - 850,000 850,000
Dividends RE = = = = = (470,009) (470,009)
Balanceasat31 March 2018 WZE—\E=A=T-R&#% 616,811 152,034 47900 (145,053) 94,467 911,086 1,677,245
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37 Statement of Financial Position and
Reserve Movement of the Company
(Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company
(Continued)

(i) Contributed surplus mainly arose from the group reorganisation
made in prior years and represented the difference between the
value of investment in a subsidiary acquired by the Company and
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
thereon. Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, contributed surplus
is distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due or (i) the realisable
value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium account.
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(b)

ARFMBARRREHES
B (/&)

ARTREEE (F)

EHBRTESARENBEFENE
AMEL 2RV IARBUKRNE
BT ABANBRARKRENEEEAR
AIPTEITHRDEENZEME - R
BERERRDE  BEHARAI DR TR
R MO EEENEEDREEK
(i) B & E Ry A] 23R E B it RN E
BEUAREDBTRAMRMDEERZ
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ISR B HAEH DK ©



Principal Investment Properties

T BIREY=E

Description
i pud

Portion A & C of Shop No. N95 on the First Floor,

Nos. 1-17 Mount Sterling Mall and Nos. 10-16
Lai Wan Road, Mei Foo Sun Chuen,
Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon

NEH R ATEINZEE10-165
BEERS 1175 12 N5 A K& C&Bfp

Rear Portion of Shop No. 3 on the Ground Floor,
Cheong Yiu Building, Nos. 167, 171 and

173 Castle Peak Road and Nos. 47-51 Shiu Wo Street,

Tsuen Wan, New Territories
HAZEE B 167 « 171 217358 Ik
47-51 5% ERANE 12 3R A D

2/F, Cheong Yiu Building, Nos. 167, 171 & 173

Castle Peak Road and Nos. 47-51 Shiu Wo Street,

Tsuen Wan, New Territories
FAZEEE 167 « 171 217358 Ik
47-51 RERAE &

Shop A of Portion B on the Basement,
Argyle Centre, Phase I, No. 688 Nathan Road
and No. 65 Argyle Street, Mongkok, Kowloon
BEAT AR 2078 688 5% )k b B E 11 65 SRAE A L
ZE—HRMhEE B BP0 A fH

Shop C of Portion B on the Basement,
Argyle Centre, Phase I, No. 688 Nathan Road
and No. 65 Argyle Street, Mongkok, Kowloon
BEAT A5 2078 688 5% )k b B E 11 65 SRAE A L
5 —HAMJE B & D C 4

Shop A on the Ground Floor, Admiralty Centre,
No. 18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
BEEREBE 18R L—EAH

Lot number

1 B 4 57

New Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 5086
¥ LBEAHBER 5086 5%

Tsuen Wan Town
Lot No. 223
ZETIHER 223 57

Tsuen Wan Town
Lot No. 223
ZETHER 223 5%

Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 1262
JLBEHIER 1262 57

Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 1262
JLBEHIER 1262 57

Inland Lot No. 8423
R ER 8423 5%

Type
BE

Shop
[EE

Shop
B

Shop
B

Shop
B

Shop
B

Shop
G

RRES

Lease term

GEREE

Medium-term

3

Medium-term

A

Medium-term

5]

Medium-term

R

Medium-term

R

Long-term
=5
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Five-Year Financial Summary
T FIGHE

mEBRER
E-F-AF=A=t—BILEEFE

Consolidated Income Statements

For the five years ended 31 March 2019

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-NE —T-)N\F —T+F —E-RF “Z-1F
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET TET
Revenue WA 8,493,883 8,427,399 7,895,262 7,567,176 7,355,738
Cost of sales HEMA (7,356,665) (7,385,291) (6,838,442) (6,522,504) (6,332,590)
Gross profit =R 1,137,218 1,042,108 1,056,820 1,044,672 1,023,148
Other gains/(losses), net HFaH/ (E8) 17,687 (13,706) (23,148) 716 59,713
Administrative expenses THRER (447,788) (458,819) (430,609) (430,039) (375,152)
Operating profit el 707,117 569,583 603,063 615,349 707,709
Finance income BT 14,803 11,661 9,619 12,712 17,256
Share of profit of associates JE(RESE A Rl - - - 22 =
Share of loss of joint ventures [E(HEE N EEE - - - - (5,434)
Profit before income tax BREAT R A 721,920 581,244 612,682 628,083 719,531
Income tax expenses FIERER (129,810) (121,949 (108,832) (110,223) (117,051)
Profit for the year from REFELEEBH
continuing operations AEE & 592,110 459,295 503,850 517,860 602,480
Loss for the year from KREBRIBERHZ
discontinued operation AEEER - - - - (15,020)
Profit for the year AEEHF 592,110 459,295 503,850 517,860 587,460
Profit/(loss) attributable to:- &R/ (&) « -
Equity holders of the Company AARRIEZEA 590,285 458,055 503,827 517,982 586,773
Non-controlling interests JEERI RS 1,825 1,240 23 (122) 687
592,110 459,295 503,850 517,860 587,460
Dividends i 8 491,856 679,230 473,875 676,954 453,860
Basic earnings per share BREAREN HK$1.02 HK$0.79 HK$0.87 HK$0.90 HK$1.02
1.02787T 0.797%7T 0.87 87T 0.90787T 1.02/87T
Diluted earnings per share BRETHEN HK$1.01 HK$0.79 HK$0.87 HK$0.90 HK$1.01
10187 0.797%7T 0.87 87T 0.90787T 1.0187T
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Five-Year Financial Summary
T FIGHE

e BRI R
R=B—AE=A=+—A

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2019

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—B-NE —Z)N\F —TtF —TRF —T-0F
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FHT FET FET
Assets BE
Non-current assets FnEEE
Leasehold land and land use rights FE 13 % 1 st P 75,231 79,485 80,532 84,598 88,386
Property, plant and equipment WE - BB NRE 1,922,710 2,020,925 1,943,607 1,729,269 1,737,661
Investment properties KEME 628,000 663,300 567,700 477,500 478,400
Intangible assets B EE 1,852 4,051 4,621 5,500 2,132
Investments in associates REEENRIRE - - = = 1,195
Deferred income tax assets ERFIBEE 12,681 30,506 26,325 29,433 25,955
Available-for-sale financial assets AftHESMERE - 147,978 229,621 179,615 355,147
Financial assets at fair value through BATEIARMEZEAKAZ
other comprehensive income REE 154,102 = = = =
Non-current prepayments and deposits ~ JEREIBIFIERLS 307,871 295,657 308,523 275,366 266,296
3,102,447 3,241,902 3,160,929 2,781,281 2,955,172
Current assets mEEE
Inventories FE 241,325 234,362 240,154 214,551 228,281
Trade and other receivables ¥R EMEUERIR 165,086 191,466 97,271 87,259 143,342
Prepayments and deposits BNFERRS 126,813 121,198 116,327 156,459 123,215
Financial assets at BRATEINERR Z
fair value through profit or loss PHEE - - - - 39,838
Current income tax recoverable EIEEE N mpaE 1,017 3,383 9,816 18,994 =
Bank deposits with maturity over BRE={AZHEN
three months PITIEA 21,865 22,778 22,296 = 15,428
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEEE 835,537 801,240 790,017 1,186,643 1,057,189
1,391,643 1,374,427 1,275,881 1,663,906 1,607,293
Total assets BEE 4,494,090 4,616,329 4,436,810 4,445,187 4,562,465
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Five-Year Financial Summary

HFMEHME

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBERRR (&)

(Continued)
As at 31 March 2019 R-E—NF=A=+—8H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-hE —E-)N\F S o3 —E-RF —Z-h%F
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET TET
Equity e
Capital and reserves attributable RARIRERE AR
to the equity holders of the Company ~ BRAR &
Share capital PR 58,554 58,554 58,518 58,356 58,162
Other reserves H itk 1,021,567 1,074,300 992,709 882,303 1,049,354
Retained earnings REHF 2,335,367 2,436,827 2,436,150 2,597,618 2,564,410
3,415,488 3,569,681 3,487,377 3,538,277 3,671,926
Non-controlling interests FER e 6,262 3,819 3,743 3,720 3,842
Total equity Prkesaze 3,421,750 3,573,500 3,491,120 3,541,997 3,675,768
Liabilities 8&
Non-current liabilities FRBARE
Deferred income tax liabilities EXERIEEE 29,479 33,520 31,964 28,038 21,147
Provision for long service payments RS ERE 45,258 34,990 45,525 51,955 30,498
Retirement benefit liabilities RIReEHaE 13,459 18,747 22,288 20,762 15,344
88,196 87,257 99,777 100,755 66,989
Current liabilities MEAE
Trade payables EEEEIRIA 219,710 207,478 211,109 214,468 212,282
Other creditors and accrued liabilities HEmEMNRERETER 725,134 706,965 609,109 575,433 577,555
Current income tax liabilities AVEFIRAE 39,300 41,129 25,695 12,534 29,871
984,144 955,572 845,913 802,435 819,708
Total liabilities BafE 1,072,340 1,042,829 945,690 903,190 886,697
Total equity and liabilities R EEEE 4,494,090 4,616,329 4,436,810 4,445,187 4,562,465
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